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LTIMindtree Canada Limited
[Formerly Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Limited)

BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Member,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and Audited Accounts for the year ended
March 31, 2024.

1. Financial Highlights
D it 2023-24 2022-23
CAD CAD
Total Income 119,970 469 95_781.097
Total Expenditure 114.111.044 91171817
Operating Profit / (Loss) 3.839.425 4.609.280
Add: Interest Income 149114 54,482
Less: Finance Costs * =
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 6,008,339 4 663,762
Less : Tax 1.626364 1.250.829
Met Profit / (Loss) after Tax 4382175 3.412.933

State of Company Affairs / Business Prospects

The gross sales and other income for the financial year under review were CAD 120.12 Mn
as against CAD 95.84 Mn for the previous financial year registering an increase of 25.34%.
The profit / {loss) before tax from continuing operations including extraordinary and
exceptional items was CAD 6 Mn and the profit / (loss) after tax from continuing operations
including extraordinary and exceptional items of CAD 4.38 Mn for the financial year under
review as against CAD 4.67 Mn and CAD 3.41 Mn respectively for the previous financial
year, registering an increase of 36.99 % and 28.40% respectively.

3. Capital Expenditure:

As at March 31, 2024, the gross fixed and intangible assets including leased Assets, stood
at CAD 784,385 and the net fixed and intangible assets, including leased assets, at CAD
720,341. Capital Expenditure during the year amounted to CAD 471,146.
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10.

11.

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given or security provided by

the Company

The Company has disclosed the particulars of the loans given, investments made or

guarantees given or security provided in Note No. 8 of the financial statements.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend dividend for the ended March 31, 2024.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company,
between the end of the financial year and the date of the report

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the

Company, between the end of the financial year and the date of the report.

Reporting of Frauds

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud committed against the Company
by its officers or employees.

Details of Significant & Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts

During the year under review, there were no material and significant orders passed by the
regulators or courts impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in

future.

Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed/resigned during the year

There was no change in the Composition of the Board of Directors. Ms. Tina Allan and Mr.

Harsh Naidu are the directors of the Company.

Financial Statements

The Auditors report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification,

observation or adverse comment.
Auditors
M/s. KNAV Professional Accounts, Certified Professional Accountants are the auditors

of the Company. They will continue to be auditors of the Company for the financial
year 2024-25,
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cj Repenus recagnition

The Company recognizes revermes across all the revenue streams when they are eamed. specifically when all the following
conditions are met

EN Services are provided fo customers,

b There iz clear evzdence that an arrangement exists,
€ Amounts are fized or can be determined; and

dj The shilify to collect iz reasonably azsured.

The Company recognizes revenue for different revenue streams az follows:

1 Time and material services: Revenue with rezpect to time-and-material contracts is recognized as related services are
performed applving the contracted rates.

2 Fized proce contracts: Revenue from fixed price contracts iz recognized over the Efe of contract based on 2 percentage
completion method Pescentape completion iz measured bazed vpon the efforts incurred to date in relabion to the total
estimated efforts to complete the contract The Company monitors estimates of total contract revenue and cozton a
routine basis through the delvery pediod. The cumulative Impact of any change in estimates of the contract revenue or
costs iz reflected in the pedod in which the changes become known In the event that 2 loz: is anticipated on a particular
confract, provision iz made for the estimated loss,

Deferred revenue represents amounts collected or billed prior to satizfming the shove revenue recognifion criteris
Unbilled revenue represents amounts not billed: to the customers but accrued because of satiafming the ahove revenue

recognition criteria.
at Provision for dowbfal accannts

The Company follows specific identification method for providing for doubtful accounts. Management analyzes accounts
zeceivable and the composition of the accounts receivable ageing, historical bad debts, when eviluating the adequacy of the
provizion for doubtful accounts.

g) Frnaercial fxsrome sty
Financral mnstruments are messured at far value on mitial recognifion After inifial recognition, financial nstruments are

measured at their fair values, except for loans and recefvables and other fnancial habilities, which are measured at emortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.

The Company has made the following classifcations:

resulting from the penodic revaluation are recorded in net income.

2y Accounts receivablez are clazsified as loans and receivables and are initially recorded at fair value and subsequent
meazurements are recorded at amortized cost naing the effective interest rate method: and

3  Accounts pavable and accrued habilitte: are classified a: other fnancial habilittes and are imtially measured at their fair
value. Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost vsing the effective interest rate method.

The carrrng value of cash and cash equsvalent, accounts receivable and sccounts pavable equals or spproximates the fair



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1CDOTZF-2EES-46ED-8065-F3858A5545C3

i Tnrome tapces

The Company follows aszet and habikty method of accounting for income taxes. Under thiz method, future income taxes are
recoprized for the future income tax consequences attributable to differences between the Enancizl staterment carrying values
and their respective income tax basis [temporary differences]. Future income tax asset: and labiifies are measured uaing
substantively enacted income tax rate: expected to apply to faxable income in the vears during which temporary differences
are expected to be realized or setfled. The effect on future income tax aszefs and Eabilities of a change in tax rates = included
i income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance iz provided to the extent that it is more ikely
than not; that foture income tax azzet will not be realized.

£zl Dipidend
Dividend: are recognized a3 a Hability in the pedod in which they are declared. The income tax conzequences of dividend: are
recognized when a labchity to pay the dividend 1z recognized.

&) Cark and cark equavalen

Cash and cash equivalentz, inchiding cash on account, demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturties of
three months or less, are recorded at cost, which spprox:mates market value.

il Property and Eguithmeent

Computers, fumiture and office equipment are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Capital assets are amortized over
their estimated nseful lives at the following rates and methods:

Particulars Useful lives in year
Equipment 3 vears

Electrical installation 10 vears

Computer equipment 3-5 vears

Furmeture & fxtures 10 years

L zazchold improvements Orvwer leaze period

The Company regnlary reviews its capital assets to eliminate obsolete tems.

: i =2 .
i} Inghasrwsent of losp-lrved arrets

Long-kved azzets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances mdicate that the carrving amount
may not be recoverable. The carrmng amount of a long-lrved asset iz not recoverable if the carmping amount exceeds the sum
of the undiscounted cash flows empected to result from its use and eventual dispositon This sssessment 13 based on the
carrring amount of the asset at the date it 1= tested for recoverability, whether it is in nse or under development: In cases
where the undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrming amount, an fmpairment loss shall be recognized
when the carrving amount of a long-lwed asset is not recoverable and exceeds itz fair value: An impairment loss shall be
measured as the amount by which the carrming amount of a long-hved asset exceeds its far valoe. If an imparrment loss 12
recogrized, the adjusted carriing amount becomes the new cost basis. An smpairment lozs shall not be reverzed if the faxr
value subsequently increazes.
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L TIMindmree Canada Limired
Financizl Statements
March 31, 2024, and March 31, 2023

For the yvear ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Loan Balance receivable

ILTIMndtree TT2A Ine (Lymbye Solohons Inc) 05413 -
03,413 -

Interest Income
LTIMindtree TTSA Ine (Lymbre Solutions Inc) 3754 -
3,784 -

These tranzactions are under normal credit terme= and are med=ured at the exchange amouat, which iz the amount of
conznderation estabhzhed and agreed to by the related parties.

The tollowing balances are due from (due to) related parties and zre mon-interest beanng:

Due from relared parties (included nnder accounts receivabls)

LTIMNGndtree Lomated, USA o.747.530 0,144,452
LTIMindtree Lid, Cenads (Alindtree Canads Beanch) (aet) 3256165 40,5534
ILTIMIindtree GmbH 2616 11,639
LTIMEndtree Financial 2ervices Technologies Inc. 420,399 333,152
LTTAIndtree Limited | Singepore Branch - 35902
LTTALndtree Sverige. Sweden Branch - 64 800
LTIMinmdtres U Limited 3479 38125
LTIMindtree T'SA Inc (Lymbye Solutions Iac) 13,630 =
LTIAEndtree Limited-Denmark Branch 142183 -
13,502,842 9,668,604
Due 1o related parties (included under accounts payable & accrued
Liabilities)
L&T Technology Sermee: Ltd 1,800 B3T
LTIMindtree Limited, India (net) 6,164 893 5.595.745
LTIMindtree Limited, France 26,074 10,540
LTIMEndtree Lemated - Singapore Branch 290 -
6,193,057 5,607,122
Accrued revenue (included under due from relared pardes)
LTIAEndtree Financial Services Technologies Inc. 232688 244796
232,688 244,796

Advance billing (included under due from related partes)

LTIAEndtree Financial Services Technologies Inc. 21,954 =
221,954 =
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LTIMindtree LLC
(Formerly Larsen & Toubro Infotech LLC)

BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Member,

It's a pleasure in presenting the Board Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended March 31,

2024,
1. Einancial Highlights
e 2023-24 2022-23
uspD usbp
Total Income 768,598 2,223,182
Total Expenditure 817, 466 2,284,693
Operating Profit / (Loss) (52,868) (61,115}
Add: Interest Income 13,250 585
Less: Finance Costs i} 0
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (39,618) (60,916}
Less : Tax 0 a
Met Profit / (Loss) after Tax (39,618) (60,916)
2. State of Company Affairs
The gross sales and other income for the financial year under review were USD 781.84k as
against USD 2,223, 77k for the previous financial year registering an decrease of 64.84%.
The profit / {loss) before tax from continuing operations including extraordinary and
exceptionsl items was USD (39.61)k and the profit / (loss) after tax from continuing
operations including extraordinary and exceptional items of USD (39.61)k for the financial
year under review as against USD {60.92)k and USD (60.92)k respectively for the previous
financial year, registering an decrease of 34.96 % and 34.96 % respectively.
3.  Capital Expenditure:

As at March 31, 2024, the gross fixed and intangible assets including leased Assets, stood
at NIL and the net fixed and intangible assets, including leased assets, at NIL. Capital

Expenditure during the year amounted to NIL.
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10.

11.

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given or security provided by

the Company

During the year under review, there were no loans given, investments made or guarantees

given or security provided.

Dividend

The Sole Director do not propose the payment of any dividend during the year / period.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company,
between the end of the financial year and the date of the report

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the

Company, between the end of the financial year and the date of the report.

Reporting of Frauds

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud committed against the Company
by its officers or employees.

Details of Significant & Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts

During the year under review, there were no material and significant orders passed by the
regulators or courts impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in

future.

Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed/resizned during the year

There was no change in the Composition of the Board & Key Managerial Personnel during
the FY 2023-24. Mr. Harsh Naidu is the sole the director of the Company.

Financial Statements

The Auditors report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification, observation or

adverse comment.

Auditors

W /s. SGC & Associates LLP, Certified Public Accountants are the auditors of the Company.
They will continue to be auditors of the Company for the financial year 2024-25.
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SGC & Associates LLLP
Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Dur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an
auditor s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance
but 1s not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an aundit conducted n
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatemnent when 1t exasts. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements,
including omissions, are considered material 1if there is a substantial likelithood that,
mdividually or 1n the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticiam throughout the
audit.

# Identifv and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

» (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit i order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances_ but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of LTIMindtree LLC’s imnternal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion 1s expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management. as well as evaluate the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

s (Conclude whether, 1n our judgment, there are conditions or events considered in the
aggregate that raise substantial doubt about LTIMindtree LLC’s ability to contmue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and
certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

]



SGC & Associates LLLP
Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The supplementary information 1s presented for purposes of additional analvsis
and 15 not a required part of the financial statements. Such information 1s the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certamn
additional procedures, including comparning and reconciling such information directly to the
underlyving accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America In our opimmion the
information 1s fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

e Fr advociandey [Lb
Great Neck NY

April 192024




LTIMINDTREE LLC
BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT MARCH 21, 2024, AND 2023

ASSETS
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents g 339.719
Accounts recervable, net 188.682
Duue from related parties 63 494

Prepaid expenses and other current assets -

Total current assets 1,111,895

432,011
129,605
333,210

23438

Total assets g 1,111,893

078,264

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current habilities

978,264

6,293
158,463

164.736

164,756

813.508

Accounts pavable 3 33,186
Due to related partiss -
Accmed expenses and other current liabilities Ind 819
Total current liabilities 338.005
Total liabilities 5 338.005
Equity
Members' squity 173890
Total equity T73.890
Total liabtlities and squity 5 1,111,893

813.508

See Notes to Financial Statements

578,264




LTIMINDTREE LLC

STATEMENTS OF INCOME, COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, AND CHANGES IN

MEMEBERS® EQUITY

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

1,806,663

1.806.663

2,284 693

2.284.693

(478.028)

Sales
Net Sales g 764598
Total operating revenue 764 598
Operating expenses 217 466
Total operating expenses 817 466
Operating icome (32.868)
Interest income 13,250

Other income (expenses)

395

416.517

(60.916)

(60.916)

874.424

Met income (30.618)
Comprehensive mncome (30.618)
Members' equity, beginning of vear 813,508
Members' equity, end of year 5 773,890

813,508

See Notes to Financial Statements

Ly



LTIMINDTREE LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income/(loss) 5 (30.618) 3 (60.916)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assats to net
cash used by operating activities

Intarsst incomea {13,250) (595)
Allowance for doubtful debts {199 (10,245)
Decreasa (increase) i assats
Accounts recervable (38.878) 886.823
Prepaid expenszes and other current assets 83,438 (72.967)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable 33,186 (58.310)
Due from related parties (36.377) (372.668)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 146356 (125,638)
Net cash from/({used 1n) operating activities 114 458 (14.516)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest recerved 13,230 583

ot cash from/(uszed in) investing activities 13,230 593

Cash flows from financing activities - -

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 127.708 (13.521)
Cacsh and cash equivalents - beginmng of vear 432011 445 932
Cacsh and cash equivalents - end of vear 3 5597159 3 432011

See Notes to Financial Statements




LTIMINDTREE LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 231, 2024 AND 2013

NOTE 1 - BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

LTIMindtree LLC (“the Company or LTMLL™) 1s a limited liability company organized in
the State of Delaware, United States of Amenica. The Company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of
LTIMindtree Limited, a public limited company incorporated, domiciled, and having s
registered office in Mumbai,_ India. The Companyv was formed to take over the work and absorb
the staff from a large client of its parent, LTIMindtree Limited. The client closed its information
technology operations and transferred them to the Company. Historically, the Company had
always provided services solely to LTIMindtree Limited. U S. branch. However, effective the
year ended March 31, 2021, the Company started providing services to external clients. The
Company’s headquarters are in Edison, New Jersev in the United States of America.

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Limited. the parent company of LTIMindtree LLC entered into a
scheme of merger with Mindtree Limited, wherein Larsen and Toubro Infotech Limited 1ssued
shares to the existing shareholder of Mindtree limited. The merger was effective November 14,

2022 Further, Larsen and Toubro Infotech Limited changed its name to LTIMindtree Limited.

On January 31_ 2023, the Company filed a certificate of amendment with the State of Delaware
Secretary of State to change its name from Larsen & Toubro Infotech LLC to LTIMindtree
LLEC.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation — The accompanyving financial statements of LTIMindtree LLC are
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the International Fmancial
Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards as issued by the Intemnational
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Interpretations (collectively IFRS). These financial
statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Management on Apnil 19, 2024
Revenue is recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when incurred.  All amounts are
stated 1n United States Dollars.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and habilities at the date of the financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period.




LTIMINDTREE LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 231, 2024 AND 2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Use of Estimates (Continued) — The mmportant estimates made by LTMLL in preparing these
financial statements include allowance for doubtful accounts, revenue recognition, accrued
revenue, accrued liabilities, provisions for compensated absences, provisions for emplovee
benefit obligations, and other contingencies. The estimates are made using historical
information and other relevant factors available to management. Management believes that the
estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual
results could differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates 1s recogmized prospectively in the current and future periods.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents — LTMLL considers all cash which 1z used for current operations
with a maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. The Company believes
it 1s not exposed to anv significant risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable & Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — Accounts recetvable are recorded
at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. LTMLL maintains an allowance for doubtful
accounts for estimated losses mherent in 1ts accounts recervable. In establishing the required
allowance, management considers historical losses that are adjusted considening current market
conditions and the customers™ financial condition_ the amounts of receivables 1n dispute, and the
current recetvables ageing and current payment patterns. LTMLL reviews its allowance for
doubtful accounts periodically. Past due balances over 180 davs and over a specified amount are
reviewed individually for collectability. Bad debt expense is included in operating expenses in
the statement of income, comprehensive income, and changes i equity. LTMLL charges
uncollectable amounts against the allowance for doubtful accounts in the period in which 1t
determines they are uncollectable.

Retirement Benefirs — Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense
in the statement of income, comprehensive income, and changes in members’ equity in the
period duning which services are rendered by the emplovees.

Compensated Absences — Compensated absences are recognized in the period in which the
employee renders the related service. The provision for compensated absences totaled $0 and
56,194 at March 31, 2024, and 2023. respectively. Such amount is included 1n “accrued
expenses and other current liabilities™ in the accompanying balance sheets at March 31, 2024,
and 2023.




LTIMINDTREE LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revernue Recognition — Revenue 15 recogmized only when evidence of an arrangement is
obtained and the other criteria to support revenue recognition are met, including the price 1s
fixed or determinable, services have been rendered and collectability of the resulting recervables
is reasonably assured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
recetvable and is reduced for estimated rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from contracts priced on time and material basis 1z recognized when services are
rendered, and related costs are incurred.

Revenue from services performed on fixed-price basis is recognized over the life of contract
using the proportionate completion method.

Revenue from sale of products and licenses 1s recognized upon delivery when all nisks and
rewards are transferred.

Other Income — Interest income 1s recognized using the effective interest method. Other 1tems
of income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises.

Commitments and Contingencies — Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claums,
assessments_ litigation, fines, and penalties and other sources are recorded when 1t 13 probable
that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Income Taxes — LTMLL operates as a Limited Liability Company (LLC) under statutes of the
Limited Liability Company Act of the State of Delaware. Under those statues, the Companv's
taxable income or loss 1= distnibuted to its members, who report their proportionate share of
income or loss on their respective income tax returns.

LTMLL 1s a single member LLC and LTIMindtree Limited 15 1ts sole member. A single
member LLC 1s treated as a disregarded entity for income tax purposes, and all mcome and
expenses of a single member LLC are reflected on the income tax returns of the sole member of
the single member LLC. Therefore, all income and expenses of LTMLL are reflected on the
income tax returns of LTIMindtree Limited. Therefore, no provision for income taxes has been
provided in the accompanving financial statements of LTMLL.




LTIMINDTREE LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — At March 31, 2024, and 2023, the carrying value of
cash. accounts receivable, accrued revenue, due from affiliates, prepaid expenses and other
current assets, accounts payable, due to affiliates, accrued expenses and other current liabilities
approximmates fair value because of the short maturity of these 1tems.

Events Occurring After the Report Date — LTMLL has evaluated all events or transactions that
occurred after the balance sheet date of March 31, 2024, through Apnil 19, 2024, the date these
financial statements were available to be i1ssued. As of Apnil 19, 2024, there were no adjusting
or non-adjusting events that were required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements.

Reclassifications — Certain reclassifications have been made to prior vear amounts to conform
to current yvear classifications.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVAELE, NET

Accounts recetvable as at March 31, 2024, and 2023 represent dues from customers, related
parties, and accrued revenue of 3190.873 and $465.205. net of allowance of doubtful accounts
and expected credit losses of $2.191 and $2 390. The accounts receivable at March 31, 2024
and 2023 includes an amount of 5333.210 and $333.210 due from LTIMindtree Limited. India
and $30.284 and 50 due from LTIMindtree Lumated, U.S. branch, both related parties {see Note
8).

LTMLL mamntain: an allowance for doubtful accountz on all accounts recetvable. based on

present and prospective financial condition of the customer and aging of accounts recervable
after considering historical expenience and the current economic environment.

NOTE 4 - INTEREST INCOME

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interest income:
Bank interest 5 6,686 % 595
Crvarceas float interest 6,564 =
g 13.230 5 505

10



LTIMINDTREE LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

NOTE 5 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

LTMLL has a 401(k)-retirement plan (the “Plan™) for the benefit of its employees. As allowed
under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Plan provides for tax-deferred salary
contributions for eligible employees. The Plan allows emplovees to contribute a percentage of
their annual compensation to the Plan on a pre-tax basis. Emplovee contributions are limited to
a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the Internal Revenue Code. At its discretion,

the Company may match pre-tax emplovee contributions up to percentage of eligible earmings
that are contributed by employees. During the vears ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, the
Company contributed $0 and $534 towards the Plan.

NOTE 6 - CONCENTRATIONS

LTMLL had two customers that accounted for 7T8%. and 22% of its sales for the vear ended
March 31, 2024, and two customers that accounted for 68%, and 32% of 1its sales for the vear
ended March 31, 2023. LTMLL had one customer that accounted for 100% of its accounts
recervable at March 31_ 2024 and March 31. 2023, respectively.

LTMLL had two vendors that accounted for 62%, and 32% of 1ts purchases for the year ended
March 31, 2024, and four vendors that accounted for 30%, 26%, 19%, and 18% of 1ts purchases
for the year ended March 31, 2023. LTMLL had one vendor that accounted for 100% of 1its
accounts pavable at March 31, 2024, and no vendor that accounted for more than 10% of its
accounts payable at March 31, 2023

From time to time, LTMLL has cash on deposit with financial institutions 1n excess of Federal
("FDIC™) Lirats.

11



LTIMINDTREE LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

NOTE 7 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Emplovee benefits comprise:

March 312024 March 31_ 2023
Salartes b3 127.945 5 1,205,101
Payroll taxes 0158 83,047
5 137.103 5 1,299 048

NOTE S —RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

LTMLL had transactions and balances in the ordinary course of business with the following
related parties during the vear ended and as of March 31, 2024, and 2023:

No. Name of the related party Nature of relationship
1 LTIMindtree Limited. India Parent
2 LTIMindtree Limited US. Branch U8 Branch of the Parent

LTMLL s balances with the related parties amounted to the following at March 31, 2024, and
2023:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade and Other Receivables:

LTIMindtrea Limited, India 3333210 8333210
L.TDMindtres Limttad, U5, Branch 530,28

Other Pavables:

LTDMindtres Limted, India {5170.024)

L.TTMindtres Limited, U7.8. Branch (56.293)




LTIMINDTREE LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

NOTE S - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

LTMLL = transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business amounted to the
following for the years ended March 31, 2024, and 2023:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sale of Services:

LTIhEndtrae Lomited, T8, Branch (§167.983) S0
Overhiead Charged by

LTIhMindtrae Limited, India 170,024 S0

L TIMindtres Limited, 1.5, Branch 31239 3142 813
Other Income:

L TIMindtree Limitad, India 30 (3418312)

NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

subsequent events have been evaluated through April 19, 2024, the date these financial
statements were available for 1ssue. All subsequent events requiring recognition or disclosure
through this date have been incorporated into these financial statements.




SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




LTIMINDTREE LLC

SCHEDULE TO THE STATEMENTS OF INCOME, COMPREHENSIVE INCOME,

AND CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ EQUITY

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Operating expenses
Salaries 3 127943 1,205,101
Subconiraching 397,666 803,710
Payroll taxes 9158 93,947
Employee recrutment expenses 23,000
Travel (407) 1574
Allowance for doubtful debts (1949) (10,245)
Professional fees 170
Other taxes 1 300
Withheldimp tax 83302 163,158
Selling expenses 4104
Bank charges (126)
Total operating expenses 5 §17.466 $ 1284 693
Other mncome (expenses)
Inferest meome 3 13.250 395
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Other ncome/{expenses) 416317
Total other income (expenses) 3 13.250 417112
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LTIMindtree Financial Services Technologies Inc

(Fermerly L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc)

BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Member,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and Audited Accounts for the year ended
March 31, 2024.

1. Financial Highlights
2023-24 2022-23
Particulars
CAD CAD
Total Income 72,289 094 66905 436
Total Expenditure 47269027 45.396.936
Operating Profit / (Loss) 25.020.067 21.508.480
Add: Interest Income 3.224 970 1575715
Less: Finance Costs 12313 1.391
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 282327724 23082 804
Less : Tax 7.534 649 6.086.954
Met Profit / (Loss) after Tax 20.698.075 16,995 830

State of Company Affairs / Business Prospects

The gross sales and other income for the financial year under review were CAD 75.51 Mn
as against CAD 68.48 Mn for the previous financial year registering an increase of 10.27%.
The profit / {loss) before tax from continuing operations including extraordinary and
exceptionsl items was CAD 28.83 Mn and the profit / (loss) after tax from continuing
operations including extraordinary and exceptional items of CAD 20.70 Mn for the financial
year under review as against CAD 23.08 Mn and CAD 17 Mn respectively for the previous

financial year, registering an increase of 22.31 % and 21.78 % respectively.

3. Capital Expenditure:

As at March 31, 2024, the gross fixed and intangible assets including leased Assets, stood
at CAD 95,149,152 and the net fixed and intangible assets, including leased assets, at CAD
16,241,973. Capital Expenditure during the year amounted to CAD 5,305,296.
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10.

11.

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given or security provided by

the Company

The Company has disclosed the particulars of the loans given, investments made or

guarantees given or security provided in Note No. 10 of the financial statements.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend dividend for the ended March 31, 2024.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company,

between the end of the financial vear and the date of the report

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company, between the end of the financial year and the date of the report.

Reporting of Frauds

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud committed against the Company

by its officers or employees.

Details of Significant & Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts
During the year under review, there were no material and significant orders passed by the
regulators or courts impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in

future,

Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed/resigned during the year

There was no change in the Composition of the Board of Directors. Ms. Tina Allan and Mr.

Harsh Naidu are the directors of the Company.

Financial Statements

The Auditors report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification,
observation or adverse comment.

Auditors
M/s. KNAV Professional Accounts, Certified Professional Accountants are the auditors

of the Company. They will continue to be auditors of the Company for the financial
year 2024-25,














































































LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
(Registration number 2011/007226/07)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

ssued: 19 April 2024



LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
Financial 5tatements for the year ended 31 March 2024

General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile

Mature of business and principal activities

Directors

Registered office

External auditors

Business address

Postal address

Registration number

Bankers

Compliance statement by the corporate secretary

South Africa

Providing 1T & outsourcing support & all
other related IT services to the customers
in South Africa.

Mir. Ravindra Pravin Desai
M3 Geeta Desai

Mr. Pule Moiloa

Wr. Sudhir Chaturvedi

Mr. Srinivas Rao Veluvali

First Floor Rosebank Towers
15 Biermann Avenue
Rosebank Johannesburg
Gauteng

21896

Levitt Kirson
Chartered Accountants (54)
Registered Auditors

4th Floor, Alos Grove
Houghton Estate Office Park
2 Osborn Road

Houghton

2198

PO Box 225
Highlands Morth
2037

2011/007226/07

ABSA

The Secretarial Agent, Kilgetty Statutory Services (Pty) Ltd certifies that, according to company records, the Company

has lodged with the Registrar of Companies alf such returns as are required of a company in terms of the Companies
Act 2008 and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date in respect of the reporting period ended 31 March

2024,

Financial Statements

The financial statements were externally prepared by Levitt Kirson Business Services (Pty) Lid.
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Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Index

The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented

to the shareholders:
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The following supplementary information does not form part of the annual financial statements:

Detailed Income Statement 20

Tax Computation 21






Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Annual Financial Statements

Dur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance iz a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they

could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |deniify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements, whether due fo
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obiain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intenticnal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivensss
of the company's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the director.

=  Conclude on the appropriateness of the director's use of the going concem basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obiained, whether a material unceriainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the annual financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate. to modify our opinion.
Owr conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continie as a going concenm.

+«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the annual financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

‘We communicate with the director regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contrel that we identify during our audit.

‘We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Professional Conduct for
Registered Auditors issued by the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA Code), which is founded on
fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and
professional behavior. The IREA Code is consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants' intemations! Code of Ethics for Professional Accountanis (including International
Independence Standards)

= -~
J ".I L.- b " '[- f = "‘r-.

Levitt Kirson Chartered Accountants (5A)
Fer. AS. Lewis

Chartered Accountant (SA)

Registered Auditor

Johanneshurg

19 April 2024







LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Directors Report

The directors submit their report for the pericd ended 31 March 2024,
1. Incorporation

The company was incorporated on Sth April 2011 and obtained its certificate to commence business on the same day.

2012 was the first year of operation for the company, with operations beginning on 1st December 2012,

2. Review of activities

The company is engaged in providing IT & outsourcing support & all other related IT services to the customers

in South Africa.
3. Events after the reparting period

There were no significant events that occurred in the Company since the end of the financial year to the date

of this report.

4. Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concerr.
This basis presumes that the company will continue to receive the support of its related companies and that the

realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities will occur in the ordinary course of business.

5. Authorised and issued share capital

During the year uhder review, the company had a total share issued capital capital of 366 125 (2023 366 125)

shares. There are 6 275 unissuad authorised shares.
6. Dividends

I order to conserve the resources for future growth, no dividends is recommended for the FY24.

7. Directors

The following persons served as directors during the period under review and to the date of issue
of the financial statemeants:

Mir_ Bavindra Pravin Desai Appointed on the 20th of March 2013
Mr. Sudhir Chaturvedi Appointed on the 14th of September 2016
Mr. Pule Moiloa Appointed on the 14th of August 2019
Ms. Geeta Dezai Appointed on the 1st of October 2020
Mr. Srinivas Bao Veluvali Appointed oh the 25th of August 2022

. External auditor

Levitt Kirson Chartered Accountants (SA) will continue in office in accordance with section 90 of the
Companies Act 71 of 2008,



LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA [PTY) LTD
Financial Statements for the y=ar ended 31 March 2024

Employment Equity Report

Thiz discioswra enables @mployers to comply with Sscion 27 (1) of the Emaloymant Equity Act E5 of 1928 as amandsd.
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LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2024

2024 2023
R R
Miotes
Bssets
Mon-Current Assets
Right of use assets 2 1830556 51524575
Deposits - 1 887 570
Deferred taxation 3 2444 535 275 138
4275431 11 320087
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalants 4 59 3585192 26 242 587
Trade and other receivables 5 26 500 435 22 587 604
Current tax receivable = -
BS BOS B2E 45230191
Total Assets 90 171 057 60550 278
Equity and Lizhilities
Equity
Stated capital & 366 135 366 125
Accumulated profit 66 609 286 47678121
Total Equity 66975 711 48044 246
Liabilities
Mon-Current Liabilities
Finance Lease Liability 7 - 2056211
= 2056211
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 2 20474737 2663 674
Finance Lease Liability 7 2056211 7 540 582
Current tax payable Bibd 58 245 566
23 105 345 10440821
Total Liabilities 23 195 346 12 506 032
Total Equity and Liabilities 20 171 057 60 550 278




LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
Financial Staterments for the year ended 31 March 2024

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Motes
Revenue g
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other income
Interest received 10
Operating expenses
Operating profit
Finance costs 11
Profit before taxation
Taxation 12

Profit for the year

2024

(=]

134 B29 752

(96 286 524)

37 943 168
1610 252
3 651 100

{15 996 0B0)

26 238 460

348 544
25 B89 815
(6958 351)
18 531 465

104 587 186

(70 136 585

34 860 582
{266 209)
1339 601

(15 736 183

20 197 791

209 702
19 388 089
(5 304 097)
14 083 951




LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
Financial Staterments for the year ended 31 March 2024

Statement of changes in equity

Accumulated Stated Total

profit capital equity
R R R
Balance at 31 March 2022 33 594 129 366 125 33 960 254
Profit for the vear 14 083991 = 14 083 951
Balance at 31 March 2023 47 678121 366 125 48 044 248
Profit for the year 18 931 465 z 18 931 465
Balance at 31 March 2024 66 609 586 366 125 66 975 711
Mote - &

10



LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
Financial Staterments for the year ended 31 March 2024

Statement of Cash Flows

2024
R
Motes

Cash flows (utilised in) generated from

operating activities

Caszh used in operations 13 38 525 359
interest received 10 118 159
Finance costs [ 34E 644)
Income taxes paid 11 (B 705 211)
Met cash from operating activities 29 5859 663
interest from bank 3562 941
Met cash from financing activities 3562 341
Total cash movement for the year 33 152 604
Caszh at the beginning of the year 26 242 587
Total cash at end of the year 4 5% 395 191

1

2023

|zo

9 593 474

11% 950
{ 0% 702)
(5 118 050)
3885572

12195651
1219651

5105323
21137 265
26242 587




LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA [FT‘!’] LTD
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
Companies Act of South Africa. The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for those
assets and liabilities stated at fair value, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in
South African Rands.

1.2 Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when LTIMindtree South Africa (Pty) Ltd becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

LTIMindtree South Africa (Pty) Ltd classifies financial instruments, or their componant parts, on initial recognition as a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Mon-derivative financial instruments

Mon-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other
payanles.

Moh-derivative financial nstruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through profit and
loss, any directly attributable transaction costs, except as described below. Subsequent to initial recognition, non-derivative
financial instruments are measured as described below.

Trade receivables are mesasured at initial recognrition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irmecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidetice that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognised is measurad as the difference between the asset’s

carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discountad at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call depaosits.
Trade and other payables are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements enterad into.
1.3 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a
deduction from aguity.

1.4 Income Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or foss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive incomea.

Current tax

Current tax represents the expected tax payable on taxable income for the period; using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date, and any adjustrnents to tax payable in respect of previous reporting periods.

12



LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Accounting Policies

1.4 Income Taxation {continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognisad in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and lizbilities and their carrying values
for the financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temparary differences:

= the initial recognition of assets or lizbilities in a transaction that is not & business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxahble profit or loss, and

= differences relating to investments in subsidiarizs and jointly controllad entitiss to the extent that it iz probable that they will not reversz

in the forassesbie future.
In addition, deferred tax is not recognisad for taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Dieferred tax is measurad at the tax rates that are expected to be applisd to temporary differences when they reverse, bazed on the laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is 3 legally
enforceable right to offset current tax lisbilities and assets, and they relats to income taxes levied by the same tax autharity on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they int=nd to settle current tax liabilities and assets on 3 net basis or their tax assets and
lizbilities will be realised simultanecusly. A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed 3t each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

1.5 Leases (IFRS 16)

The company determines if an arrangament is 3 lease at inception. At commencement date, the company recognisas a right-of-use asset and
3 lease [iability on the balance shest. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease
lizbility, any initial direct costs incurred by the company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease,
and any lease payments made in advance of the l=as= commeancemant date {nat of any incentives received).

The company depreciatas the right-of-usze assets om 3 straight-line basis from the lease commeancament date to the earlier of the end of the
uzaful life of the nght-of-us= asset or the end of the lease term. The company also assesses the right-of-use as=et for impairment whean such
indicators exist.

At the commencement date, the company measures the lease liabifity at the presant value of the lease payments unpaid st the date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the leass if that rate is readily available or Larsen and Turbo Infotech South Africa (Poy) Lid
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments includad in the measurement of the lease liability 2re made up of fixed paymeants.

Subsequent to initial measurament, the liability will b2 reduced for payments made and increased for interest it is remaasured to reflect
any resssessment or modification, or i there are changes in fived payments.

When the izaze lisbility is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-
uze ass=t is already reduced to zero.

The company has electad to account for the short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the prectical expediants. Instead of
recognising a3 right-of-uss asset and lease lisbility , the payments in relation to these ars recognised as an expensss in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over tha legse tarm.

On the statement of financial positiion, right-of-use assets have been shown seperately under the non-cumrent assets and lease liizbilitizs
have been shown seperately under non-current and current liabilitiss.

1.6 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:

= LTIMinditrae South Africa [Pty Ltd has a presant obligation as a result of a past svent;

= it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and

= 3 reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be reguired to settle the obligation.
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LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Accounting Policies

1.6 Provisions and contingencies (continued)

Where some or all of the expenditure reguired to s=ttle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement
shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtuzally certain that reimbursement will be recaived if the entity s=ttles the obligation. The
reimbursement shall be treated as 3 separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amouwnt of the

prowision.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a provision.

1.7 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employes benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation isave and
zick leave, bonuses, and non-manetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are
not discounted render servicas that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

1.3 Revenue from contracts with customers

The recognition of revenue for the branch has in grinciple remained the same under IFRS 15 Revenus from contracts with customers as

under |AS 18 Revenus.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in 3 contract with 2 custemer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third

parties. The company recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

The branch recognises revenue from the following major source:
= Provizion of software development and services

Rewvenue is recognised over a period of time for the provision of services.

A receivable is recognised by the branch when sarvices are provided to the customer as this repressnts the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is required before payment is dus.

Interest revenue

Interest revenue s accrued on 3 time propaortion basis, with reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable , which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

@sset s net carmying amount.

1.9 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Management has not made any judgements or assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the naxt finandal year.
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LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

MNotes to the Annual Financial Statements

2. Right of use assets

2024 2023
Cost Are depreciation| Carrying Value Cost e Carrying Value
g is 5 il E depreciation hiric:
Leased assets 17 085 561 [15 254 965} 1830 5% 17 085561 {7932 582) 8152579
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2024
Opening Balance Additions Retiremeant Depraciatiorn Total
Leased assats 9152479 T [ 7322 383) 1830556
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2023
Cpening Balance Additions Retiremeant Depreciation Total
Leased assets 16 475 362 - {7 322 383) 8152579
2024 2023
i R
3. Deferred tax
Prowvision for doubtful debt 34 386 67 289
Prowvision for expensas 2197072 146 658
Prowvision for leave pay 244 266 23338
Prowvision for employee benefits 66 524 498 420
Ungarned revenus 10e 239 11
Prepayments (204 S6R) (236 407)
Right of use assets (494 Z61) [2 471 304)
Finznce lease lizbilities 555177 2591 134
2 444 835 279138
Reconciliation of deferred tax asset
At the beginning of the year 275138 288 345
Deductible temporary difference movemeant on provision for doubftul
debt {32903) (137 &35)
Taxable tamporary difference movement on provision for employes
benefits {31 897) 131059
Taxable {deductible] temporary difference movemeant on provision for
ENpENSEs 2050414 (65 331)
Deductible temporary difference movemeant on provision for leave pay 160928 g 820
Deductible temporary difference movemant on unearned revenue 106228 11
Deductible temporary difference movemeant on prepayments {28 161) {4075)
Deductible temporary difference movemeant on right of use assets 1877043 2141797
Taxable temporary difference movement on finance lease hiabilities {2 035 957) (1966 713)
2444 535 279138

15




LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Motes to the Annual Financial 5tatements

&, Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents consist of:

Current accounts

Fixed deposits and call accounts

5. Trade and other receivables

Financial instruments:

Trade receivables

Provision for doubtful debt

Deposits
Other receivables

Mon-financial insruments:

Prepayments

Total trade and other receivables

2024
R

4 395 192
55 000 D00

59 395 192

20432 278
{231 059)
2117 388
3201 247

973 882
26500435

2023

6083 253
20159 335

26 242 587

15343523
{284 431)
12 000
5040 928

875583
22987 604

Trade receivables inherently expose the company to credit risk, being the risk that the company will incur financial loss

if customers fail to make payments as they fall due.

in order to mitigate the risk of financial loss from defaults, the company only deals with reputable customers with
consistent payment histories. Each customer is analysed individually for credit- worthiness before terms and
conditions are offered. The exposure to credit risk and the credit- worthiness of customers is continuosly monitored.

There have been no significant changes in the credit risk management policies and processes since the prior reporting

period.

The company's historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segemnts. The provision for credit losses is therefore based on past due status without disaggregating into

further risk profiles. The loss allowance provision is determined as follows:

require ageing

Mot past due: 60.74% (2023 49.02%}

Less than 60 days past due: 37.49% {2023: 50.455)
61 - 80 days past due: 1.34% (2023: 0%)

91 - 1280 days past due: 0% (2023: 0%)

181 - 1 year past due: 0% (2023: 0%)

Mare than 1 year past due: 0.43% (2023: 0.545%)

Tatal

2024 2024 2023 2023
; Loss F
Estimated Estimated Loss allowance
i allowance . .
Eross carrying . gross carrying  (Lifetime
(Lifetime
amount at il amount at expected
expecte
default p‘ default credit loss)
credit loss)
12 £06 643 2010992 -
76858 343 2 244 500 -
273 960 -
BE 031 {28 031) BE 031 {88 031)
20 426 977 (BB 031} 16 343 523 (BB 031)
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MNotes to the Annual Financial Statements

[k
= |Z
L

366125

2056211
7540 582

9 596 793

& 702
1431 383

1235538

2683 674

104 997 166

1219651
119 550

1330601

2024
R
6. Stated capital
Authorised
450 000 ordinary shares at no par value
Issued
366 125 (2023: 366 125) ordinary shares at no par value 366 125
7. Finance lease liability
Mon current -
Current 2056 211
2056211
8. Trade and other payables
Financial instruments:
Trade payables 2604 754
Accruals 9681 B54
Maon-financial instruments:
Value-added taxation 1 666 595
Other payables 521134
Total trade and other payables 20474 737
9. Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers
Rendering of services 134 829 752
10. Interest received
Bank 3562541
Other 118159
3 881 100
11. Finance costs
Finance lease libility 348 644
Other =
348 644

752737
16 866

17
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LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

MNotes to the Annual Financial Statements

2024
B
12. Taxation
Major components of income tax

SA Normal tax
Current year 2124 044
Prior year underprovision =

Deferred tax
Current year (2 165 696)
Bate change during the year =
Prior year underprovision -

2023

1=

3275108
15784

{1081}
10 298

5304 097

15 348 089
5234 785

15784
359230

10 258

5304 097

15 388 089

{1338 601}
809 702
7322183

(6792 431)

(4 063 724}
(5 630 944)

9693474

6958 347
Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate
Accounting profit 25 889 815
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 27% [2023:27%) 6 990 250
Tax effects of adjustments on taxable income
Prior year underprovision- 54 normal tax 2
Mon-deductible expenses -
Pricr year underprovision- deferred tax {31803)
Fate change during the vear -
G958 347
13. Cash generated from operations
Profit before taxation 25 889 815
Adjustments for:
Interest received {2 681 100)
Finance cost 345 od4
Depreciation 7323 383
Met movarment in right of use asset, deposit and finance lease
liability {7 540 588)
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables {1624 861)
Trade and other payablas 17 811 063
38 525 359
14, Tax paid
Opening balance (245 568)
Tax charge 19124 044
Closing balance 664 398
Tax paid {8 705 211)

(68 725)
{5 294 850}
245 566

18
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LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

MNotes to the Annual Financial Statements

2024 2023

15. Related party transactions
15.1 Identity of related parties

LTIMindtree South Africa (Pty] Ltd is 2 joint venture between LTIMindtree Limited and Rossex Investments (Pty) Ltd in
ration of 69.58%: 30.42% (2023- 69.58% : 30.42%), respectively.

LTIMindtree South Africa (Pty) Ltd and LTIMindree Limited {SA Branch) are related parties in South Africa. LTIMindree
Limited {SA Branch) is a South African branch of LTIMindree Limited.

15.2 Balances payable to /receivable from related parties

Inter-group receivables - 1336565
Inter-group payables (8122 176) -

- 8122176 1336 565-

Inter-group receivable, relates to sales made by LTIMindtree South Africa (Pty) Ltd to LTIMindtree Limited (54 Branch).
Inter-group payable, relates to expenszes to be paid by LTIMindtree South Africa (Pty] Ltd to LTIMindtree Limited [5A
Branch), LTIMindtree Limited {India} and LTIMindtree UK Limited (UK Subsidiary).

15.3 Transactions with related parties

inter-group senvice income [LTIMindtree Limited (5A Branch)) 21910393 19 452 758
Inter-group marketing cost (LTIMindtres Limited (5A Branchi) - 2 643 705 (2 134 367}
Inter-group on-site support fees (LTIMindtree Limited (SA Branch)} (3 431 343) (3 375 221)
Inter-group on-site support fees (LTIMindtree Limited{India)) (70 562 202) (51 839 681)
Inter-group on-site product cost {LTIMindtree Limited, U% Branch) (2042 797) {1920 204)
Inter-group marketing cost (LTIMindtree UK Limited) (780 774) (373 685}
Inter-group insurance cost (LTIMindtree Limited(india)) (621 116) (280 046}
Inter-group conveyance cost (LTIMindtree Limited [5A Branch)) (149 137) (105 316)
Inter-group sponsorship cost (LTIMindtree Limited (5A Branch)) - {16 001)

(280 231 073) { 60 D44 521)

15.4 Transactions with key management personnel

Director’s fees

Mr. Pule Maoiloa 240 000 240 000
Ms. Geeta Desai 120 000 120 000
360 000 360 000
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LTIMINDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

Motes
Rewvenus
Services income 5

Cost of sales
Direct Cost

Gross profit

Other income

Foreign exchange differances

Imterest recewved 10
Other recoveries

Tenant aliowance

Gross Income

Expenses

Operating expensas

Audit fzes

Bank charges

BEE expenszes
Depreciation

Donations

Directors fees

Dioubttul debt

Expected credit loss
Insurance

Office expenses
Professionzl fees

Rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenancs
Salary to non- billable staff
Salary to support staff
Travel

Operating profit

Finance cost 11
Profit before taxation
Taxation 12
Profit for the year

2024

134829 752

96 886 584

37943 168

384273
3681100
12158979
5291 352

43 234 520
16 956 06D

50515
20575
1025500
7322 333
317 350
350000
{23 £28)
114585
754393
793 458
1335532
34359
2825438
2018479
3 530

26 238 480
348544
25339 815

{5358 351)

13531 465

The supplementary information presented doss not form part of the annusal financial statements
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2023

[==]

104 957 166

70.136 585

34 360 582

{265 529)
1333501
320

1073392
35933974

15 736 183

82000
37570
726420
7322383
207 410
350000
{450 200)
147 384
142 837
153 005
902 334
1056408
7E081
2204436
2425984

20197 791
809 702

19 383 089
{5304 037}

14 083991




LTIMIMNDTREE SOUTH AFRICA (PTY}LTD
(Registration number 2011/007226/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
Tax Reference number: 9204/345/18/6

Tax Computation
2024
B
Met profit per inocme statement 25 BEG B15
Permanent differences (Non-deductable/MNon-taxahie) 317 %50
Donations not in terms of section 12 4 317 850
Interest not deductible E
Temporary differences 7902 939
Provision for expensas - prior year (543 176)
Provision for expensas - current year 5137303
Provision for leave pay - prior year (208 &59)
Provision for leave pay - curment year Sl pEE
Provision for employee benefits- prior year (264 520)
Provision for employee benefits- current year 245 484
Prepaid expenditure not limited by s23 b - prior year B75 583
Prepaid expenditura not limited by 523 b - currant year (979 BE2)
Unearned revenise- prior year [41)
Unearned revenie- current year 353 479
Pravision for doubtful not deductible - prior vear (284 431)
Pravision for doubtful not deductible - current year 231059
Allowance Tor doubtiul debt - prior year 35212
Allowance Tor doubtiul debt - current year (103 702)
Depreciation F322383
Wear & tear 3
Interest on right of use asset 348 644
Interest on deposit (118 159)
Lease payments on right of use asset {7 BEO 226)
Tauahle profit for the year T 33110704
Donations [s18A) limited to 10% of taxable income (2 411 070) (217 950)
Taxahle profit for the year 33793 754
Taxation therson @ 27% 9124044
Tax lihility
Amount (refundable)/payables at the beginning of year 245 566
First pronisional payment {3428 347)
Second provisional payment {4 897 9&6)
Interest receivable
Interest paid -
Prior year sdjustments 5
Refund
Tax paid during the year (378 B99)
Tax provizion for the current year 9124044
Tax payable at the end of the year BE4 308

The supplermentary information presented does not form part of the annual finarcial statements
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L Tivimeiree Information Technology Services (Shanghad ) o Lad.

HOTES TOAUTOUNTS

FOR THE FINANUIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

5, Noptes o the main items of financial statemen!
{ Unbess otherwise specified, the following monetary units shall be RMB )

I+ Cash and cash equivalents
As ol December 31, 2023 Asdl Jutomry 1. 2023
ems origmal  Exchange RMA original | Exchange RMB
CITTERLY Hate equivalen CLITEnEY Rute exjuivalent
Clizgh o hank - - 21957 1R0AT = - 146450
Inchuding RAIE B - 2R62.15974 - - F30.4056.048
LsD I 3328 90 70289 0502093 12 VIRTY £ Bl by 978 45
Tkl - - 2957180 67 o - 23046450
2. Accounts receivable
(1)  Aging analysis
As ol December 31 2023
- | = = —
Proportion of the ot
Aylng Prospoition of
Balanee umouni ol sccounts =i OV [N
peavision | Yol
rece lvahle (")
Within | yeasr £330, 208 60 100.00 | . 5
Towul E.330, 209,80 IO o | . .
Al As o Sy |, 2023
Proponion of the ol :
Prisguartiom of
Hnlance NmUEnE o BeCounts POy LRION
provisron (%)
receivable (%)
Withibn | viesr 10,228, 563,56 1000 -
Toaul 10,339 583 46 11,00
{21 Muom socount neee ivahle
Proporiian ol the total amoim
Enitics A
of accounts eecivable ®s
LI imdinge Lmined, USA Branch 2.339.271.7% 808
1 P indree [imited Singapore branch 169538007 1927
Toshiba Careier Alr Conditioning Sales ( Shunghail
(10 R 811
Cin,Lad,
Total iA3ianle H5 47

30 Advonees 1o suppliers
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LTiMindrree Information Technology Serviges [ Shanghm ) Co., Lid

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(1) Aging analysis
As m December 31, 2023
. Properion of thw total
Aging Proportion of i
Balance pmouni of sdvances o privy ision
provision (%}
supplicrs ("a)
Within | vear 3919431 1 04,00 . *
Total 391,194 31 100.00 | - .
Aging As ol January 1. 2023
Proportion of the toial v _
Proportion of o
Balanee amount of sdyanees o oy isinn
) prowision (%)
supplicrs (e}
Within | year | 6. 260,00 100.00 - -
Tonnl 16, 2600 D0 10000
4. Otber receivables
(1} Aging analysis
Aging As ol Degember 31, 2023
Proportion of the toal
Properiion of
Rilnee amoimt of sceourits prowision
3 provision (%)
receivable (Ya)
Within | vear 162567591 0y 85 - .
Above 3 vears 2.300.00 003 - -
Total L628.173.91 100,00 - -
Agting As it Jimuary 1, 2013
Proportion of the ol
Propartion af
Balance amopnl of sgounts i provision
provision | %ol
receivable (%)
Within | vear 110573.13 98.00
Above 3 vears 2.500,00 .00
Tounl 11347303 0o * =
§.  (nher cirrent gssets

liems
Advanee payment of incoms Wy

Total

As ot December 31, 2023 | As ot January ), 2023
32963 80 23lna
31296380 231100

6. Fixed sssets-coq
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LTIMindwee Information Technplogy Services 1 Shanghnai) Co_ Lid

NOTES TOACCOLNTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBAER 2023

(1) Onginad Vahee

Aot As al Jmiany | Incresies Neeremses At December 1.
013 i 20023 w1 2023 202
Elecimomic eguipmeni T29835 1% 52 TUR.01 . - 125.782.00
loeal TIOR3 1% | SL708.91 | 1257800
121 Depreciaihin
Akl Dnaary | | neremas Deeremas As i December 31,
i 2023 in 2023 in 2023 M2
Electronic cawipmenl 49, 13001 - Lalinl 1 - - 69,543,627
Tonasl 49. 130,01 2041361 I 64,543.62
(3) Net Vilue
e As it Tanairy Increanes Dicreases As a1 Desember 31.
23 in 2023 I 2023 023
TTRp— 2348317 . | $6.238.47
Toal 2383317 56,23847
T. Delérmed my assers
- Ax ol January |, —— - As gl December 31
2023 A
Diterned tas assets 0491228 LAOSA016) P 1773.343.89
ol WIOIE LA0RAOLAN ] 1.773.343.89
K. Acoruesd payroll
As il Jenuary |, As i December
liemmy 2023 Incrense Decrease -
Winges paysble MWI262 2A0I9TE 265S6TO4KT | | AD6.H6TIN
Votal TEIA1L6T ILIDOMOTE 265567047 | 1I06S6THE
9. T payable
Items As 1 December 31, 2023 As al Jwpwnry | 2023
Vilue sdied ay 271.645.02 - 93,558 .04
Corporate moome flax RUL.9T6.41 -
ndividhinsl inicoime lax 158.081.36 . i 2&3.7!-;14
Fotal 142530299 15735620
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LTIMimdtree Information Nechnsdagy Services (Shanghai) Co.. Lid,

NOTES TOACCOUNTS

POR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20213

10, Oiher payvables

{10 Al malysis

Ax o Deegember 51, 2023

Agling Propotiion of (w ol
e amouni of ather paynble (%)
Within 1 vear 162263698 Jal
b0 2 years 2205603 024
20 3 yeurs AT 128 -H_ m
Above 3 veurs W20 513
Toand $.153.200.55 LM
Asar Janunry 1. 2025
Aging T Proportion ol the Lol
arpanint oF oiber pvable (%)
Withan | vear 4.059,543 46 E iy l]-‘i
| 40 2 vears HO3s0s3 511
240 3 vyrs 412038310 17 Ko
Fisuid £621.477.00 LR
(2} Main (iher Payables
Bk = Proporidon of the otal
amouni 6f viher pavable ™
L TIMindiree Limited ! 6MII0S00 . 7436
Tol 6,791 30509 I T-’r.:liﬂ
1 Delemred oo
lstms A al December 31, 2023 Asal Junwary 1. 2023
Deferred inome 1 132088611 :
Tl 132188411 =
12.  Palid-in capital
As ol
As 1l Joovary |, As o Januany Change Beesnier 30, /| s at December 310,
i 223 1.2024 im 2023 1023 223
Regisiened Registened Registecd | Repistered Cupital
Cupind (U500 Capial (RMED Capigl (LSD | [RMB)
LTIMINDY | o[l s —
REE SITE000 0 1(F4, 799 00 - CHTS (M), 00 | .074,7049,00
LIMITED
Tl SUTE000 030 074, 79,00 | - S175,000, M LO74,790,00
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LT indiree Infommaton Technology Sorvices (Shanghai) Co.. Lid.
NOTES TOACCOUNTS
FOR THE FISANCIAL YEAR EXNDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

13, Lindistrihiged profits
lwem F¥in2a
| Last periond imiissnbiiied profits before adfpstmans - AR 2T - (328622717
L U ndbserbaned peotls ot the heginming of the year aller adjistments - - -
L Nt profi in current penod I EJTG.!M;H - _I.H'FLIJUHU_
IV-Distributed profi 3
V. Imternal conven within Fquty
VI, Closing undwinbuicd profits S07.24752 | 4 H.'i;F E
4. Revenue
Tem Fy2o2a Fyao12
Lonsuliing service FHTIRAT5 81 2974347072
{hther 2492040400 -
l'otal 361581 9. 74347072
15, Husioess iy mnd surchinies
ltem FY2023 Fy2022
ity mmiintenanes 1773197 I iR3732%
Educarionl sumax AL 456.55 | 20,731,539
Lol etuuiton surchagpes I3.h]'-".?l I F 138 Ilit:il
Stanip s 12350045 .
Tasnl 9133738 I 82.923.56
th, Ceenernl and miminisimtive expenses
Bein Y2013 Fylorz
Safary 24.690.521.08 I6.355,427.18
Project managemeny fe 5,040.852.00 3,420,114 00
Professional conselling fees JRLEMG 0 IORTITS35
Recroiment e 1 RS% Sidin (W [ -
Poblic accumuilatiog finds G806 46 | 3 A92 78373
Trivel expenses 19338402 I 1 5%.135.99
Othiers BINGESSE | " 340365,38
liwal 7.4 642 22 - AT Th3.IN55%

L0



L e e L R e i T R TR ]
SIS T M LEm Ny
B T IS AN LA VAR ENDND bo (aa ) ind B )

17 Dl ssgummin
- Y= ran
e o pr— 181 24 Te T
[V e —— - RIS RL] | eIk
[+ SR | 41L.Hn ATl T
I g g l N M TR
Pt g , Ty _ I RLLE L)
b | Jasin Ao 12
I e
e | Ap i | AL
ko alal tay drn r nMum daEty
™ | maan s
N, ey -
e v AR H
[ e e kN e | [ T L W] | B.1Y ¥ T
[ I LT | AR ¥ O ] .
Vst _ AL AT AT . Eall 1 1l

& Boieed partacs e wiend PRTac Fas tase
I mlerne o ewr apwn Tcd o By e e = WY

(IR S Py ——
P B e e
[N —p— [ —
LIPS IRl LTI D L ]
LAT Tatmdeg o wes | mant Comretod e e
L TN mdner | amaad Sngapues hund T ST —" =
(R T PSRN — PSPy S—
| Ty | mmaod Cvmemet amd [T PTAp S S—
R v SR y— [P NPT ——

10 i | mid | W R L ermdad oy ey Parees comape




1B iy Inhwma i | omthog Yy s (Wanghes (6o | ad
NOTLS PO Al 008 %1
PO TR PP AN LA VAR ENEND B0 O] e el

11 B s by sl o el My Ibeaed wiemd partes

——y— - po—
L[N o (%A et [P—— 10T
1 i & i Sngapse oand Pe———— -
L T aniner | st vt heam® Pe————— "
LT re— [ | AP
UL P Sp—— [ o— ‘ o
L Lot Nebertans Bound | O puples | 108
R P pp— e =

T o el s Aoty puved

Dhemy = e o1 om mibnget o by squemey mveed


















PEGA& Co
Charsered Accommmmes

PNIIFESES ¥ AUITOES R ey

L T ST Te————
tmn-“mm—ummmuu:m

T P N T —
- -

hh—h____udl“l IAL DN, ey
CAT ot $ 00 UL 30 4LV ) (Vi { Sy ot
T L TR Y
A h—dﬂﬂﬁm-“—hﬁ-h
B | Aget JAEY ue 1) haret, U0 g ¥ (e @ ey - S— ) gl
P e S el VM, T, e
I S — Al b —y et ——

-h--_—.—u--h.hdh“h—m—i—dﬁ-ﬂ
wrs o V| gy - @ Hlﬂqi--ﬂd-“—.-ﬁ_-
S pmd s B (o i e e ronbed Ml T YW







PBG& Co
Chartered  bovownienty

Linipats L B et} e gre— e v b T Sated o W aadd 1 e dnad e b B
As vl Ar Saktw 1 TS IMrRenat Mbum rrt o ey W) e P gy L sy A
S B4 8 gy LS T

I A e R N K R T umep——
Emlaing e deckaete e slether e vl AT Liemisl demsesis ngvews
e g P ] PoATH 4 e Vel O by bay

ﬁ__ﬂh“-p_—-_ﬂ_ﬁ“—
L T T T e o P u—
retid Wl Sy ity Sding e suale

Mo sioe prrmal Meac haped ot gremame oif ¢ seTmer T Ty el comptied 3 0) e we
H_*“ﬂ_‘ﬁdmdﬁ
aIT) fum W) Rewats b Aaght & bew m ow adgpuulenes e Slere epplasily ruige

L R e |

Wy Bwe smpmnn w0 Sy 14w e el paspeny Nesmssl Setevver viach Ao Bu eam of
NI A s kel fa g s e Teer S e’ T vy 4 DN Sekdlie b amthen v

U rrpert m emended swicly Ie e was o B Conmpary + sereprenas be O wed pharpon ad dhuadd
e Lot 3 e el Be ae )tk pate

Ay My

The sl popes fanscsl cnssss: o e Crpey ke bu pon enbed Mash 15, 2505 wery

Ffor ML ACS
1 T Voo Cummay
AL P ot Kapatenes Nt |44 T6™

-
h-“_-
Farien
Fln e Vowbe \Aoniber vy Samber | 8114
Mae Agwt 21 3224 LENN 241401 LMY GME D)

TR e | o (e, Madhdin bt My At fan St Wogrnt. Bnis § o, Mt
L Rt (e Fat =% 20 FI AP N




e b WAL LY
Pty AT stgnay b 0 R MLV
B phs g 0 1) Baa s 1D

oy 3
i

- b8 e =




| _ i | _
bl :_ i



LT b (AL DEEV




el LT T
b’ﬂﬂnl!um.

W W A WY

T e —
Lt TR T T
P P B S p—
B g e 7 e 8

)

(iL




LTMAdee 2% ML I8 CV

Pty L AT Whetch B DE AL 00 CW)
WAy i Y 4 SN s e e ) P e ety
L e yuar eaed e tml ) Mt PRI

Mo o Mgt T ot —— —

L]

_I-‘-ll“ D4 Ay bt A — (AL TR T e m— ) i —
e W g e 81— —— e Ty s TR FE—
i ——— P —— - A i O e e b, o Ny — o B

T ot @ ) emary ¢ )T — et Y et e M 0 T —— . S ——
s s B w L. W WP | ey b e Ly

e by s e

4 EmEE 1 ba—
T — i S e PRl | R s e = SRR e e ———
- - e - B (14 o B dparyy Ak 1111 e el B ) e Sl S

By St I i, i T g | m P T e ey B g ar——— T —
e W — ] — " — —— | W———t  — g T A —

—— - E— T — -_ﬂ“ﬂ e — W
m———d_vﬂﬂh-_

——— — - — — | — Oy —— . —— 0 |t o & [y P S
e ) ——— Y —— A b el i Tt ey e Smen bt | e b ) iy, —
Y m— T g e A— v ey M S L PR S T e TR e Y
e g ——— i " b G—

b meim o S et ——
Tin S w pw— iy ey e vy o el el gl B e PN T et e
e g, — . B o S O Ve b A (B BT, €= e g A LT e
Py e F W A e e T ——— et e e e r— et e % 2t A e
Tl B T S - — o ——) ¥ W e S e e o S - &
_“l-h:n—--m—-__--m
N S e S g b ey B

B e e L
The ey iy mp———— | et | Fin g @8 g, e iy A R Ty e
| —— W L

T W T e e W e et i et P ¢ et b = P e
— A P SR T W — i T B e b . b, o s
Amgnen b ren e Y [y e W e b Paeim e J UM R 4 AR R e,
T ST N ey GTER | f—— e— e W ————t -
—— e S— e e S = S i = N b | A ety o o e

_‘.nl"
L3



L W & O AL DR GV

Moemmty LAT bebutans 3. OF B4R TV

Mt Lot it ! Bt b b gt e A Sid——
Vs W pee emdwd vmbay |] Whert b STy

“-—-—---—I-l—-_-'- T —
e

et L e e o e —— e e ey — W | —
— B - S 0 G—— 0 . — v T il ) g A——

vt o p— . V—" - A ——— w— Ty e —— g St = v AL —
ittt o ———————
—— VO Sy " —— P L o i ¢ i bt B — S e c——
-i_-ﬁ_-—-—_-—-l—uh_n_-—--
— N o T

---—ﬁ_&_ﬂ—_-—l_lﬂ-_
-'-_'I_—-_—"‘-_—_

—a— i, S G m—— - S—— e —— . P A Sm—— o v— | ———
b R o I I S — e Sy g W = R P S S Y —
hlll-ﬂ__'-—-__ll--*

ﬁ__ﬁ__u-_-_—-—u
--—-#—--f_ﬂ—-l—-i—m_hn—q_-

The (s e . ov— g —— S N = m— . e b S — T
s, St B ey b Sl PO & S—" gt W S— — -y

(i — — G — = v—y ] —— - ey p— (—
N — w crli— — LI ¥ w0 —— . § AP w— So— Bt g ——
T e Smm—— e M. —— — e d — . a4 —— b o s g

A
( ﬁ'-

- —















AMeives A IR AL BRC Y

oy LAY fansc & OF 82 DR C v ) .

ey Ay $ 8 T B amiibl Ficrer @l olonvam e

Bor e ywet smded emdoet 11 Ma s

L e Il LT o N R e——

-h—-—_ R — g B— T, S S|« Wy A A g -
Sy P e m ——— o —

T S LA——t i —y o | —— amrate
:—-W-—-—r-_- T S e S ab——
T —— Y S b WA b P e
B e 1 —— r— L b P A
B e e o e S A — —

F— bl ey T Py —— e i i — — i — . S 4 — s b —
—— -m#lh-—-n-um R e e i I ]
— S | — T T W V8 i, e T PR Tt ] W o—
S tEam W S T A ER g § e —————

P b . SRS S gl E— S P— W % TS ] Ty T gy b g e ary
e R bl l e e R T I TR ————
TIOR8 T o iy T e Y T G Ot o Sw— 3
e

g | kaing, o e bma s Ts - ama
18— g iy 1 b AR Sl e | = i g B i o B 5 50— —
T P — —— R W " a—

:_* Y e e ] e— am—— il iy hi—" b T TR SRV —
T bt L S B, s P o - —

R e it ST P RSN S r—
PR E C p] betn  —— — o — —

A R g —
n—n-—--—-.:-.n—-——- ey, @Y e e
-y SR Sl e B AL T e b e c— S i  a— o by w—

SE——— 8 T, — B BETEY & G S S - S p— -

Ll - ’

e -






L]

it




Il

l!
|

ulsi
i




ST -
fat e g sebed mmtas | W 4 4
e e g g Butee "y e e— g
b — s — 1.‘ 3‘
[T
Er s =
o E— e - - -
I W— S

—_ “-_
L —— —— —— -
- -t ~
b g— E L A L
T T —

e — i — M- -
o — p— LR Y= L%
- (3

e -+

e — — I=I-, -
—— ke -
e — | -

— NN

it v e w—— o v S e by e -
| ——









LTPerrng A 08 AL SR C W

F w—y L) A A DR R PR LY

e e e R e e LR T TR Ty
Pos Pt pra veted padtye () Meris FRIS

L |

—

TH P o ——

- »a.__
* -










| F——— O L N
Wty LAY WA | SN EL W D
M bty part ol S Jpm i .
Vo Ba pmae o ded vt § Mt P4

- —
e e B o b s
T -y - Lt ] AL
m—— P —— -
— WS
L B
S BT
S e - AR
L T Y
o — e p——— 5 . c— po —r R
- _..—__.—-h_ﬂﬁ
o
L__ LN IV )
T e R— BT Tl - -
- -
i —— 0 p— EL 1 b iy
T — et 8% o i = - = — -
 —— S -
B T I -
T A ety et W R g— e e — oo - -y -
Tt e —
- T LI . St B
|t i g
T s TR - -
N L e Rt — [EL L | ol -
L — — g - - .












LiMtvee & S8 RL GECY

e

—_-—m—l-n——--_—_--
— i . [ A T 0 — ) ] — i — Ly
i — o ——— g S Lk

 —— —y -

l_n—?-ﬂ-““-—“--_d__ﬂ—l-
By Y S— 1 — s By ) S e — — - ——
—y P A S— T | Bty W F— —— o — it i ]
e .  S—— Py —— 7

— P A R ¥ S S S — . ——
T . Ty (—— — 5 # TG - S——— U S—————




LiMeme & (8 0y 0 C o

Wty 40T bt O AL LYy "
Mg Sorema g e ® 3 N b Jam il et P o) b r—
R e L AN S )
R e T P e i T — e — b — — — |+ & —
i W il e e g Gp—

T — ——— Y B d—
m

Rl T .
B e ]
E—-_ .::A"'r
-l
p—— "
o w

. S W 5

St N o
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SYNCORDIS LTD

OIRECTQORS' REFORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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SYNCOQRLOIS LUTD

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SYNCORODOIS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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SYNCORDIS LTD
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023



SYNCQORDIS LTD

DETAILEG PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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SYNCORDIS LTD

SCHEDULES TO THE PROFIT AND LDSS ACCOLUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMSBER 2023
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TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

A. Equity

Subscribed capitsl
Retained profits brought forward

Met logss far the financiel year

Total gouity

B. Provisionz

Other provisions

C. Liabilities

T

4.

Lighdities to finencial matintionz

- of which remaining term up to 1 year
EUR 0.00 [EUR 88,385, 41)

Trzde payables

- of which remaining term up to 1 vear
EUR 542 28 (EUR 2,338.78)

Liabdities to affiliated companies

- of which remaining term ug 1o 1 vear
EUR 1,027,388 58 (ELR 580.874.85)

Other liabilites

- of which taxes EUR 1385376
(EUR 1085,541.24)

- of which remainicg term up w1 year
EUR 22,233,768 (EUR 113,241.04)

Financial Year
EUR

206,000,00
82947060

-180,333.96

804,134.85

118,983,568

0.00
RAZ 75
1,027,568.56

222393.78

1,080,204, 63

2,024,326.06

Prior Year
EUR

205, 000,00
1317, 222.68

487 7E1.68

103447060

94,100.00

BB, 38541
2,338.78
680,874 85

11324754

5BG B40.58
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LTIMindtree Switzerland AG
8004 Zirich

Balance Sheet as of 31.12.2023

31.12.2023 IMA2.2022
Assets CHF % CHF %
Bank balances 1881161.23 72138562
Cash and cash equivalents 1'881'161.23 05 721'395.62 202
Receivables from third parties 672'056.05 28271.25
Receivables from shareholders 0.00 25033 81
Receivables from group companies 455'400.61 H83'883 82
Valuation adjustment -T'673.26 -32'200.00
Trade accounts receivable 1"119'783.41 18.2 604'993.88 16.9
Other short-term receivables from third parties 16892593 112194853
Other short-term receivables 168'925.93 27 112'199.53 3.1
Work in progress 2953'908.37 2129187 .58
Non-invoiced services 2'953'908.37 479 2"129°187.58 59.6
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 40'065.80 0.6 2'343.50 01
Current assets 6'163844.74 1000 3670119.91 ag.9
Furniture, fixtures and cffice eguipment 215.74 630.00
Computers and IT 504.07 1194 50
Tangible assets 719.81 0.0 1'874.50 0.1
Non-current assets 719.81 0.0 1'874.50 0.1
Total Assets 6'164'564.55 100.0 3'571'094.41 1000



LTIMindtree Switzerland AG
8004 Zirich

Balance Sheet as of 31.12.2023

;s 2 31.12.2023 IMA2.2022
Liabilities and Equity CHF % CHF %
Accounts payable due to third parties -39'876.31 86995 39
Accounts payable due to shareholders 105'148.26 45°357 3%
Accounts payable due to group companies 4446722 16 218430403
Trade accounts payable 4'511'994.11 732 2'316'656.81 649
Other short-term liabilities due to third parties 402'454 20 2902651
Other short-term liabilities 402'454 20 6.5 290" 26.51 8.1
Short-term provisions 37'000.00 06 55'000.00 1.5
Accrued expenses and deffered income 1"134'917.98 15.4 265'876.00 74
Short-term liabilities 6°086'366.29 Q87 2'927'659.32 2.0
Loans from group companies (subordinated) 2'000000.00 0.00
Loans 2'000'000.00 324 0.00 4.0
Long-term liabilities 2'000'000.00 324 0.00 4.0
Liabilities 8'086'366.29 1312 2'927'659.52 82.0
Share capital 100'000.00 1.6 100°000.00 2.8
Statutory reserves 57000.00 5700000
Statutory reserves 57'000.00 09 5T'000.00 16
Result carried forward 487 335.09 7912524
Result for the year -2'666'136.83 408 209.75
Accumulated losses -2078'801.74 337 487'335.09 136
Equity 1921'801.74 -312 644'335.09 18.0
Total Liabilities and Equity 6'164'564.55 100.0 3'571'994.41 1000



LTIMindtree Switzerland AG
8004 Zirich

Income statement 01.01.2023 - 31.12.2023

2023 2022
Income statement CHF % CHF %
Revenues from senvices 4'526'697 49 482170235
Change in work in progress and non-invoiced services 848'719.81 2072947 58
Revenue reduction -4'942 14 20411.72
Revenue from services 537047516 1000 6'874'238.21 1000
Expenses for purchased sernvices -4'850°483.12 -2TH9°371.54
Direct expenses 4'350°'483.12 -903 2'Ta9371.54 401
Total operating income 519'992.04 &7 4'"114'866.67 550
Salary expenses -2'803'884.77 272784270
Social contribufion expenses -383'438 .55 -422'846.67
Other personnel expenses -15'465.13 -60'386.42
Personnel expenses -¥312'788.45  -61.7 321107578 -457
Rent -71'452.06 -30'323.85
Insurance costs and other charges -10'053.33 -24'862 .40
Administrative efforts and IT expenditure -87'560.08 -99'248 72
Advertising and travel costs -13828.80 -917323.92
Management fees 36854374 213862147
Other operating expenses 185'644.42 35 -A64'621.16 -5.8
Dperatlng result .b-efor.e financial results, taxes, 2607'151.99 -485 430°169.72 64
deprecation and impairment losses
Depreciation -1154.69 -T022.00
Depreciation -1"154.69 0.0 -1'022.00 0.0
Operating result before financial result and taxes -2’608'306.68 -4886 A438"147.72 g4
Fimancial expenses -45'551.00 54’979 55
Financial income 81025810 7819373
Financial result 35'478.10 0.7 23'214.18 03
Operating result before taxes -2'572'828.58 479 461'361.90 6.7
Extraordinary, non-recurring or prigr period income 807780 17790.95
Extraordinary, non-recurring or prior period resuit 8'07T.80 0.2 1'790.95 0.0
Profit for the year before taxes -2'564'750.78 473 4G3'152.85 6.7
Direct taxes -1'386.05 0.0 -54'943.10 -0.8
Result of the year -2'566'136.83 473 408°209.75 59



LTIMindtree Switzerland AG
8004 Zirich

Notes to the financial statements

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Notes CHF CHF

Details of the accounting principles applied in the annual financial
statements

These annual financial statements were compited in compliance with Swiss legal regulations. in particular the articles
on commercial bookkeeping and accounting in the Swiss Code of Obligations (Art 957 to 962).

Number of employees
Average annual number of full-time employees =10 and = 250 =10 and = 250

Obligations to pension funds
Obligations to pension fund as of 31.12 0.00 0.00

Extraordinary expenses and income

Extraordinary income: 807780 1’79095
2023

- a profit participation based on the existing contract for supplementary accident

iNsurance cover

2022
- small adjustments (CHF 100)
- CO2-redistribution {CHF 1690.95)

Significant events after balance sheet date

After the balance sheet date and until the adoption of the financial statements by the Board, no significant events have
occurred which might affect the validity of the financial statements for 2023 or need to be disclosed at this peint.

In accordance with Art. 959c of the Swiss Code of Chligations (OR), no further mandatory details need to be listed.



LTIMindtree Switzerland AG
8004 Zirich

Appropriation of losses

3 31122023 31122022
The Board of Directors proposes CHF CHE
Result carried forward 487'335.09 T¥125.34
Result of the year -2'B66'136.83 408 209.75
Total available for the General Meeting 2'078'801.74 437°335.09
Fetained eamings to be carried forward -2078'801.74 487 335.09
Total available for the General Meeting 2'078'801.74 437°335.09
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

The directors present their statement to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

In the opinion of the directors,

(a) the statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are drawn up s0 as to give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023 and the financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company for the financial year then ended; and

() at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the going concem assumption in
notes to the financial statements is valid and the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
fall due.

Directors

The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are as follows:

Muralestharan

Guiliaume Philippe Marie Desjonqgueres

Machiket Gopal Deshpande

Pierre Andre G. Hoet

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

Meithver at the end of nor at any fime during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose
object was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors' interests in shares or debentures

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Companies Act

1867 (the “Act™), the directors of the Company who held office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the
shares or debentures of the Company and its related corporations.

Share opticns

There were no opliens granted during the financial year {o subscribe for unissued shares of the Company.

Mo shares have been issued during the financial vear by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares
of the Company.

There were no unissued shares of the Company under option at the end of the financial year.

Doc 1D: f4355M2bf312dc46b2%aca 1 257T6ec 750630070



NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

Independent auditor
The independent auditor, Enfrust Public Accounting Corporation, has expressed its willingness to accept
reappointment.

Om behalf of the directors:

Pierre Andre G. Hoet Muraleetharan
Diractor Director

Dated as of 28 March 2024

Doc 1D: f4355M2bf312dc46b2%aca 1 257T6ec 750630070









NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

Mote 2023 2022
s5GD SGD
Revenue 4 4021581 6,806 927
Other income B 40204 221287
Expenses
Consulfing services costs (1,177.863) (1,093 763)
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 10 (126 440) (144 585)
Employee compensation Li] (7,773.963) (9,534 261)
Finance expenses T (186.479) (23.405)
Other expenses ] (856.078) (2.247.788)
Loss before income tax (6,059.038) (6,015 584)
Income {ax expense g g 16.592
Loss for the financial year (6,059,038) (5,008 997
Total comprehensive income (5,059,038) (5,993.997)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2023

Note 2023 2022
SGD SGD
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 21,149 328139
Financial assets, at FVFL 12 - 4
21,148 328,143
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 13 3,106,031 5,520,448
Loans to related parties 14 87399 773,754
Cash and cash equivalents 15 1,188.258 615,167
5.168.280 §,900. 369
Total assets 5,180,429 7,237 512
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 3,666,290 4585684
Contract liahilities 4 15,8955 22338
Loans from reiated parties 14 T571,822 2,364 945
Borrowings 17 - 102,508
11,254,067 7,075 475
Hon-current liabilities
Borrowings 17 - 167,637
- 167 637
Total liabilities 11,254 067 7.243.112
Met liabilities (6,064,638) (5.600)
EQUITY
Share capital 14 100,000 100,000
Accumulated losses (6,164.638) {105.600)
Total equity (6,064.633) (5.600)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Doc 1D: f4355M2bf312dc46b2%aca 1 257T6ec 750630070



NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

Share Accumulated Total

capital losses equity

SGD SGD SGD
Balance at 1 January 2022 100,000 5 803397 5,003 397
Total comprehensive income for the financial year £ (5.993,997) (5,993,997
Balance at 31 December 2022 100,000 (105,600} (5,600)
Balance at 1 January 2023 100,000 (105,600) (5,600)
Total comprehensive income for the financial year - (5.059,038) (6.059,038)
Balance at 31 December 2023 100,000 (G, 164.635) [6.064,633)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

Note 2023 2022
5GD SGD

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before income tax (6,059 ,038) (6,015,539)
Adjustments for:
Bad debts written off - 10
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 126,440 144 585
Gain on modification of lease liabilities (2.755) -
Interest expense 186 479 23,405
Interest income (22 490) (20.439)
Loss allowance of trade receivables - 11,202
Provision for unutilised leave - 3,465
Reversal of impairment loss of rade receivables {14.959) -
Unrealised currency translation differences 201,168 40244
Operating cash flow before working capital changes (5,585 155) (5,799 167)
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables 2451870 2,769 855
Trade and other payables (1,006.411) 1,413,144
Contract liahilities (6,383) (157 044)
Cash used in operations (4,236.079) (1,773.212)
Income tax paid - (110.561)
MNet cash outflow from operating activities (4,236.079) (1,883,773)
Cash flows frominvesting activities
Loans to related parties (112,588) 40974
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {2,165) (22 205)
Met cash {outflow)finflow from investing activities {114.753) 18,769
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid {9.462) (6.955)
Loans from related parties 5,056,120 2028360
Frincipal payment of lease liabilities (84.675) {93.845)
Met cash inflow from financing activities 4 061,983 1,927 560
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents held 611,151 62556
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of financial year 615,167 554 547
Effects of currency transiation on cash and cash equivalents (33 060) (1.936)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 15 1,158 258 615,167

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statemenis.

1. General information
The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Singapore. The address of its registered office is at 4 Battery
Road, #25-01 Bank of China Building, Singapore 049308 and principal place of business is at 11 Collyer
Cluay, #09-09 The Arcade, Singapore 049317,

The principal activity of the Company is to provide IT consulting services in the banking and finance sector.

2. Significant accounting policies

21 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards ("FRS™) under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and assumptions. The areas involing a higher degree of judgement or

complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disciosed in Note 3.

On 1 January 2023, the Company adopted the new or amended FRS and Interpretations of FRS (INT
FRS™) that are mandatory for application for the financial year. Changes to the Company's accounting
policies have been made as required, in accordance with the transitional provisions in the respective FRS
and INT FRS.

The adoption of these new or amended FRS and INT FRS did not result in substantial changes to the

Company’s accounting policies and nad no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior
financial years.

Doc 1D: f4355M2bf312dc46b2%aca 1 257T6ec 750630070



NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

22

2.3

2.4

25

Significant accounting policies [continued)

Mew of revised accounfing standards and interpretations issued but mot yef effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are issued but not yet effective
for annual periods beginning 1 January 2023, and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. The Company does not plan to early adopt these standards.

Effective date
(Annual penods
Title beginning on or after)

Amendments to FRS 1 Fresentafion of Financial Statements: Classification of 1 January 2024
Liabilities as Current or Mon-current

Amendments to FRS 116 Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
Amendments to FRS 1 Fresemialion of Financlal Stafements: Non-current 1 January 2024
Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments ko FRS 7 Statement of Cash Fows and FRS 107 Financial 1 January 2024
Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments to FRS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchanoe Rates: Lack 1 January 2024
of Exchangeability

Amendments to FRS 110 Consalidated Financial Sfafements and FRS 28 Date to be determined
Investments in Associstes and Joint Venfures: Sale or Confribution of Assels

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The directors expect that the adoption of the standards above will have no material impact on the financial
statements in the yvear of initial application.

Fundamental accounting concept

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis because the ultimate holding company
has undertaken not to recall the amount due to them until such time the Company is in & position, and to
provide continuing financial support so that the Company is able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

Revenue recognition

Fevenue is measured based on the considerafion to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for fransferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on benalf of third
parties.

Fevenue is recognised when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a8 promised
good or service to the customer, which is when fhe customer obfains control of the good or service. A
performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of revenue recognised
is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

The Company provides IT consulting services in banking and finance sector. Revenue is recognised upon
the customers have satisfied with the work perfiormed by the Company over the contractual period (i.e. over
time}. The amount of revenue recognised is based on the contractual price.

A contract liability is the Company's obligation to fransfer goods or services to the customers for which the

Company has received consideration from the customers or advance billing to the customers. Coniract
liabilities are recognised as revenue as the Company performs under the contract

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method on a time-proportion
basiz.

- 10 -
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

2. Significant accounting policies [continued)

26 Property. plant and eguipment

(a) Measurement

All property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost and subsequently carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised includes its purchase price
and any cost that is directly attribuiable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it fo be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Cost also includes
borrowing costs that are directly affributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset.

(b} Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to
aliocate their depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives as follows:

LUseful lives
FPropertias 24 to 43 months
Computers and accessones 3 years
Oiffice equipment 3 years

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting date. The efiects of any
revision are recognised in profit or loss when the changes arise.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use and
no further charge for depreciation is made in respect of these assets.

(c) Subsequent expenditure
Subseqguent expenditure relating to properly, plant and equipment that has already been
recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured relisbly_ All other repair and maintenance exXpenses are recognised in profit or loss
when incurred.

{d) Disposal
On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the disposal

proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. Any amount in revaluation reserve
relating to that asset is fransferred to retained earnings directly.

=
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2.8

Significant accounting policies [continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Asszets are tested for impairment whenever there is any objective evidence or indication that these assets
may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. If this is the case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of the asset {or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverabie amount.

The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amaunt is recognised as an impairment loss
in profit or loss, unless the assef is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such impairment loss is
treated a= & revaluation decrease.

An impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in
the estimates used fo determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The carrying amount of this asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that
this amount does not exceed the carmying amount that would have been determined {net of any accumulated
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is recognised in profit or loss, unless the asset
i5 carried at revalued amount, in which case, such reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. However,
to the extent that an impairment loss on the same revalued asset was previously recognised as an expense,
a reversal of that impairment is also credited to profit or loss.

Financial assets

{a) Classification and measurement
The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
« Amortised cosi

+«  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and
«  Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
ac well as the contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial aszet.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its busingss model for managing
those asseis changes.

At initial recoqnition

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial assetf at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, fransaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acguisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

T
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Significant accounting policies [continued)

Financial assets {continued)

(8)

(b)

Classification and measurement {(continued)

At subseguent measurement

1. Debt instruments

Debt instruments mainly comprise of cash and cash equivalents, frade and other
receivables, listed and unlisted debt securities.

There are three subseguent measurement categories, depending on the Company's
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset:

+  Amorised cost: Debtinstruments that are held for coliection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these
financial azsets is included in interest income using the effective interest rate method.

+ FVOCL Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
for sale, and where the asseis’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are classified as FVOCI. Movements in fair values are recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OC1) and accumulated in fair value resenre, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses, which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset
is derscognised. the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from eguity to profit or loss and presented in “other gains and losses”.
Interest income from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest
rate method and presented in “interest income”.

+ FVPL: Debt instruments that are held for trading as well as those that do not meet
the criteria for classification as amortised cost or FVOCI are classified as FVPL
Movement in fair values and interest income is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it arises and presented in “other gains and losses”.

P Equity investments

The Company subsequently measures all its equity investments at their fair values. Equity
investments are classified as FVPL with movemenis in their fair values recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the changes arise and presented in “other gains and
losses” except for those equity securifies which are not held for trading. The Company
has elected to recognise changes in fair value of eqguity securities not held for trading in
other comprehensive income as these are sirategic investments and the Company
considers this to be more relevant. Movements in fair values of investments classified as
FVOCI are presented as “fair value gainsflosses”™ in Other Comprehensive Income.
Dividends from eguity investments are recognised in profit or loss as “dividend income”.

Impairment

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
debf financial asseis carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, lease receivables and contract asseis, the Company applies the simplified

approach permitted by the FRS 109, which reguires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.

-~ £33 -
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2. Significant accounting policies [continued)
238 Financial assets {continued)
(c) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade date — the date on
which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are derecognised when the righis to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transierred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

On disposal of a debt instrument. the difference befween the camying amount and the sale
proceeds is recognised in profit or loss. Any amount previoushy recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that asset is reclassified to profit or loss.

On disposal of an equity investiment, the difference between the carrying amount and sales
proceed is recognised in profit or loss if there was no election made to recognise fair value changes
in other comprehensive income. If there was an election made, any difference between the carrying
amount and sales proceed amount would be recognised in other comprehensive income and
transferred to retained eamings along with the amount previously recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that asset.

Trade receivables that are factored out to banks and other financial institutions with recourse to
the Company are not derecognised unfil the recourse period has expired and the risks and rewards
of the receivables have been fully transferred. The comresponding cash received from the financial
institutions is recorded as borrowings.

29 Qifsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilties are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and seftle the liability simultaneously.

210 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liahilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. They are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or ess (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are inifially recognised at fair value, and subsequenthy carried at amorised cost
Lsing the effective interest method.

211 Provisiens for other ligbilities and charges

Provisicns for other liabilities and charges are recognised when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an cutflow of resources will
be reguired to seftle the obligation and the amount has been refiably estimated.

212 Borrowings

Borrowings are imitially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost Any difference between the proceads (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the bormowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings which are due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date are presented as current
borrowings in the statement of financial position even though the original term was for a period longer than
12 months and an agreement fo refinance, or to reschedule payments, on a long-term basis is completed
after the reporting date and before the financial statements are authorised for issue. Other borrowings due
to be setfled more than 12 months after the repeorting date are presented as non-current borrowings in the
statement of financial position.

- 14 -

Doc 1D: f4355M2bf312dc46b2%aca 1 257T6ec 750630070



NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

2. Significant accounting policies [continued)

213 Fair value estimation

The fair values of current financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate their carrying
amounts.

214 Income taxes

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or
recoverad from the tax authorities, using the iax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is
probabie that a tax authority will accept an uncertain fax tfreatment. The Company measures its tax balances
either based on the most likely amount or the expecied value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred income tax arises
from the inifial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the fime of the transaction.

A deferred income fax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deduciible temporary differences and tax losses can be ufilised.

Deferred income {ax is measured:

(i) at the tax rates that are expected fo apply when the related deferred income {ax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is setfled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date; and

(i) based on the tax consequence that will follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at
the reporting date, to recover or sefile the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities except for
investment properties. Investment property measured at fair value is presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale.

Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or exXpense in profit or loss.

The Company accounts for investment {ax credits (for example, productivity and innovation credit) simitar
to accounting for other tax credits where a deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax credits to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credits can
be ufilised.

215 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand and deposits with financial institutions which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. For
cash subjected to restriction. assessment is made on the economic substance of the restriction and whether
they meet the definition of cash and cash equivalents.

216 Share capital

Crdinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new
ordinary shares are deducted against the share capital account.

- 15 -
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Significant accounting policies [continued)

Leases (when the Company is the lessee)

At the inception of the contract. the Company assesses if the contract contains a lease. A contract contains
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an ideniified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Reassessment is only reguired when the terms and conditions of the contract
are changed.

(a) Right-of-use assets ("ROU")

The Company recognised a right-of-use asset and |ease liability at the date which the underiying
assel is available for use. Righi-of-use assefs are measured at cost which comprises the initial
measurement of lease liabilities adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date and lease incentive received. Any initial direct costs that would not have been
incurred if the lease had not been obtained are added to the carrying amount of the right-ofuse
assels.

These right-of-use assets are subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease ferm.

Right-of-use assets (except for those which meets the definition of an investment property) are
presented within “Property, plant and equipment™.

() Lease liabilities

The initial measurement of lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments
discounted using the implicit rate in the lease, if the rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company shall use its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include the following:

- Fixed pavment (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivables;

- Variable leaze payment that are based on an index or rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

- Amount expected to be payable under residual value guarantees;

- The exercise price of a purchase option if is reasonably ceriain to exercize the option; and

- Payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the |ease term reflects the Company
exercising that oplion.

For contract that contain both lease and non-fease components, the Company allocates the
consideration to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
and non-lease component The Company has elected to not separate lease and non-lease
component for property leases and account these as one single lease component

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Lease liability
shall be remeasured when:

- There is a change in future lease payments arising from changes in an index or rate;

- There is 2 change in the Company’s assessment of whether it will exercise an extension
option; or

- There is modification in the scope or the consideration of the lease that was not part of the
ariginal term.

Lease ligbilify is remeasured with a corresponding adjusiment fo the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use azset has been reduced to Zero.

-16 -
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218

219

Significant accounting policies [continued)

Leases (when the Company is the lessee) (confinued)

(c) Short term and low value leases

The Company has elected to not recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
lgases that have lease ferms of 12 months or less and leases of low value leases, except for
sublease arrangements. Lease payments relating to these leases are expensed to profit ar loss an
a siraight-line basis over the lease term.

(d) Variable lease payments
Variable lease payments that are not based on an index or a rate are not included as part of the
measurement and initial recognition of the lease ability. The Company shall recognise those lease
payments in profit or loss in the periods that triggered those lease payments.

Employee compensation

Employvee benefits are recognised as an expense, unless the cost gualifies to be capitalised as an asset.
{a) Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company pays
fized contribufions info separate entities such as the Central Provident Fund on a mandatory,
confractual or voluntary basis. The Company has no further payment obligations once the
contriputions have been paid.

() Shori-term employee benefits

Short-term employes benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected fo be
paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee. and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Currency franclation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency™). The financial
statements are presented in Singapore Dollars, which is the funclional currency of the Company.

() Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the funclional currency (“foreign currency”™) are franslated
into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the tranzactions. Cumency
exchange differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumrencies at the closing rates at the
reporiing date are recognised in profit or loss. Monetary items include primarily financial assets
(other than equity investments), contract assets and financial liabilities. However, in the financial
statements, currency translation differences arising from borrowings in foreign currencies and
other currency instruments designated and gqualifying as net investment hedges and net
invesiment in foreign operations, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the cumency transiation reserve.

Mon-monetary items measured at fair values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair values are determined.

T
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(@)

(b)

(i)

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

There are no critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements made by the Company concerning
the future.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with cusiomers

2023 2022
SGD SGD
IT consulling senvices 4,021,581 6,806,927
4 021,581 6,806,927
All the sales are recognised over time
Contract liabilities
31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
SGD SGD SGD
Contract liabilities
- IT consufting services 15,855 22 338 179,382
Total contract liabilities 15.955 22338 179,382

The contract liahilities refate to consideration received from customers for the unsatisfied performance
obfigation in providing IT consulting senvices. Revenue will be recognised when the [T consulting services
are provided to the cusiomers.

The change in contract liabilities balances is mainly due to the decrease in advance billing to the customers.

Revenue recognised in relation {o contract liabilities

2023 2022
3GD SGD
Revenue recognised in current period that was included in the
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the period
- [T consulting services 22338 179,382
22333 179,382

Unsafisfied performance obligations

As permitted under FRS 115, the aggregated transaction price gllocated to unsatisiied contracts of perod
one year or less, or are billed based on time incurred, is not disclosed.

- 48 -
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5. Other income
2023 2022
5GD SGD
Gain on modification of lease lizbilities 2,755 -
Government grant — ofhers - 200,798
Interest income 22,480 20,489
Reversal of impairment loss of trade receivables 14,958 -
40204 221 287

Inferast income

Interest income is recognised on a fime-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

B. Employee compensation
2023 2022
sGD SGD
Salaries and wages T.482.272 3.830,320
Employer's contribution to Central Provident Fund 285891 369,104
Oither benefits 5800 334 837
7,773,863 9534 261
T. Finance expenses
2023 2022
SGD SGD
Interest on l2ase [abilties 9462 §,855
Interest on loan 177,007 16,450
186479 23,405
8. Other expenses
2023 2022
SGD SGD
Administrative and service fee - 221264
Advertisement 34 402 -
Bad debts written off - 10
Consuliation fee 29,262 620,017
Foreign exchange differences (net) 214,680 81372
General expenses 33,975 a74
Insurance 128291 158,556
IT expenses 51,345 109,998
Loss allowance of frade receivables - 11,202
Frofessional fees 8,000 401554
Recruitment fee - 416,303
Staff accommaodation - 55,842
Traveliing expenses 230,085 98,716
Others 65,038 20,941
856,078 2247 7848

- 19 -
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9, Income tax expense

There iz no current income fax expense as the Company is in a loss making position.

(a) Income tax expense
2023 2022
SGD SGD
Tax expense attributable to profit is made up of:
- Deferred income tax - (14,040}
= (14,049)
Over provision in prior financial years = {2,543}
- (16.582)

The tax expense on loss differs from the amount that would arise using the Singapore standard rate of
income tax as follows:

2023 2022

SGD SGD
Loss before income tax (6,059 033) (6.015 584)
Tax calculated af a fax rate of 17% (1.030,036) (1.022,650)
Effects of:
- Expenses nof deductible for tax purposes 16,047 20,630
- Deferred income tax assets noi recognised 1,013,989 F57.921
Tax charge - (14,049)

At the reporting date, the Company has unabsorbed tax losses estimated at SGD11,638,271 (2022
SGD5,811,300) available for offsetting against any future taxabie income subject to the provisions of tax
legislation. The deferred income tax henefits have not been recognised in the financial statements as it is
not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be ulilised.

b) Movements in current income tax ligbifities
2023 2022
SGD SGD
Beginning of financial year - 113,104
Income tax paid - (110,561)
Cwer provision in prior financial years - (2.543)

End of financial year -

- 20 -
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10. Property, plant and equipment

Computers
and Office
Properties accessories  equipment Total
SGD SGD SGD SGD
2023
Cost
Beqinning of financial year 603,143 264,223 3.553 70,919
Additions - 2,165 - 2,165
Modification of lease liabilities (603,143) - - (603,143)
End of financial year - 266,383 3.553 269 941
Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning of financial year 332 491 206,736 3.553 h42 T80
Depreciation charge &7.937 38,503 - 126,440
Modification of lease iabilities (420.428) - - (420 428)
End of financial year - 245 239 2,553 248 792
Met Book Value
End of financial year - 21,149 - 21149
2022
Cost
Beqinning of financial year 286 568 242 018 3553 532139
Additions 70,360 22 205 - 92 565
Modification of lease habiliies 246 215 - - 246,215
End of financial year 603,143 264 223 3.553 a70.819
Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning of financial year 238917 154 725 3.553 398 195
Depreciation charge 92 574 52011 - 144 585
End of financial year 332 491 206,736 3.563 h42 780
Met Book Value
End of financial year 270,652 57 A48T - 328139

ROU assets acguired under leasing arrangements are presented together with the owned assets of the
same class. Details of such leased assets are disclosed in Note 11.

Dwring the current vear, the Company modified existing lease contract for properties by terminating the lease
contract. As this termination is not part of the original lease contract, it is accounted for as lease modification

to the right-of-use assets, classified under ‘Property, plant and equipmenit. The comesponding
remeasurement to lease liabilities are recorded under "Borrowings’. (Note 17)

el I
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11.

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)
(e)

12

Leases — The Company as a lessee

Mature of the Company's leasing aclivities

Properties

The Company leases office space for the purpose of back office operations.

ROLU asseis classified within property, plant and equipment during the financial year was nil {2022

SGD270,652)

Depreciation charge during the financial year was SGDET 937 (2022: SGD92 574).

Interest expense on lease liabilities during the financial year was SGDO 462 (2022 SGDG, 955).

Total cash outflow for all the leases was SGD94, 137 (2022 SGD100,800).

Addition of ROU assets during the financial yvear was nil (2022: SGD7T0,360).

Financial assets, at FVPL

Beginning of financial year
Disposal
End of financial year

At the reporting date, financial assets, at FVPL included the following:

Unlisted securiies:
- BEquity securities - Thailand

2023 2022
SGD SGD
4 4
(4) -
- 4
2023 2022
SGD SGD
- 4
- 4

At the reporting date, the carrying amount of financial assets, at FVFPL approximates its fair value

Financial assets. at FVFL is denominated in Thai Baht

S
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13. Trade and other receivables
2023 2022
SGD SGD
Trade receivables:
- third parties 876 983 2 964 908
- related entities 1,875.974 2 1556 825
- immediate holding company 14.034 14.034
- ultimate holding company 93.510 -
2960501 5,134,825
Loss allowance (294) {15,853)
Trade receivables — net 2950 607 5,118,872
Other receivable:
- related entities 58.130 35,821
Deposits 57,593 205,509
FPrepaid operating expenses 30,701 160_146
3,106,031 B 520 448

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the credit periods range from 30 to 60 days (2022: 30 to 60
days).

Dues from reiated entities are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
At the reporting date, the carrying amounis of frade and other receivables approximate their fair value.

Trade and other receivables are denominated in the following curmrencies:

2023 2022

sGh SGD
Australian Doliars 54 463 86,833
British Pound - 11,384
Euro 191.093 05 285
Hong Kong Doflars 14,662 14662
Malaysian Ringgits - 35
Singapore Dollars 281,637 1,286,289
Thai Baht 2,804 -
LS Dollars 1,861.372 4,024 959

3 106,031 b 520, 448

S,
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14.

Loans to/from related parties

2023 2022
SGD SGD
Loans to related parties:
Diue within 1 year
- refated entities 873991 773,754
873,901 773,754

The loans to related entities are unsecured and the details are as follows:

Description Cutstanding amount interesirate Wiaturity
2023 2022 2023 2022
SGD SGD % %o
Related entities
-Loan 1 763,917 73,754 25 25 31 December 2024
-Loan 2 76,829 - & - 31 July 2024
-Loan 3 33,245 - & - 31 July 2024
2023 2022
SGD SGD

Loans from related parties:
Due within 1 year

- related entities 7279922 2,078,285
- immediate holding company 201 900 286,660
7.571222 2364945

The loans from related entities and holding company are unsecured and the details are as follows:

Description Cutstanding amount Interest rate Maturity
2023 2022 2023 2022
3GD 3GD % %
Related enfities
- Loan 1 1,021,650 1,003,310 15 15 30 June 2024
- Loan 2 437,850 429 930 2.5 2.5 1 October 2024
-Loan 3 - h73,320 - Z5 30 Movember 2023
-Loan 4 - 71,665 - 25 31 December 2023
-Loan 5 875,700 - 25 - 31 March 2024
- Loand 102,165 - 25 - 31 March 2024
-loanT 583,800 - 25 - 30 April 2024
-Loan & 437 850 - 4 - 31 May 2024
- Loan @ h54.610 - ] - 31 March 2024
- Loan 10 437 850 - i - 31 August 2024
- Loan 11 189,735 - i) - 30 September 2024
- Loan 12 145,950 - i - 31 October 2024
Fmonth

- Loan 13 2,492 762 - SIBOR +2.3 - 20 June 2024
Immediate holding company
- Loan 1 291 900 286 660 25 25 31 December 2024

At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of loans tofrom related paries approximate their fair value.

-4 -
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14. Loans to/from related parties (continued)

Loans tofrom related parties are denominated in the following currencies.

2023 2022
sSGD SGD
Loans to related parties:
Australian Doliars 763,917 T73.754
Singapore Dollars 33,245 -
Thai Baht 76,829 -
273,991 Ti3.754
2023 2022
3GD SGD
Loans from related parties:
Canadian Dollars 2,492 762 =
Euro 5.079.060 2364945
7,571,222 2 364,945

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities as follows:

Monm-cash changes

Foreign
Beginning of exchange End of
financial year  Proceeds Repayment movement  financial year
SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD
2023
Loans from related parties 2,364,945 6,138,032 (1,08%912) 150,757 7571822
2,364,945 6,138,032 (1081912} 150,757 7571822
2022
Loans from related parties 309 580 2,028 380 - 27,005 2 364 945
309,580 2028380 - 27,005 2 364,945
- 25 -
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

15.

Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022

5GD 5GD
iCash and bank balances 1,188,258 615,167
1,188,258 615167

At the reporting date. the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair value.

Cash and cash egquivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022

SGOD SGD
Singapore Dollars 250,603 411,004
US Dollars 037 565 204 163
1,188,258 615,167

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the cash and cash equivalents comprised the following:

2023 2022

SGD SGD
Cash and cash equivalents (as above) 1,188,258 615,167
Cash and cash equivalents per statement of cash flows 1,188 258 615,167

- 26 -

Doc 1D: f4355M2bf312dc46b2%aca 1 257T6ec 750630070



NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

16.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables:

- related entities

- ultimate holding company
Other payahies:

- third parties

- related entities

- immediate holding company
- director

Accrued operating expenses

2023 2022
SGD SGD
1,330,497 2,529,133
1739 E
214,919 162,140
138,259 10,289
981,296 914,015
- 11,779
999 530 953,323
3,666,200 4 585 634

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the credit period is 30 days (2022 30 days).

Dues to related entities and immediate holding company are unsecured, interest-iree and repayable on

demand.

In the previous financial year, due to a director is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

At the reporting date, the carrying amounis of trade and other payables approximate their fair value.

Trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

British Pound

Canadian Dollars

Euro

Hong Kong Doflars

Indian Rupees

Malaysian Ringgits
Singapore Dollars

Thai Baht

United Arab Emirati Dirhams
US Dollars

Sl b

2023 2022
SGD SGD
293 -
40,385 -
2,194,608 2,072,585
= (20,370)
3222 21,912
< 76
1,169,094 1,794,448
3,264 4
= 24 456
255,334 692,573
3,666,200 4,585,634
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

17.

(&)

(b)

18.

Borrowings
2023 2022
SGD SGD
Current:
Lease liabilities | il i 102,508 |
Total current borrowings - 102 508
Mon-current:
Lease liabilities - 167,637 |
Total mon-current Dorrowings - 167 637
= 270,145
Currency risk
Total borrowings are denominated in Singapore Dollars.
Reconciliation of liabiliies arising from financing acfivities
Mon-cash changes
Principat
Beginning of and interest Modification of End of
financial year payments lease liabiities Additions Intzrest expense financial year
=1l SGED =Tcial SGED =G0 =tcin]
2023
Lease fiahilities 270,145 {04,137) (185.470) o452 5
270,145 {D4,127) {125.470) 9,452 7
2022
Lease labilities 47.415 {100, 800 248,215 70,380 6,055 270,145
47.415 (100,800) 248,215 70,360 8,055 270,145

Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset curment
income tax assefs against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income faxes relate to the

same taxation authority.

Deferred income fax assets not recognised at the reporting date is as follows:

Accelerated tax depreciation
FProvision
Unabosribed tax losses

- 28

2023 2022
SGD SGD
173 goa
152 2605
1,978,506 987 921
1,978,837 901,524
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

14. Share capital

2023 022
SGD0D SGD
100,000 ordinary shares issued and fully paid 100,000 100,000

All issued ordinary shares are fully paid. There is no par value for these ordinary shares.

Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry a right fo dividends as and when declared by
the Company.

20. Related party transactions

For the purposes of these financial siatements, parfies are considered to be related to the Company if the
Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence owver the
party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa. or where the Company and the party are
subject to common control or commaon significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other
enfities.

201 The following transactions took place between the Company and related parties at terms agresd between

the parties:
2023 2022
8GD SGD
Revenue:
Revenue charged to ulimate holding company 143,189 -
Revenue charged to immediate holding company - 14,034
Revenue charged to related entities 2,331,863 3,569,461
Loan interest charged to reiated eniities 22 490 20,439
Expenses:
Expenses charged by uliimate holding company 14,243 -
Expenses charged by immediate holding company 132,040 221,264
Expenses charged by related entifies 905 369 1,029,374
Loan interest charged by immediaie holding company 7,787 6,160
Loan interest charged by related entities 169,220 10,290
Others:
Expenses paid on behalf by director - 19,807

Balances with related parties at the reporting date are set out in Motes 13, 14 and 16.

202 Key management personnel compensation is as follows:

2023 2022
8GD SGD
Directors of the Company:
Salaries and other short-term employes benefits 403,300 416100
Fost-employment benefits - contribution to CPF 17,340 17,340
420,640 433,440

- 20 -
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

21. Immediate and ultimate holding company
The immediate heolding company is Mielsen+Pariner Unternehmensberater GmbH, incorporated in
Germany. The ultimate holding company is LTiMindiree Ltd., incorporated in India.
22. Financial risk management
The Company’s aclivities expose it to a variety of financial risk.
(i} Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities, primarily with respect to the Australian Dollars, British Pound,
Canadian Dollars, Euro, Hong Kong Dollars, Indian Rupees, Malaysian Ringgits, Thai Eaht, United
Arab Emirati Dirhams and US Dollars. The Company monitors the foreign currency exchange rate

movementis closely to ensure that their exposures are minimised.

The Company's currency expasure based on the information provided to key management is as

follows:

2023 2022

5GD SGD
Austraian Dollars:
Trade and other receivables 54 463 86,833
Loans to related parties 763,917 773754
Met financial assets 418,380 860587
British Pound:
Trade and other receivables - 11,384
Trade and other payahles (293) -
Met financial (liabilities azsets (293 11,384
Canadian Dollars:
Trade and other payables (40, 385) -
Loans from related parties (2 4492 762) -
Met financial liabilities (2 533.147) -
Euro:
Trade and other receivables 191,093 96,113
Trade and other payables (2,194 698) (2,072 585)
Loans from related parties (5,079 060) (2,364.945]
Met financial liabilities (7082 665) (4,341 417)
Hong Kong Dollars:
Trade and other receivables - 14,662
Trade and other payahbles - 20,370
Met financial assets - 35,032
Indian Rupees:
Trade and other payables (3,222) (21.912)
Met financial liabilities (3,222) (21.912)
Malaysian Ringagits:
Trade and other pavables - {76)
Met financial liabilities - (76)
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

22,

Financial risk management (continued)

(1)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

2023 2022

SGD SGD
Thai Baht:
Trade and other receivables 2804 -
Loans to related parties 75,829 -
Trade and other payahies (3,264) {4)
Met financial assets/(liabilities) 75,369 (4
United Arab Emirati Dirhams:
Trade and other payahles - (24.456)
Met financial liabilities - (24 456)
S Dioliars:
Trade and other receivables 1,961,372 4024 959
Cash and cash equivalents Q37,565 204163
Trade and other payahies {255 334) (692 573)
Met financial assels 2643603 3,536,544

At the reporting date, if the the Australian Dollars, British Pound, Canadian Dollars, Euro, Hong
Kong Dollars, Indian Rupees, Malaysian Ringgits, Thai Baht, United Arab Emirati Dirhams and US
Dollars had strengthenediweakened by 10% (2022. 10%) respectively against the Singapore
Dollars with all other variables inciuding tax rate being held constant, the effects arising from the
net financial assetizbility position will be as follows:

2023 2022
sGD 5GD

Australian Dolfars against Singapore Dollars:

- sirengthenediweakened by 81,838 86,059
Britizh Pound against Singapore Dollars:

- sirengthened/weakened by 20 1,138
Canadian Doflars against Singapore Doflars:

- sfrengthenediweakened by 253,315 -
Euro against Singapore Dollars:

- sfrengthened/weakened by 708,267 434,142
Heong Kong Dollars against Singapore Dollars:

- strengthenediweakened by - 3503
Indian Rupees against Singapore Dollars:

- sirengthenediweakened by 322 2191
Malaysian Ringgits against Singapore Dollars:

- sirengthened/weakened by - &
Thai Baht against Singapore Doflars:

- sfrengthenediweakened by T7.637 -
United Arab Emirati Dirhams against Singapore Dollars:

- sirengthened/weakened by - 2.446

S Doliars against Singapore Dollars:
- sirengthened/weakened by 264 360 353,655

=3 =
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

22. Financial risk management (continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate rizk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The Company's exposure to cash flow interest rate risks arises mainly from loans from/fto related
parties at fixed and floating rate.

2023 2022
Floating rate Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate
SGD SGD SGD SGD
Financial assets
Loans to related parties - 373,991 - 773,754
Financial liabilities
Loans from related parties 2492 762 5,079,060 - 2 364,945

There iz no significant concentration of cash flow interest rate risk.
(i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the rick that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Company.

) Risk management
For trade receivables, the Company adopts the policy of dealing only with customers of
appropriate credit standing and history, and obtaining sufficient security where
appropriate to mitigate credit risk.

For other financial assets, the Company adopts the policy of dealing with financial
institutions and other counterparties with high credit ratings.

Credit exposure to an individual customer is restricted by the credit limit approved by the
managemsnt. Customers’ payment profile and credit exposure are continuously
monitored by the management and directors.

There are no significant concentration of credit risk, whether through exposure fo
individual customers, specific industry sectors andfor regions.

() Impairment of financial assets

The Company uses a provision maftrix to measure the lifetime expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables.

In determining the expecied credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used
historical losses data to determine the loss rate and applied an adjustment against the
historical loss rate to reflect the current and forward logking information.

-32-
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

22. Financial risk management (continued)

(i) Credit risk {continued)

(b) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery,
such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. The Company
considers a financial asset as default i the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 90 days when they fall due, and writes off the financial assef when a
debior fails to make contractual payments greater than 120 days past due. Where
receivables are written off, the company confinues to engage in enforcement activity to
atiempt to recover the receivables due. \Where recoveries are made, these are recognised

in profit or loss.

The Company's credit risk exposure in relation to trade receivables under FRS 109 as at
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are set out in the provision matrix as follows:

Within More than  More than.  More than

21 December 2023 Current 30 days 30 days 30 days B0 days Total

=G0 =G0 =G0 SG0 =Tcil G0
Trade receivables 801,217 447,918 120,024 127,31 740,387 2,045,008
Lass asflowsnca {115) T74i (51 - - (284

Within More than  More than.  More than

21 December 2022 Current 30 days 30 days 30 days Bl days Total

=G0 =G0 =G0 SG0 =G0 SE0
Trade receivables 511,372 152,000 21,040 233,126 1,772,144 2,740,882
Lass asflowsnca - - - [15,853) {15,853)
Movement in credit loss allowance for financial assets are sef out as follows:

Trade
receivables Total
SGD SGD

2023
Balances as at 1 January 2023 15,853 15,853
Reversal of loss aliowance during the financial year (14,959) (14,959)
Balances as at 31 December 2023 204 294
2022
Balances as at 1 January 2022 4,651 4,651
Loss allowance made during the financial year 11,202 11,202
Balances as at 31 December 2022 15,853 15,853
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

22. Financial risk management (continued)
(iv) Liguidity risk
The Company adopts prudent liguidity risk management by maintaining sufficient cash and
availability of funding from the immediate holding company.
The table below analyses financial liabilities of the Company into relevant matunty groupings based
on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disciosed in the table are the coniractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months
equal their carrying amounts as the impact of discounting is not significant.
Mot later than Later than 1 vear
1 year bt within 5 years
SGD SGD
At 31 December 2023
Trade and other payables 3,666,290 -
Loans from reiated parties 7571822 -
Borrowings - -
11,238,112 -
At 31 December 2022
Trade and other payahles 4 585 684 -
Loans from related parties 2,364 945 -
Borrowings 102,508 167,637
7053 137 167 637
(¥} Capital risk

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain an opltimal capital struciure so as to maximise
shareholder value. In order to maintain or achieve an oplimal capital structure, the Company may
adjust the amount of dividend payment, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares. buy back
issued shares, obfain new bomowings or sell assets to reduce borrowings.

Management moniters capital based on a gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as bormowings plus frade and other payables less
cash and cash eguivalenis. Total capital is calculated as equity plus net debt

2023 2022

SGD SGD
Met debi 10,049,854 6,605, 607
Total equity (6.064,638) (5.600)
Total capital 3,985 216 6,600,007
Gearing ratio 252 1.00

The Company is in compliance with all externally imposed capital reguirements for the financial
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023.
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD.

22. Financial risk management (continued)
(i) Fair value measurements

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

(a) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

(b) inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly {is as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (Level 2); and

(ch inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs) (Level 3).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SGD SGD SGD SGD
At 31 December 2022
Assets
Financial assets, at FVPL - 4 - 4
Tofal assets = 4 _ 4

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-
sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price. These instrumenis are
included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation technigues. The Company uses a variety
of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each reporting
date. Quoted market prices or dealer guotes for similar instruments are used to estimate fair values
for long-term debt for disclosure purposes. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash
flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of
interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair
value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted forward exchange rates
at the reporting date. These investmenis are included in Level 2 and comprise debi investments
and derivative financial instruments. In infrequent circumstances, where a valuation technigue for
these instruments is based on significant unobservable inputs, such instruments are included in
Level 3.

23. Authorisation of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated
as of 28 March 2024,
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Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd
Directors' report
31 December 2023

The directors present their report on Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd for the financial year ended 31
December 2023.

Information on directors

The names of each person who has been a director during the year and to date of the report are:
Guillaume Desjongueres

Nachiket Deshpande

Aniruddha Malviya

Pierre Hoet

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of the report unless
otherwise stated.

Principal activities
The principal activity of Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd during the financial year was IT consultancy,

specialising in wealth and asset management, involving the implementation, customisation and
operation of standard and individual software.

No significant changes in the nature of the Company's activity occurred during the financial year.
Operating results

The loss of the Company after providing for income tax amounted to $663,344 (2022 $632,051)
Dividends paid or recommended

No dividends were paid or declared since the start of the financial year. No recommendation for
payment of dividends has been made.

Significant changes in state of affairs
There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the year.
Events after the reporting date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or
the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years,

Future developments and results

Likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results of those operations in
future financial years have not been included in this report as the inclusion of such information is likely
to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Company.

Environmental issues

The Company's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulations under a law
of the Commonwealth or of a state or territory of Australia.









Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Note 2023 2022
$ $
Consultancy fees 5 378,260 1,006,016
Finance income 6 6,261 1,891
Administration and service expenses (67,582) (259,394)
Employee benefits expense (771,769) (831,470)
Finance expenses b (86,240) (41,300)
Freelancer (32,840) (365,524)
Legal expenses (667) (18,973)
Other expenses (76,391) (110,536)
Travel expenses (12,376) (12,761)
Profit (loss) before income taxes (663,344) (632,051)
Income tax expense 8 - -
Profit (loss) for the year (663,344) (632,051)
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (663,344) (632,051)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Statement of finandal position
As at 31 December 2023

Note 2023 2022
$ $

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 66,827 125,191
Trade and other receivables 10 193,561 493,033
Contract assets 11 18,757 33,156
Other assets 13 1,047 634
Total current assets 280,192 652,014
Total assets 280,192 652,014
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 461,443 1,038,848
Borrowings 15 1,965,939 1,133,374
Employee benefits 16 3,301 3,763
Total current liabilities 2,430,683 2,175,985
Non-current liabilities
Employee benefits 16 36,824 -
Total liabilities 2,467,507 2,175,985
Net assets (2,187,315)  (1,523,971)
Equity
Share capital 17 1 1
Retained earnings (2,187,316)  (1,523,972)
Total equity (2,187,315)  (1,523,971)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2023
Ordinary Retained
2023 shares earnings Total
$ $ $
Balance as at 1 January 2023 1 (1,523,972) (1,523,971)
Loss for the year - (663,344) (663,344)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 1 (2,187,316)  (2,187,315)
Ordinary Retained
2022 shares earnings Total
$ $ $
Balance as at 1 January 2022 1 (891,921) (891,920)
Loss for the year - (632,051) (632,051)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 1 (1,523,972  (1,523,971)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
$ $
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers 722,445 859,673
Payments to suppliers and employees (1,565,193) (1,280,984)
Interest paid (48,181) (31,053)
Net cash flows from/{used in) operating activities (890,929) (452,364)
Cash flows from finandng activities:
Repayment of borrowings 832,565 (106,915)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (58,364) (559,279)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 125,191 684,470
Cash and cash equivalents at end of finandal year 66,827 125,191

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1. Introduction

The financial report covers Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd as an individual entity. Nielsen & Partner Pty
Ltd is a for-profit proprietary Company, incorporated and domicdiled in Australia.

The functional and presentation currency of Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd is Australian dollars.
The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors on 13 March 2024.

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated. When required by Accounting
Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the
current financial year.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in
accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards - Simplified Disclosures and the Corporations Act
2001.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs
modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, finandal
assets and financial liabilities.

Material accounting policy information adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are
presented below and are consistent with prior reporting periods unless otherwise stated.

3. Material accounting policy Information
a. Income tax

The tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
comprises current income tax expense plus deferred tax expense.

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit
(loss) for the year and is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the
taxation authorities, using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Current tax liabilities (assets) are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid to (recovered from) the relevant taxation authority.

Deferred tax is not provided for the following:

« The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit (tax loss).

« Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

» Temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.



Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023
3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
a. Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the

period when the asset is realised or the liability is settles, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the
period except where the tax arises from a transaction which is recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity, in which case the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity
respectively.

Current and deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for
the period except where the tax arises from a transaction which is recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity, in which case the tax is recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity respectively.

b. Borrowing costs

Borrowing cosls that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

All borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

¢. Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST),
except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
(ATO).

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of G5T.

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

d. Finandal instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument,

On initial recognition, all finandal instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
(except for instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are
expensed as incurred).

i, Finandal assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

10



Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
d. Finandal instruments (continued)
i. Finandal assets (continued)
Classification

On initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial asselts into the follewing categories,
those measured at:

s amortised cost

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

The Company's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Subseqguent to initial recognition, these assels are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less provision for impairment.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of finandal assets is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis for the following
assets:

+ financial assets measured at amortised cost

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both
quantitative and gualitative information and analysis based on the Company's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

Where the simplified approach to expected credit loss (ECL) is not applied, the Company uses
the presumption that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant
increase in credit risk.

The Company uses the presumption that a financial asset is in default when:

+ the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without
recourse to the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
« the finandal assets is more than 90 days past due.

11



Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
d. Finandal instruments (continued)
i. Finandal assets (continued)

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to
the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows expected to be received. This
is applied using a probability weighted approach.

Trade receivables and contract assets

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets have been determined using the simplified
approach in AASE 2 which uses an estimation of lifetime expected credit losses,

The Company has determined the probability of non-payment of the receivable and contract
asset and multiplied this by the amount of the expected loss arising from default.

The amount of the impairment is recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being
recognised in finance expense. Once the receivable is determined to be uncellectable then the
gross carrying amount is written off against the associated allowance.

Where the Company renegotiates the terms of trade receivables due from certain customers, the new
expected cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to
the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Impairment of other financial assets measured at amortised cost are determined using the
expected credit loss model in AASE 3. On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the
expected credit losses for the next 12 months is recognised. Where the asset has experienced
significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated and recognised.

ii. Financial liabilities

The Company measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs,
subsequently financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

The financial liabilities of the Company comprise trade payables and borrowings.
e. Impairment of non-finandal assets

At the end of each reporting period the Company determines whether there is evidence of an
impairment indicator for non-finandal assets.

Where an indicator exists and regardless for indefinite life intangible assets and intangible assets
not yet available for use, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

Where assets do not operate independently of other assets, the recoverable amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit (CGU) is estimated.

12



Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
e, Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and
the value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived
from an asset or cash-generating unit.

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Reversal indicators are considerad in subsequent periods for all assets which have suffered an
impairment loss.

f. Foreign currency transactions and balances
I. Transaction and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the spot rate on the date of the transaction.
At the end of the reporting period:

« Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;
« Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and
» Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value are translated using the rate at the
date when fair value was determined.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition or in prior
reporting periods are recognised through profit or loss, except where they relate to an item of
other comprehensive income or whether they are deferred in equity as qualifying hedges.

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these finandial
statements regarding assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and
balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing
the finandial statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ
from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.
a. Key estimates - receivables

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that any of the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any
receivable where the entire balance is not considered collectible. The impairment provision is based
on the best information at the reporting date.

13



Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4, Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
b. Key estimates - fair value of finandal instruments

The Company has certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value. Where
fair value has not able to be determined based on quoted price, a valuation model has been used.
The inputs to these models are observable, where possible, however these techniques involve
significant estimates and therefore fair value of the instruments could be affected by changes in
these assumptions and inputs.

5. Revenue and other income
a. Accounting policy
i. Revenue from contracts with customers

The core principle of AASE 15 is that revenue is recognised on a basis that reflects the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognised by
applying a five-step model as follows:

1. Identify the contract with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligations

3. Determine the transaction price

4, Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognise revenue as and when control of the performance obligations is transferred
ii. Spedfic revenue streams

The revenue recognition policies for the principal revenue streams of the Company are:
Provision of Professional Services

The Company earns revenue from provision of professional services, incorporating consulting
advice. Revenue is recognised over ime in the accounting period when services are rendered.
Fee arrangements indude fixed fee arrangements, unconditional fee for service arrangements
("time and materials") and variable fee arrangements.

For fixed fee arrangements, revenue is recognised based on the stage of completion with
reference to the actual services provided as a proportion of the total services expected to be
provided under the contract, The stage of completion is tracked on a contract by contract basis
using a milestone-based approach.

14



Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

5. Revenue and other income (continued)
a. Accounting policy (continued)
ii. Spedfic revenue streams (continued)

Estimates of revenues (including interim billing), costs or extent of progress toward completion
are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues
or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the dircumstances that give rise to
the revision become known by management.

In fee for service contracts, revenue is recognised up to the amount of fees that the Company is
entitled to invoice for services performed to date based on contracted rates.

The Company estimates fees for variable fee arrangements using a most likely amount approach
on a confract by contract basis. Management makes a detailed assessment of the amount of
revenue expected to be received and variable consideration is included in revenue only to the
extent that it is highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal.

iii. Statement of finandal position balances relating to revenue recognition
Contract assets and liabilities
Where the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of various milestones

established in the contract, the amounts recognised as revenue in a given period do not
necessarily coincide with the amounts billed to or certified by the customer.

When a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised good or service to the
customer before the customer pays consideration or the before payment is due, the

Company presents the contract as a contract asset, unless the Company's rights to that amount
of consideration are unconditional, in which case the Company recognises a receivable.

When an amount of consideration is received from a customer prior to the entity transferring a
good or service to the customer, the Company presents the contract as a contract liability.

The Company recognises assets relating to the costs of obtaining a contract and the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract or set up / mobilisation costs that are directly related to the contract
provided they will be recovered through performance of the contract.

iv. Other income
Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Company is entitled to it.
b. Revenue from continuing operations

2023 2022
$ $
Revenue from contracts with customers
- Provision of services 378,260 1,006,016

15



Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023

6. Finance income and expenses

Finance income 2023 2022
$ $
Gain on exchange differences 6,261 1,891
Finance expenses 2023 2022
$ $
Interest expense 48,181 31,053
Loss on exchange differences 38,059 10,247
Total Finance expenses 86,240 41,300
7. Result for the year
The result for the year includes the following specific expenses:
2023 2022
$ $
Superannuation contributions 63,245 73,370
8. Income tax expense
a. The major components of tax expense/(income) comprise:
2023 2022
$ $
Income tax - -
b. Recondiliation of income tax to accounting profit:
2023 2022
$ $
Profit for the year (663,344) (632,051)
Prima facie tax payable on profit from ordinary activities before (199,003) (189,615)
income tax at 30% (2022: 30%)
Add tax effect of:
Other non-allowable items 193,003 183,615
Income tax expense u -
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Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

9. Cash and cash equivalents
a. Accounting policy

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.

b. Cash and cash equivalent details

2023 2022
$ $
Cash at bank and in hand 66,827 125,191
10. Trade and other receivables
Current 2023 2022
$ $
Trade receivables 193,561 493,033

11. Contract balances

The Company has recognised the following contract assets and liabilities from contracts with
customers:

Current contract assets 2023 2022
$ $
Accrued income 18,757 33,156

12. Property, plant and equipment
a. Accounting policy

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

I. Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are measured using the cost model,
li. Depredation

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a reducing balance
basis over the asset's useful life to the Company, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Fixed asset class Depreciation rate
Computer equipment 50.00%

17



12. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

a. Accounting policy (continued)
ii. Deprediation (continued)

Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual
value of each asset is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in

estimate.

When an asset is disposed, the gain or loss is calculated by comparing proceeds received with

its carrying amount and is taken to profit or loss.
b. Property, plant and equipment details

Summary 2023 2022
$ $
Computer equipment
AL cost 30,574 30,574
Accumulated depreciation (30,574) (30,574)
Total Computer equipment - -
13. Other assets
Current 2023 2022
$ $
Other assets
Prepayments 1,047 634
14. Trade and other payables
Current 2023 2022
$ $
Trade payables 105,823 752,727
GST payable (9,488) (25,011)
Accrued expenses 24,490 25,463
Other trade and other payables 340,618 285,669
Total Current trade and other payables 461,443 1,038,848
15. Borrowings
Current 2023 2022
$ $
Related party payables 1,965,939 1,133,374

18



Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

16. Employee benefits
a. Accounting policy

Provision is made for the Company's liability for employee benefits, those benefits that are
expected to be wholly settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liability is settled, plus related on-costs.

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period
have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for
those benefits. In determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and
the probability that the employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Cashflows are discounted using
market yields on high quality corporate bond rates incorporating bonds rated AAA or AA by credit
agencies, with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cashflows. Changes in the
measurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

i. Defined contribution schemes

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods in which services are provided by

employees.
b. Employee benefit details
Current 2023 2022
$ $
Annual leave 3,301 3,763
Non-current 2023 2022
$ $
Long service leave 36,824 =
17. Share capital
a. Acoounting policy
I. Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are dassified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares and share options which vest immediately are recognised as a deduction from
equity, net of any tax effects.

b. Share capital summary

2023 2022
No. $ No., $
Ordinary shares 1 1 1 1
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Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

18. Key management personnel remuneration

No payments were made to key management personnel during the vear.

19. Auditor's remuneration
2023 2022
$ $
Remuneration of the auditor of the Company, Felsers, for:
- Auditing the financial statements 17,000 15,550
- Taxation and other services 77,009 67,723
Total 94,009 83,273

Taxation and other services relate to tax compliance work, including assistance with the tax return.
20. Contingencies
In the opinicn of the Directors, the Company did not have any contingencies at 31 December
2023 (2022: None).
21. Related parties
a. The Company's main related parties are as follows:

The ulimate parent entity, which exercises control over the Company, is Nielsen+Partner
Unternehmensberater GmbH which is incorporated in Germany and owns 100% of Nielsen &
Partner Pty Ltd.

Key management personnel - refer to Note 18.

Other related parties include close family members of key management personnel and entities that
are controlled or significantly influenced by those key management personnel or their close family
members.

b. Transactions with related parties

Transactions between relatad parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more
favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Balance
outstanding

Owed to the Owed by the
Parent Purchases Sales company company
$ $ $ $

Intercompany loan - = = 292,314

Interest - - - 7,280

Sales to parent - 283,561 10,997 -

20



21. Related parties (continued)
b. Transactions with related parties (continued)

Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Balance
outstanding

Owed to the Owed by the

Other related parties Purchases Sales company company
$ $ $
Intercompany loan - - 1,673,625
Interest - - 120,715
Sales to related party 21,428 - -
Purchases from related party 10,480 - 179,026 101,499

¢. Loans to/from related parties

Unsecured loans are made to the ultimate parent entity, subsidiaries, key management personnel
and other related parties on an arm's length basis. Repayment terms are set for each loan, which
range from 1 to 3 years. Interest payable at 2.50% (2022: 2.50%) and monthly principal and

interest repayments are made over the terms of the loans, Loans are unsecured and repayable in

cash.

Loans from ultimate parent & related parties

2023 2022
$ $

Opening balance
Closing balance
Interest paid/payable

1,133,374 1,240,289
1,965,939 1,133,374
48,181 31,053

22. Going Concern

The Company has received a letter of financial support from its parent company, Nielsen+Partner
Untermehmensberater GmbH, stating that the parent company is willing to provide financial assistance
to the Company in the event that the Company may not be able to meet its debts as they fall due.

23. Events occurring after the reporting date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations, or

the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

24, Statutory information

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is:

Nielsen & Partner Pty Ltd
Level 12, 60 Carrington Street
Sydney, NSW 2000
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SGC & Associates LLLP
Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
LTIMindtree USA Inc. (FKEA Lymbye Solutions Inc)'s ability to continue as a going

concern within one vear after the date that the financial statements are available to be 1ssued.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Owur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an
auditor s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance
but 15 not absolute assurance and therefore 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted 1n
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when 1t exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may mnvolve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements,
mcluding omissions, are considered material 1f there is a substantial likelthood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards_ we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of LTIMindtree USA Inc. (FKA Lymbve
Solutions Inc.)'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 1s expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management., as well as evaluate the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

* (Conclude whether, 1n our judgment, there are conditions or events considered in the
aggregate that raise substantial doubt about LTIMindtree USA Inc. (FKA Lymbye
Solutions Inc)'s ability to continue as a going concem for a reasonable period of
time.
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SGC & Associates LLLP
Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and
certain internal control related matters that we 1dentified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The supplementary information 1s presented for purposes of additional analvsis
and 1s not a required part of the financial statements. Such information 1s the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certamn
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlyving accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America In our opimmion the
information 1s fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

Lo f7 advocialry b
Great Neck NY

April 222024




LTIMINDTREE USA INC (FKA LYMBYC SOLUTIONS INC)
BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

ASSETS
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 6.151 5 =
Accounts recervable, net 337.971 -
Total current assets 344122 -
Total assets 8 344122 5 -
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 5 639 5 -
Loan from related party 70,000 -
Income taxes payable 3570 -
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 328.007 61.042
Total current liabilities 402216 61.042
Total liabilities S 402216 5 61.042
Stockholders' deficit
Common stock, 51 par value; 100,000 authorized; 92, 833
shares 1ssued and outstanding at March 31, 2024 and March
31, 2023 )3 92 893 5 92 893
Accumulated deficit (1530.987) (153.935)
Total stockholders' deficit (58,094) (61.042)
Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit 8 344122 5 -

See Notes to Financial Statements




LTIMINDTREE USA INC (FKA LYMBYC SOLUTIONS INC)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME, COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, AND
ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

Sales
Wet Sales

Total operating revenus
Operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating mcome (loss)

Other income (expenses)

Interest expense

Net income (loss) before income taxes

Income taxes

Net income (loss)

Comprehensive income

Beginning accumulated deficit

Ending accumulated deficit

See Notes to Financial Statements

S

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
337.971 S _
337.971 -
328,691 2,639
328,691 2,639

9.280 (2.639)

67 :

2.829

6.518 (2.639)

3.570

2.948 (2.639)

2.948 (2.639)
(153.933) (151.296)
(150.987) S (153.935)
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LTIMINDTREE USA INC (FKA LYMBYC SOLUTIONS INC)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income/(loss) 5 2.948 5 (2.639)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash used by operating activities

Income taxes 3.570 =
Decrease (increase) 1n assets
Accounts receivable (337.971) -
Increase (decrease) in habilities
Accounts payable 639 -
Loan from related party 70000 -
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 266,965 2.639
Net cash from/(used 1n) operating activities 6.151 -

Cash flows from investing activities - -
Cash flows from financing activities - -
Net change n cash and cash equivalents 6.151 -

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of vear - -

Cash and cash equivalents - end of vear 5 6,151 & -

See Notes to Financial Statements




LTIMINDTREE USA INC (FKA LYMBYC SOLUTIONS INC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

NOTE 1 - BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

LTIMindtree USA Inc. (FKA Lymbyc Solutions Inc) (Tthe Company™ or "LTUIT) 15 a
Corporation incorporated in the State of Texas, United States of Amernica. The Company 1s a
wholly owned subsidiary of LTIMindtree Limited, a public limited company incorporated,
domiciled, and having 1ts registered office in Mumbai, India. The Company’s headquarters are
in Edison, New Jersey in the United States of America

The Company has a management agreement with its parent company, LTIMindtree Limited,
wherein the parent company provides an extensive range of information technology services
like application development. maintenance and outsourcing, enterprise solutions infrastructure
management services, testing, digital solutions, and platform-based solutions to the Company’'s
clients in diverse industries.

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Limited, the parent company of LTIMindtree USA Inc. (FKA
Lymbyc Solutions Inc.) entered innto a scheme of merger with Mindtree Limated, wherein Larsen
and Toubro Infotech Limited 1ssued shares to the existing sharcholder of Mindtree limited. The
merger was effective Wovember 14, 2022, Further, Larsen and Toubro Infotech Limited
changed tts name to LTIMindtree Limited.

On June 13, 2023, the Company filed a certificate of amendment with the State of Texas
Secretary of State to change its name from Lymbye Solutions Inc. to LTIMindtree TUSA Inc.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation — The accompanying financial statements of LTIMindtree USA Inc (FKA
Lymbyc Solutions Inc.) are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting 1n accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards as 1ssued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (TASB) and Interpretations (collectively
IERS). These financial statements were authonzed for issue by the Company' s Management on
April 22, 2024 Revenue 1s recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. All
amounts are stated in United States Dollars.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and habilities at the date of the financial
statements. Hstimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period.




LTIMINDTREE USA INC (FKA LYMBYC SOLUTIONS INC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Use of Estimates (Continued) — The important estimates made by LTUI in preparing these
financial statements include allowance for doubtful accounts, revenue recognition, accrued
revenue, accrued habilities, and other contingencies. The estimates are made using histonical
information and other relevant factors available to management. Management believes that the
estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual
results could differ from these estumates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — LTUI considers all cash which is used for current operations with
a maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. The Company believes it 1s
not exposed to any significant risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable & Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — Accounts receivable are recorded
at the mvoiced amount and do not bear interest. LTUI maintains an allowance for doubtful
accounts for estimated losses inherent in its accounts receivable In establishing the required
allowance, management considers historical losses that are adjusted considening current market
conditions and the customers™ financial condition, the amounts of receivables in dispute, and the
current receivables ageing and current payvment patterns. LTUI reviews its allowance for
doubtful accounts periodically. Past due balances over 180 days and over a specified amount are
reviewed individually for collectability. Bad debt expense 1s included 1n operating expenses in
the statement of income, comprehensive income, and changes in equity. LTUI charges
uncollectable amounts against the allowance for doubtful accounts 1n the period in which 1t
determines they are uncollectable.




LTIMINDTREE USA INC (FKA LYMBYC SOLUTIONS INC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revernue Recognition — Revenue 15 recogmized only when evidence of an arrangement is
obtained and the other criteria to support revenue recognition are met, including the price 1s
fixed or determinable, services have been rendered and collectability of the resulting recervables
is reasonably assured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
recetvable and is reduced for estimated rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from contracts priced on time and material basis 1z recognized when services are
rendered, and related costs are incurred.

Revenue from services performed on fixed-price basis is recognized over the life of contract
using the proportionate completion method.

Revenue from sale of products and licenses 1s recognized upon delivery when all nisks and
rewards are transferred.

Other Income — Interest income 1s recognized using the effective interest method. Other 1tems
of income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises.

Commitments and Contingencies — Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claums,
assessments_ litigation, fines, and penalties and other sources are recorded when 1t 13 probable
that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Income Taxes — Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statements carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carrvforwards. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates 1s recognized i income in the
period that includes the enactment date. A wvaluation allowance is recorded for deferred tax
assets 1f 1t 15 more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. IAS 12 also provides guidance on measurement, de-recognition, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition.




LTIMINDTREE USA INC (FKA LYMBYC SOLUTIONS INC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income Taxes (Continued) — LTUI recognizes liabilities for uncertain tax postitions based on a
two-step process. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining 1f
the weight of available evidence indicates it 15 more likely than not that the position will be
sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. The
second step 1s to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount which 1s more than 30% likely of
being realized upon ultimate settlement. LTUI recognizes interest and penalties related to
uncertain tax positions in statement of income, comprehensive income, and changes in equity.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — At March 31, 2024, and 2023, the carrying value of
cash, accounts recetvable, accrued revenue, due from affiliates, prepaid expenses and other
current assets, accounts pavable, due to affiliates, accrued expenses and other current liabilities
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of these items.

Events Occurring After the Report Dare — L'TUI has evaluated all events or transactions that
occurred after the balance sheet date of March 31, 2024, through Apnil 22, 2024, the date these
financial statements were available to be 1ssued. As of Apnil 22, 2024, there were no adjusting
or non-adjusting events that were required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements.

Uncertainty in Income Taxes — LTUI has determined that there are no matenal uncertain tax
positions that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Periods ending
March 31, 2021, and subsequent remain subject to examination by the applicable taxing
authorities.

Reclassifications — Certain reclassifications have been made to prior vear amounts to conform
to current vear classifications.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVAELE, NET

Accounts recervable as at March 31, 2024, and 2023 represent dues from customers, related
parties, and accrued revenue of $337.971 and $0. net of allowance of doubtful accounts and
expected credit losses of 50 and 50.

LTUI maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts on all accounts receivable, based on present
and prospective financial condition of the customer and aging of accounts receivable after
considering historical experience and the current economic environment.
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LTIMINDTREE USA INC (FKA LYMBYC SOLUTIONS INC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

NOTE 4 - INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision for income taxes for the years ended March 31, 2024, and
2023 are as follows:

March 31_ 2024 March 31,2023
Current Taxes
U.5. Federal 5 784 5 -
U5 State 2.786 -
Income tax expense $ 3.570 5 -

The items accounting for the difference between income taxes computed at the US. federal
statutory rate and the effective tax rate for the years ended March 31, 2024, and 2023 are as

follows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Federal statutory rate 21.00% 0.00%
Effect of:

State taxes 34.00% 0.00%

Effective rate 35.00% 0.00%

The increase in the effective tax rate 1s primarily due to State and other taxes.
Management believes that there are no unrecognized tax benefits at March 31, 2024, and 2023.
LTUI files U S. Federal and State income tax returns. The open vears’ subject to examination

by the tax authorities range from 2020-2023. Management does not believe that there are any
uncertain tax posttions for either the past vears or the current year.
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LTIMINDTREE USA INC (FKA LYMBYC SOLUTIONS INC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

NOTE 5 - INTEREST EXPENSE

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interast sxpense:
Interast on related party loan 8 2,829 5 -
5 2,829 5 -

NOTE 6 - CONCENTRATIONS

LTUI had one customer that accounted for 100% of 1ts sales for the vear ended March 31, 2024,
and no customer that accounted for more than 10% of its sales for the vear ended March 31,
2023, LTUI had one customer that accounted for 100% of 1tz accounts recervable at March 31.
2024, and no customer that accounted for more than 10% of its accounts receivable at March

31, 2023.

LTUI had no vendors that accounted for 10% of its purchases for the years ended March 31,
2024 and March 31, 2023. LTUI had one vendor that accounted for 100% of its accounts
pavable at March 31. 2024_ and no vendor that accounted for more than 10% of its accounts
pavable at March 31, 2023.

From time to time, LTUI has cash on deposit with financial institutions in excess of Federal

(“FDIC™) limits.

NOTE 7-RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

LTUT had transactions and balances in the ordinary course of business with the following
related parties during the year ended and as of March 31, 2024, and 2023:

No. Name of the related party Nature of relationship
1 LTIMindtree Limated. India Parent
2 LTIMindiree Limuted, US. Branch U.S. Branch of the Parent
3 LTIMindtree Canada Limited Subsidiary of Parent




LTIMINDTREE USA INC (FKA LYMBYC SOLUTIONS INC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

NOTE 7-RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

LTUT s balances with the related parties amounted to the followimng at March 31, 2024, and 2023:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other Pavables:

LTIMindtrez Limited, India (8214,392) §0
LTIMindtres Limited, US. Branch (3102,388) §0

L TINindires Canada Limited ($10.072) 50

Loan Pavable:

LTIMindires Canada Limsted (870,000) 80

LTUTI's transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business amounted to the
following for the vears ended March 31, 2024 and 2023:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Overhead Charged by:

LTIMindtres Limited, Indta 5214392 3

L TI\indtree Limited, U.S. Branch §102,588 30
LTDMindtree Canada Limifad $10,072 §0
Interest Expense;

LTD\hndtres Canada Limated 51229 80

NOTE § - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through Apnl 22, 2024, the date these financial statements
were available for 1ssue. All subsequent events requirtng recognition or disclosure through this date
have been incorporated into these financial statements.
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LTIMINDTREE USA INC (FKA LYMBYC SOLUTIONS INC)

SCHEDULE TO THE STATEMENTS OF INCOME, COMPREHENSIVE INCOME,
AND ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND 2023

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Operating expenses

Subcontracting § 327052 g -

Professional fees 1,639 1,639
Total operating expenses § 328,691 § 2,639
Other income (expenses)

Foreign exchange gain (loss) $ 45 g

Other income/(expenses) 22
Total other income (expenses) S 67 8
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Docusign Envelope ID: 301 AEAG4-3CA1-1B4A-AFEE-2BD025EEAGBE

Directors’ Report

The Directors present the annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024,

Lepal Aspect

LTiMindiree Middle East FZ-LLC (formerly known as LTI Middle East FZ-LLC). {*the Company™) is registerad
with Dubai Development Authority, as a Free Zone Limited Liability Company and operates under the License No,
9703 issued on November 25, 2020, which is currently renewed on November 24, 2023,

The Comparny also have branch in Dubai under the License no. 980620 issoed by Depariment of Economic
Development on Movember 23, 2021, and in Abu Dhabi under License no. CN-4052652 issued by Department of

Economic Development on July 12, 2021, which is corrently renewed on August 11, 2023,

The principal activities of the Company are,

IT Service
=  Consultancy

e Customsar service

s Devaloper

o Solution provider

*  Support service provider
Software

«  Consultancy

Customer service
Developer

Solution provider
Support s2rvice provider

Authorised, issusd and paid-up capital of the Company is AED) 1,860,000 divided in to 1,860 shares of AEI} [.000

each fully paid and held by the sharehaolder,

Name of shareholder MNumber of Value in i
shares AED
LTIMindtree Limited (formerly known as
Larsen and Toubro Infotech Limited) 1860 1,860,000 1003
Total 1,860 1,860,000 1005

Financial performance

During the vear under review, the Company®s summary of finencial performance is as follows:

2023-24 202223
Revenue 108,353,517 126,335.086
Profit during the year 3,252 457 5,246 295
ERITDA (Eamings befors interest, tax, depreciation (1,240.839) (28,592,984)
and amortization)
Operational Cash income 19,241,145 16.274.617
Total Assets 131,690,241 129,883 382




























Docusign Envelope ID: 301 AEAG4-3CA1-1B4A-AFEE-2BD025EEAGBE

LTTMindtree Middle East FA-LLC (formerly known as LTT Middle BEast FZ-LLC)

DUBAIL 11.A.E

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1. LEGALSTATUS & ACTIVITIES:

al LTIMindtree Middle East FZ-LLC (formerly known as LTI Middle East FZ-LLC), (*“the
Company™) 18 registered with Dubai Development Authority, ag a Free Zone Limited Liability
Company and operates under the License Mo, 97938 issued on Movember 25, 2020 which is

currently renewed on NMovember 23, 2023,

The Company also hawve branch in Dubai under the License no. 980620 issued by Department
of Economie Development o November 23, 2021 and in Abu Ddhabi under License no, CHN-
4052652 issued by Department of Economic Development on July 12, 2021 which is currently

rerewed on August 11, 2023,
&) The Company is engaged in,

IT Service
«  (Copsultancy

= (Custpmer servico

*  Developer

«  Solution provider

= Support service provider
Software

«  Consultaney

Customer Seivice
Developer

Solution provider
Support service provider

¢y The management of the Company is vested with Mr. Dheera] Koul, the General Manager,

¢)  The reporting date of LTIMindiree Middle East FZ-LLC is March 31, 2024,

e/ The registerad office is in office i3 in Premise No: 101, Floor 1, Building 7. Dubai Outsource

City. Dwbai, UAE.

A Authorized, issued and paid-up capital of the Company iz AED 1,860,000 divided in 10 1,360
shares of AED 1,000 each fully paid 2nd held by the shareholder,

Name of sharcholder Number of Yalue in o
_shares _AED
LTIMindrres Limited (formerly known as ;
Larsen and Toubeo Infotech Limited), 1,50 1,460,000 100%
Total 1,860 1. 860,000 100%

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Bazis of accounting

The financizl staternents of the entity are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ([FRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB),
interpretations issued by Tnternational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committes (TFRIC), and
comply, whetever appropriste, with the rules and regulations of Dubai Development Authority
Regulations. The requirements of the standards applied have heen satisfied in full, and the financial
statepnents therefore provide a true and fair view of the Company’s net assees, finaneial position

and results of operations.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 301 AEAG4-3CA1-1B4A-AFEE-2BD025EEAGBE

LTTMindtree Middle East FA-LLC (formerly known as LTT Middle BEast FZ-LLC)
DUBAL U.A.E

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

The financial statements consist of Statement of financial positian, statement of income. statement
of changes on equity, stetement of cash flows and notes comprising sccounting policies and other
information. In order to improve the clarity of presentation, various items in the statement of
fingneial position and in the income stotemment have been combined. These items are disclosed and
explained separately in the Motes.

The financial statements are prepared using acerual basis of aceounting, The income statemand has
been classified in accordance with the nature of experse method. Cash flow has been presented
under indireet method,

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention medified to incorporate
the movements an carrying values of assets and liabilities except those assets and liabilities which
are recognized at fair value as required under the relevant accounting policy,

2.2 Application of oew and revised International Financial Repocting  Standacds
[IFRS)

Amerdmenis to 1AS I: Classification of Liakilities as Current or Non-cuerent

On 23 Janwary 2020, the [TASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of TAS | to specify the
requirements tor elassitying 1iabilities as current or non-current, The amendments el

What is meant by a right 1o defer settlament.
= That a right o defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
s That clossification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise s deferral
right.
= That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classification.

The amendments are effective for snnual reporting periods beginning on or afier 7 January 2023
and must be applied retrospectively.

Definition of Accounting Extimates - Amesidimenis fo [AS 8

In Februgey 2021, the TASB issued amendments to TAS &, in which it introduces & definition of
accounting estimates. The amendments clarifv the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors, Also, they clarify how
entitied  wse  measurement  technigues  and  inputs o dévelop  accounting  estimates,

The amendments are effective for anmual reporting periods beginning on or after January 071, 2023
and apply to changes in accounting policies end changes in accounting estimates that occur on or
afier the start of that perod. Eadier application is permitled as long as this faet is diselosed,

Dizclosure of Accounting Polfcies - Amendments to FAS T and TFRS Practice Siatemeni 2

[n February 20121, the LASB issued amendments to [AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materality JTudgements, in which it provides guidance and examples to help entities apply
materiality judgements to sccounting policy disclogures.

The amendments to [AS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 JTanuary 2023
with earlier application permitied, Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on the application of the delinition of material 1o accounting policy
information, an effective date for these amendmenis is not necesgary.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 301 AEAG4-3CA1-1B4A-AFEE-2BD025EEAGBE

LTTMindtree Middle East FA-LLC (formerly known as LTT Middle BEast FZ-LLC)
DUBAL U.A.E

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2.3 Authorization date

Authorization date 14 that on which the financial statements are authorized and approved by the
managemeni. The authorization dave of LTIMindtree Middle East FZ-LLC is April 19, 2024,

2.4 Currency

The financial statements are presented in Arab Emirates Dirham (*AED*). which is the functional
and presentation currency of the Company.

3, Accounting estimates and judgements

In the preparation of fnancial stsemenis n accordance with Lnfemnational Financial Reporting
Standards (TFRS) management has made a number of judgements. estimates and assumptions in the
application of certain avcounting policies thar affect the reporied asseis, liabiliries, income and
expenses (1AS §).

These estimates and rssumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical
sxperiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are assumed to be
reasanable under the current conditions.

When an [FRS specifically applies to a transaciion, other event or candition, the sceounting palicy
or policies applied to that item is determined by apolying the relevant IAS/IFRS. In the absence of
an [AS/IFRS that specifically applies fo 8 transaction, menagerment has vsed judgement in
developing and applying an accounting policy that results in information that is relevant to the
econoimic decision made by the users and reliable to the financial statements,

Therefore, for each transaclion, management hag congidered the requirement uader TASTFRS and
recognition. measurement concepts for assets, liabilities, income and cxpense In the conceptual
framewoik,

The entity shall change an accounting policy only if the change is required by an TFRS or results in
the financial stalements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of
transactions, other ewents or conditions on the entity’s financial position. financial performance or
cash flows, A change in accounting policy will be applied retrospectively.

The change in sccounting estimate is an adjustment of the carrying amount of an asset or 2
liability. or the amount of the pericdic consumption of an asset, that results from the assessment of
the pregsent states of, and expected furure benefitz apd obligations associared with, assets apnd
liahilities. Changes in =ccounting estimates are as a result of new information or new
developments and, aceordingly. are not corrections of errors.

3.1 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment’s are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, for rentals to others, or for administrative purposes; and are expected to be

used for more than one period.

An item of properts shall be recognised ag asset only if there i an economic inflow of benefits
associated with the asset and the cost can be measured reliable.

Initially property, plant and equipment are measured at historical cost. The costs comprise of the

purchase price plus non- refundable tax and duties, discounts and rebates and any directly
atrribuiable costs Incurred in order to bring the asset o its present location and condition.

12



Docusign Envelope ID: 301 AEAG4-3CA1-1B4A-AFEE-2BD025EEAGBE

LTTMindtree Middle East FA-LLC (formerly known as LTT Middle BEast FZ-LLC)
DUBAL U.A.E

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the cash price equivalent at the recognition
date, If payment i3 deferred beyond normal credil terms, the difference between the cash piice
equivalent and the total payment is recognized as interest over the period of credit unless such
interest is capitalized in accordance with IAS 23 Borrowing cost.

Subsequent measurement i5 done either using cost model or revaluation model.

After recognition of asset based on cost model then the item of property, plant and equipment is
carried at cost less any aceumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,

All other repairs and maintenance are charged 10 the income statement during the financial year in
which they are incurrzd,

Uzetful lives of each asset for calculating depreciation are made on considering the ssets use and its
production capacity . This estimate is determined afier considering the expected usage of the asset
or physival wear and teer. Management reviews the residual value and vseful lives annually and
future depreciation charges would be adjusted where the management believes the useful lives
differ from previous estimates.

Depreciation is calculared using the straight-line method and the cost or revalued amount is
allocated to its residual value using its estimated useful life as fallows:

Laplops 4 years
Merwork equipment & years
Leasehold improvements Ower the lease period
Otfice equipment 5 years
Furniture & fixtures 5 years

Properly, plant and equipment's are subjected to an annual review for any indicators of impairment
and if there is an indication the recoverable amount needs to be caleulated. Recoverable amount is
higher of fair value l=55 costs of disposal and its voloe in uss. I either of these amounts exceeds the
asset’s earrying amount, the assel is nol impaired and it is not necessary to estimate the other
amount. An item of property. plant and equipment canmot be carried at more than ifs recoverakle
amount,

A decling in the value of property. plant and equipment could bave o significant effect on the
amounts recogaised in the financial statements. Management assesses the Impairment of the
property, plant and equipment whenever events or changes in circymslances indicate that the
carrying value mav not be recoverable. Such indicators of impairment may arise from internal
sources, external sources or as result of combination of bath.

If. and gnly if, the recoverable smount of an asset i l=ss than its carrying amount, the carrving
amownt of the asdset shall be reduced to its recoverable amount, That reduetion is an impairment
loss.

An impairment loss is recognized immediately in staterment of comprehensive Income, unlesg the
asset is carried at revalued amount in accordance with another Standard (for example, in
accordance with the revaluation model in TAS 16).

if it iz not possible to esfimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the entity then
deternminegs the recoversble amount of the cash-generating vnit 0 which the asset belongs (the
asset’s cagh-genarating unit). In such cases, value in use and, therefore, recoverable amount, can be
determined only for the agsel*s cash-generating unit, Refer Note: 7.
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LTTMindtree Middle East FA-LLC (formerly known as LTT Middle BEast FZ-LLC)
DUBAL U.A.E

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

3.2 Intangible assets

An intangible nsset i3 an identifinble non-monetary ozser without physical substonce. Imangible
assets are capitalised at cost only when fidure economic benefits are probable. and it can be reliably
measured. Cost includes the purchase price together with any directly attributable expenditure.

[f an intangible asset is acquired in a business combination, the cost of that intangible asset is its
fair value at the acquisition date.

Any expenditure incumred internally on an intangible item, including all expenditure for both
research and development activities as an expense when it is incurred.

Subsequently the company measures intangible assefs at cost less any accumufated amortization
and any aceumulgied mpairment losses,

The eompany estimates the best useful for the intangible assets, or it ean be regarded as having an
indefinite useful life when there iz no foreseeable limit on the period during which the asset is
expecied to generate positive cash flows for the entity.

The company derecognizes an intangible agset and recognize a gain or loss on dispogal; or when ng
futuie economic benefits are expected Fom its use or dispesal. Refer Note: 8.

A3 Comtract asset

Dwring the period, the company incurred tranaition related expenses which are in the nature of
fixed cost payable to suppliers for certain projects. The company has deferred the expenszes over
the period of service contracts. Refer Note: 9.

3.4 Transactions with related parties

The Company enters transactions with companies and entities that fall within the definition of 2
related party as contained in IAS 24 Related party. A related party comprises of companies and
entities under common ownership snd/or common management and control; their parents and key
management personnel,

Additionally, if the Company is able to directly or indirectly control or exercise significant
influgnee over g party in making financial and operating decisians, or vice verss are congidered ta
be related to the entity.

The Company believes that the terms of such transections are not significantly different trom those
that could have been oblained [rom third parties. IAS 24 also requires the disclosure of key

management personnel. HRefer Mote: 13,

Clommon ty pes of related party transactions for the company are as follows:

*  Trangactions with i1s principal owners
*=  Tramsactions between entity under common control or has significant influence,

The tollowing are the related party transactions for the vear;

Name of related parties Relationship MNature of Amount
transaction

;..-TIMII'Idh'tt Limited. Saudi Arabia Group Company | Receivahle 3277411

iranch

LTIMindtree Limited, 178 Branch Group Company | Receivable 482,672

]é';:::dtl'ee Limited. Singapore Grutp Comipan Receivable 274,146
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LTIMindires UK Limited Group Company | Receivable 20,973
LTIMindiree Limited Dubai Branch | Group Company | Receivable 935,408
LTIMindtree Limited, Qatar Branch Group Company | Receivable 167,571
LTiMindtree Limited gﬂ"!‘t‘i;’;gw Loantaken | 20,000,000
Holding i
LTIMindiree Limited Company Entkle e i
LTIMindtree Finaneial Services -
Technologies Inc. Group Company | Payable 58.118.013

3.5 Financial Instruments

A financial ingtrument is any contract thal gives rise 1o g fingneial asset of one eatity and a financial
liability ar equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets include in particular cash and cash
equivalenis, trade receivables or any other asseis that gives the rights.

Financial Tiabilities include contractual obligations to deliver cash or pnother Anancial asset (o
another entity. These mainly comprise trade payables, liabilities to banks in case if any or liabilities
arising from relared party transactions.

To determine their classification and measurement category, IFRS 9 requires all financial assets,
exctpl equity Instruments and derlvatives. to be assessed based on s combination of the antily’s
business model for managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics.

The Company determines its business model at the level best reflects how it manages company of
financial assets to achieve its business objective and in order to generate contractual cash flows.
That is, whether the Company’s objective is selely to collect the contractual cash flows from the
asgets or is o collect both the contractual cagh flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets,

If meither of these is applicable {e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes). then the
finaneial assets are classified os pard of business model and measured gt FVTPL, The Company’s
business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of
aggreeated poritolios,

As on date all the financial assets Tall under the calegory of bosiness mode| test,
A. Financial Instruments — Recognition and measarement
Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for the sale of goods or provision of services in
the ordinarny course of business, A receivable is recognised at the undizcounted amount of cash
receivable from that entity, which is normally the inveice price.

At the end of each reporting period. an assessment is made whether there is an objective evidence
of impairment. Estimatzs of the collectible amaount of trade receivable are made when collection of
the full amount is no longer probable, This estimation is performed on an individual basiz, Amount
which are not individually msignificant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and an
allowance applied accordingly to the length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates.
[mpairment loss is recognized through statement of income. Refer Note: 11,

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which
uses & lifetitne expected loss allownnce for all (rade receivables. To measure the expecied credit
losses, rade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days

past due.
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The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of customers over a period of 12 month
before each balance sheet date and the corresponding historical credil losses experienced within
this peried. The historical [oss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-leoking information
on macroeconomic facors offecting the ahility of the cumomess 1o setile the recejivables. The
Company has identified the GDP to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjustz the
historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

Az per the Company palicy, eredit loss allowanee for trade receivables is determined based on the
number of days that an invoice is past due. Credit loss allowance is 100% for amy invoice which is
past due for more than 363 days. As on March 31,2024, there is no credit loss allowanee as none of
the invoices have past due for more than 365 days.

Other receivables

Oiber receivables are considered ag current assels if they mature nol more than 12 monlbs after the
balance sheet date; otherwize, they are recognised as non-current asset. It is initially recognised at
fair value including transaction costs and carried al amortised cost using the effective inferest
method,

An acered income 15 an ncome which has been camed but oot vet received, Income 15 recognised
on the period in which it iz earned. Therefore. accrued income must be recognized in the
accounting period in which it arises rather than in the subsequent period in which it will be
recgived.

Dieposits consist of cash deposiled as security for electricity, visa fee etc. Refer Note: 11.
Ciish and cash equivalents

Caah equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 1o known
amounts of cash and that are subject ta insignificant risk of changes in value. Thay are held to meet
shori-teim cash commitments instead of for investment or other purposes. They are varried at their
principal amount.

Investments are classified as a cash eguivalent only when it bas 2 short maturity of less than three
manths from date of acquisition.

Bank overdraft is classified under cash and cash equivalents only if it is repayable on demand.
Refer Note: 12,

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 requires the Company to provide for expected credit lesses for financial assers measured at
amortized cost.

ECLs= are based on the difference between the confractual cash flows due in accordance with the
comtract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then
dizcounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate.

For credit exposures for which there hag not been a significant incrense in credit rigk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possikle
within the next 12-months (2 12-month ECL). Por those credit exposures for which theve has been
& significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, imrespective of the timing of the default
{a lifetime ECL),
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B. Financial liabilities

IFES 9 recognises two classes of financial liabilities: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss and other financinl linbilities measured at amordised cost using effective interest method.

On initial recognition. financial liabilities are carried at fair value less transaction costs. The price
determined on a price-efficient and Hauid market or a fair value,

In subsequent pesiods the financial liabililies are measured al amorlised cost. Any differences
betwreen the amount received and the amount repavable are recognised in income over the term of
the loan using the effeciive inlerest method,

Trade and other payvables

Trade payables are obligntions to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business. Trade pavahles are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the etfective interest method.

An acerued expense is an seommting expense recognized in the books before it is paid for. It is
a liability and s uwsually current. Thase expenses are typically periodic and documented on o
Clompany's balance sheet due to the high probability that they will be collected. Refer Note: 16.

C. Derecognizing financial instrom ents

Derecognition of financial asset

An entity shall derscognize financial asset only when the contractual right o the cash How expives
or settled or when the risk and reward iz transferred in such case the entity shall derecognize the
asset and recognize any rights and obligations refained.

Derecognition of financial lability

An entity shall derecognize financial lizhility only when it is extinguished i.e., when the obligaticn
specified in contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. An enlity shall recognize in profit or loss
the difference in the canving amount and consideration paid.

3.6 Provision for employees' end of service benefits

Short-ferm employee benefits are emplovee benefits (other than termination benecfits) that are

expected fo ke settled wholly before twebve months afier the end of the annual reparting period in

which the employees render the related service.

Post-emplovment bemefits are employves benefits (other than temmination benefils and short-tenm
employee benefits) that are payable after the completion of employment.

Other long-revm employes benefits are all employee benefits other than short-term employee
benefits, post-employ ment benefits and termination benefits,

Employees® end of service benefit

The entity provides end-of service benefite to its employees on the basis prescribed under the
United Arab Emirates (UAE) labour Laws.
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The end of sarvice entitlement is usually depended on the emplovees’ final basic salary and the
length of service subject (o the completion of the minimum service period, The expected costs of
these benefits are accrued over the period of employment and the benefits are paid to employess
on termination or completion of their term of employment,

In practice, |AS 19 Employee Benefits is not applied to certain end-of-service benefits because of
the costa and lack of actuarial data and resources. While thiz practice is not conaistent with TAS 19,
the treatment is accepted in practice because the effect is not material.

Provision is also made for the estimated liakility for employees’ unused entitlements to annual
leave as a result of services rendered by eligible emplovees up 1o the reporting doe.

The provision relating to apnual leave is disclosed as a current linbility, while that relating to end
of service benefits is disclosed as 4 non-current liability.

The management i5 of the opinicn that no significant difference would have arisen had the Bability
been calculated on an actuarial basis as salaev inflation and discount rates are unlikely to have
significant impacts. Refer Note: 14.

3.7 Boerrowings

Borrowings are initial rzcognition at fair value net of directly attriburable transaction costs, intessst
beating loans and borrowings are subsequently measured st amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method. Any difference in the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redempiion
value is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of borrowing vsing the
effective interest method.

Borrowing cast are the interest and other costs incurred by an enfity in connection with borrowing
of funds, Borrowing eosts directly ativibutable to the acquisition, consiruetion or production of
assets that take a substantial peried of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. are added to the
codat of the asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
perind in which their ingurred,

Short term borrowings are those debt incurred by the Company thal is due within 4y #ar,

Luong term borrowings are those owed for 3 period exceeding 12 months from the date of balance
sheet. There are ne borrowings as at reporting date. Refer Note: 15,

3.8 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that any economic benefifs associated with
that revenue item will flow to the entity and the revenoe can be relinbly measured.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking mito
account contractually defined terms of payment excluding discounts.

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers based on five step approach as set
out in IFRS 15;

= Fdenfifi confraciis) with a cugiomer: A contract s identified ag an agreement between two
or more parties that creates enforceable rights and abligations and sets out the criteria for
avery contract thal must be met,

s Fdentify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in
a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer,

18



Docusign Envelope ID: 301 AEAG4-3CA1-1B4A-AFEE-2BD025EEAGBE

LTTMindtree Middle East FA-LLC (formerly known as LTT Middle BEast FZ-LLC)
DUBAL U.A.E

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

®  Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of cansideration the
Company expects to be entilled to In exchange for wansferring the promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

»  dflocates fronsaction price to the performance ebligation in o contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation. the Company allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligalion in an amounl that depictz the amount of congideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for satisfying each performance
ohligation.

= Recogaive revenue; Becognize revetue when (or as) the Corpany satisfies a performance
abiigation. Refer Note: 17,

Bewvenue from sale of user licenses for software applicationshardwares will be recognised on the
tramster of title in the user license/hardware and completion of invoicing to the customer.
Costomer acknowledgmeni of delivery challan will act as proof of wansfer of the rile,
Subscription Products are invoiced annually in advance and the entire subsceiption term is
undividable.

3.9 Cost of services

Costs of sales are the direct costs atrributable in rendering the services. This amount includes the
cost of the materials used in rendering the services along with the direct labour cosiz,
Refer Note: 18,

3. 10 Corporate tax law

On December 09, 2022, the United Arab Emirates (UAE) Ministry of Finance ("MoF™) released
Federal Decree-Law No 47 of 2022 on the Taxation of Corporations and Businesses, Corporate
Tax Lavw (“CT Law™) to enact a new CT regime in the UAE.

The new CT regime will become efiective for accounting periods beginning on or after June 01,
2023, As the Company’s accounting year ends on March 31, accordingly the effective
implementation date for the Company will gtart from Apdl 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025, with the
firet return to be filed on or before December 31, 2023.The T Law confirms the rate of 9% 1o be
applied to taxable Income exveeding AED 375.000.

The Company has determined that the CT Law is not applicable to the financial year ended Manch
31, 2024, The Company 1s currently assessing the impact of these laws and regulations to
determine their tax statuz and the application of IAS 12 - Income Taxes and will apply the
requirements as they come into effect.

4. FATRVALUE DETERMINATION AND ANALYSIS

Fair walue ig the amount fior Wwhich an asset could be exchanged, or & liability settled, betvesn
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The stendard for fair value
measurement applies on initial recognition and subsequent menssurement when it required or
permitted by other sections of IFRS for SMEs. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an agset or paid to trangfer 2 liability in an orderly trangaction between marker participants at the
measurement date,

Fair value measurement iz applied under the presumption thar the transaction o sell the asset or

trgnsfer a liability takes place either in the principal market for that asser or lability or the most
advantageous market for that asset or lability,
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
calegorised within the fair value hierarchy, the levels of fair valoe hisrarchy are defined as follows:

Level 1: Measurement is made by using quoted prices (unadjusted) from an active markei.

Level 2: Measurement is made by means of valuation methods with parameters derived directly
or indirectly from observable market data,

Level 3: Measurement i3 mede by means of valuation methods with parsmeters nol based
exclusively on observable market data,

For financial assets and liabilities reported. there are no major difference between the carrying
amount and fair value,

5. RISK FROFILE AND ANALYSIS

Generally, the Company have exposure to the following risks from its vse of financisl Instruments:

= Credit risk
- Liguidity risk
= Morkst risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company®s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and monaging risk, and the
Clompany *s management of capital.

The Company®s Manager has overall responsibility snd oveesight of the Company®s risk
management framework. The Company's risk management framework is a2 combination of
formally documented policies in certain areas and informal approach to risk management in others.

The Company’s approach 1o risk management iz established to identify and analyse the rigk faced
by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and conmals, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits, Risk management policies and systemd ane reviewed regularly to rellect changes in market
conditions and its activities.

Credif risk anilysis

Clredit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company. if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, it arises principally from the Company’s
receivahles from customers, other receivables, balances with bank and amounts due from related
parties.

The Company monitors defanls of customers or counterparties identified collectively and
incorporaies the dinformation into its credit gl controls, where available at reasonable cost,
external credit ratings andfor reports on customers a3nd counterparties are obtained and used. The
Clompany™s policy is to deal with creditworthy counterparties,

The Company has policy of providing provision for those whizsh management think they cannot

collect. The provision is alse determined by reference o past detaull experience. The Company’s
cash iz placed with banks of good repute. 1 customer constitute 86% of the total receivables.
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Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due, Liquidity risk mainly relates o payables 1o supplierss ond the repayment of bank
boimowings and amoumts due to related parties.

The Company approach 10 managing Hauidity iz 1o ensure, ad far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normial and stressed conditions,
without incuriing unacceplable losses or risking damage 1o the Company’s reputation.

The Compony manages liquidity risks through, banking facilities and bomowing facilities, by
continuously forecasted and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
ane liabilities.

The Company cuerently has sufficient ssset to meet expected operational expenses. including the
servicing of financial obligations.

As at the reporling perod, the contract maturity of financial assels and liability are as follows:

Financial Azsets Less than 180 days|  More than 180 days
Cash and cash equivalents 2502778 o
Trade receivables 64,336,607 10.738.773
Argrued revenue 8,935,800 -
Dieposils 41,582 -
Emploves advance 111,014 -
Aamount due from related parties 2,400,583 2,757,022
Total Financial Assets 78,508,544 13,496,695
Financial Liabilities Less than 180 days More than 180 days
Trade payables 309,380 #
Provision for expensas 3408,367 -
Arnpunt due 1o relared parties 19,296,735 2,788,670
Borrowings from related parties - 76,138,758
Toial Financial Liahilities 23,012,482 78927428
Muarket risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange rates,
interest potes will affect the Clompany’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within
acceptable porameters, while optimising the return,

+  Currg L1

Currency risk is the risk thar the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, Generally, the Company s exposed
to currency risk mainly on purchases and sales that are dencominated in 2 cumency other
than the functional currency of the Compan .

Mot of the trangactions are denomingted in the same currency as functional currency and

for those foreign curreney transactions, exchange mtes prevailing al the date of iransaction
is used.
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Foreign exchangs gains or losses resulting from any such transactions are recognized in the
income statement, Henee cumrency risk s minimal, Por ransactions in TJSD there s no
currency risk as the currency is pegged with local functional curreney.
6. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICTES
The Company's capital managsment objectives are,

+  Tolmprove Sharsholders® wealth
+  To ensure the Company®s ability to continue as 2 going concern

MManagement assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall
finaneing structure while avolding excessive leverage.

The Company raanages the capital siructure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
ecanomic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying asseta.

In arder to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company adjusts the amount of retums {o
members, increase capital from the members, or sell assets to reduce debt,

2023-24 2022-23
Toral Liabilities 112480801 | 113,926,399
Less: Cash & Cash sguivalents (2.962,778) (71.082)
Net Debi 109,518.023 | 113855337
et Equity 19,209 440 15,956,983

22



€e

‘sread g o bread © woly semdinba NIoman

sy pue tma( f 0p smead fowoyy sdeadet) o vonesiuows Fuipeefas saewnise Fununaon 81 pesraas ey fuedwoy ayl 8 0d dnou® slundwo) sup sad fmuma U enopaaad ay) Fuwing

LLE' LS gE0G] Cpht L - F6L 58 EQE L99 ET0T 1€ WIRL IV
065 THE BLT'EL SO0 - 16T°19 LID'GOE FI0T “TE Y1 3V
LT LR xﬂa_ﬂ_ EZ
PIL TOE'] o oE [ el FS6'E 0z9'og ESEFSIC1 FIOT LS YU 1Y
LEL'RSE BCE'E 0PoT - EOEPE ORT'BEE ponad auj soy vogesaadag]
LEG'ELA Chl'EE £LE'RT poe'E LTT'Z9 LT 96L ETOT T YRR IV
18L°0085 Tal'st BI0'LT poe's CRELY CET'0TF auedwroy) dnosn) Wog Jagsrer]
EELEET FOE T 555 - TETFI FpoiEes potrad ey sog vonereatdag]
1TH IS - - - - 1Z¥'zs 7enz 1 My W
"—.:_ﬁn_uﬁ.:wﬁ.u —wﬂunn:.ﬁ_:uuﬂ
FLE'SRT' L TEL BT RLT'0E FER'E LLG'LE1 DOE'€9F L FTOT “LE YRIEf IV
. - - . - - poTEad 217} J0J SUOTIPEY
FIE'S69'T TELBY 81T 0E FEGE | L6 LFL (5 E9F 1 £L0T T R 1Y
FTOL66 Tl Bt SIT06 FEGE I 16°LFl e buripdugty ) dAoaD) wogy s3jsuia]
650°SEE - - - - GEDSEE poLsad 2y) 203 SUOHIPEY
LETE0E | = = . 1£T°65¢ ZT0Z T Ty 1y
n—m_“.“..__
S EAANINT ] e G gymammandds symamdinba il
I AN Proyasea HATMPIN] # 1

spuamdinba pue puepd lyiadoag i

(FUDILLT SIRAIET QUL U])
PZOT “IE Y2IE] PIPUa JEaA ) Jog
SJUITIAYE]S [EIIUEUL] 1) 0) S2J0N

TV e
(1 1=Z4 1883 APPIY (LT 98 vy LLomso]) T T=Z4 1883 APPIY 0Py |11

BE9YI85E0082-98 47wl Ly De-bavay LOE | edojeruz ubignsog



Docusign Envelope 1D 301 AEAG4-3CA1-4B4A-AFEE-2BD0Z5EEAGBE

LTIMimdtree Dliddle Easy FZ-LLC (formerly known ng LTI Middle East FZ-L1.C)
Dubai, UAE,

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024
{('n Arab Enirates Dirhams)

11

Intangible asset Barch 31,
2024 2023
License to use assets
Cosi:
At April 1, 2022 62 440000 62440000
Additions during the »ear - -
At bMarch 31,2023 62 440,000 62,440,000
Additions during the yesr - -
At March 31, 2024 62 440,000 62,440,000
Amortsation:
At April 1. 20322 | 2,088,840 12,088 840
Amortisaticn for the year 10,408,667 10,406,667
Atf March 31, 2023 22495 507 22,405 507
Amortisation for the year | 0. 406,667 10,406 667
At March 31, 2024 32,902,174 32.002,174
Net valoe
At March 31, 2024 29,537 526 29,537 820
Afbarch 31,2023 30 544 403 30 044 403
Cnntract assets Mareh 31,
2024 2023
Contracl assets
Cuosi:
At beginning of the vear 2,598,781 ZR0R.7R1
Additiums durmg the year - -
2,898,781 2808 78]
Amortsafion:
At beginuing of the year T6hBT3 165.703
Amortization for the year 461,571 &0 170
1,228 464 ToA.873
Net boole value 1.670,317 2131903
Men-curent contract aspets 1,051,105 1,575 488
Cuitent confract asseis 619,212 3356420
Non-current gther receivables March 31,
2024 2033
Depasits 5,125,000 3,127,080
Prepayments - 393,62%
5125000 3,520,708
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13

Trade and Other receivalles March 31,
2024 2023
Trade receivahles TH,075,380 T4 486,308
Accrued revenne 955,800 4,113,116
Prepayments 1,908,558 1398116
Advance to vendog A0, 166,344
Employee sdvance 111,014 114,574
Deposits 41,582 39502
6,843,245 #0317 960
Ageing analysis March 31,
2024 2023
Meiher due por impaired 17.772.4861 26,299.873
D but not impained
1-30 davs T, 194 T28LM2
31-50 days 16,572,237 24 700 525
91-180 days 22,082 314 14,187 442
Mire than |81 days 10,738,773 2,426 622
75,075,380 74,486 303
Cagh and cash gyguivaleniz March 31,
2024 20125
Cash at banks 1,062,778 71,062
1,962,778 71,062
Transactions with related party

The Group entera mto trangactiens with companies and entities that fall within the definition of o related party
35 comntained in Infernationzl Financial Eeporting Standards (IFES). Related parties comprize companies and
entities under common ownership and/or conunon management and control: their porners and key manogenet
personnel.

The management of the Company beligves that the terms of such transactions are not sigmficantly different
from those that could have been obtamed from thisd parties n UAE.

The Company poovidesireceives funds tofrom mlated pertizs 8z end when required a5 working capital
facilifies
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At the end of the reposting period, due 10 related parties were as follows:

Amount due from related parties March 31,
2024 2023
Larsen gnd Toubso lfeech Lid., Dubai - 230,026
LTMindtree Limiled, Saudi Asabia Branch 327740 333,624
LTIMindtres Limited, US Branch 492 472 109,795
LTIMindires Sverpie - 306,643
Nielsen = Parmer Pie Lid - 66,783
LTIMindtree Limited | Singapore Branch 274,146 -
LTI indtree UK Limited 20,973 =
LTIMindtree Limited Dubai Branch 035408 =
LTIMindtree Limited | Qatas Branch 167,571 -
Forex (zainjloss on payable from BP (3,695) -
5,158,485 L, 115873
D within | year 5,158,485 L, 115873
Dee afier 1 wear - -
Amounl due o related parties BMarch 31,
2024 2023
LTIMindrres Limited (loan) 20,000,000 33,500,000
LTIMindrrea Uk Limirad - 14,374
LTIMindtree Limited (pareul Company) ZZAT2.RER 8,353,311
LTIMindtree Financial Services Technologios Inc. 5,118,013 50,714,561
Fuorex {gain}loss on loan from LTI indtres Financial Services
Techaolagies Inc. (LY7T9.255) {2.056,958)
Fores (pain)/loss on payable o RP 12,517 B2 BEE
95,224,163 92.768.177
g within | year UR,224,163 92 768.177
D after 1 year - i
The nature of significant related parties ronsactions and the amounts are ag follows:
March 31,
2024 2023
Recharge of expenses from
LTIMindtres Limited 5,591,939 36,937,802
Larsen and Toubro Infotech Lid,, Dubat branch Td¥2 156,604
LTIMindtres LK Lomited 16,159 148 923
Syncordia M,A, - 609,631
MIELSEM+PARTNER. Untemchmensherator AG - 11,765
LTIMindtree Svergic 3358 -
LTIMindtree Limited LS Branch 43,329 -
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Recharge of eXxpenses 1o
Oveiheads charped 10 LTIMindtree Limited. Savdi Arabia branch 789,910 847,211
Overheads charped 10 Dubai branch = 37,5860
Overheads charged 1o Miglsen + Partner Pre Lid - 66,783
Ovetheads charged (0 Abw Dhaba branch - 2870
Owerdeads charged 0 LTIMindtres Limited . Qatar Brasch To¥,590 -
Revenue from
LTI indtree Limited, Saudi Arakia branch 2,112,268 4 546 68%
LTIindtree Limited, US Brasch 990,868 TaN843
LTIMindtres Svergie 197,765 366,645
LTIindtree Limited 05212 -
LTindtree Limited | Singapore Branch 1,508,603 -
Oiher Incomé [rom
LT indtres Limited 15,147,741 47,134,093
Comniizsion cxpenses
LT indtree Limited 503,047 462,500
Finance charges
LTI indtres Limited 2,728.442 2,603,704
LTIMindtree Financial Services Technologies Ine. 4,806,237 FA2T.089
Loan taken
LTTh indtres Financial Services Technalogies . Tne. 89,201,759 134597261
Loan repaid
LTThdindtres Limited 15,500,000 20000, 000
LTI indtres Fmancial Services Technologies | Inc. 2,000,004 13.806.497
Employees end-of-service benefits Dlarch 31,
2024 2033
Balance at beginning of the period 3467317 3,968,962
Paid during the year (1169400 (1,789,411)
Provigion for the pesiod 1,554.637 |,287.766
3,852,554 3467317
Borrowings Mlareh 31,
2024 2033
Short=term borrowings® = 8,766,293
- 8. 766293

# The emount is Crvendraft facibity granted by HSBC Bank, which iz fully bacled by Corporate gusranice grven
by LTThinchtree Lid., the Parent company covering the facility upto AED 37 mallion.
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18

15

Trade and other payables March 31,
024 2023
Trade payable 309,380 438,076
Staff payable 5 5B 456 5421 847
Provizion for expenyes 3,406,367 1,995 B31
Uneamed revenue 4036610 31744901
Other payable 697,271 672957
10,404,084 8,924.612

March 31,
Revenoe 2024 2023
Peverme from services 103 481,618 126,002 084
Sale of license producis 4,871.899 443 102
108,353,517 126535086

March 31,
Cast of revenue 2024 2023
Porchases of license products 4,290,902 270,548
Salaries and uther benefits 92,285,927 118,634,230
Sub-coniracting expenses T.H)3,153 30565447
Other direct cost 1,361,798 2 168376
TR, 841,780 151 639,001

March 31,
General and sdministrative expenses 2024 2025
Legal and professional chavges 020460 LI3R518
Commizsion expenses 03,047 462 500
Forex loas 440,997 -
Bank charges 32415 337491
Offige expenses 164,361 171 445
Remt 169,925 163210
Advertising and buminess promuotion 58358 58,705
Communication expenss IT068 48,390
Insurance 23978 7597
Convevance and tiavelling axpaige 4,367 1213
3,752,576 5 489 (60
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1. INfindres 1K Liniined
Begiylered Mumbes [12617356)

siralgric Heport
fue Uic ot cnced 31 Manch 2024

Ve drectons presesit (heis strotegc tepart frr the yeae erded 31 darch 262-

EEAVTEW OF BUSINESS
Tae Company's revcaus fram operotlons for the Anancial year unides rovicw wore GBI® 56,765,462 a3 against LOP L8467 M
for Ure previvus financial year, The profil hefore bu wac GOE 2498062 for the Gumncisl year Lader review st spaina GEE-

142,731 fo the previous Basncinl year,

FPRINCIFAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIE= )
T dwrectons consicer 1nar finane s, risks rebevant to company ors veedil tids, cxsh flow risks, and Tiquic by rids.

Credit risks

Credic risk is ihe risk of Enancinl loe to Ui Coonpay i & cownterpnrty 10 3 Snandial insoursent fasls ta mee: its conlructio |

shligarion which it priomary alirsbutalde 1o its trade receivables. The company 1§ aleo cupaded ta credit risk 4 bom other
firnneinl auiete. which compise ef Group o panies” coceivables, covh und skoet-toren deposits. The COmpand’s expirure (-
predit rich dises fron the desaul: oF the coun‘roparty wilh ¢ i’ expostre equal oo the camyimg value of these

g unents if & oou menpuny (o feancial Biarensat Tk oo et i1s conoacraal ohlipzncs. The ciumpany has oredit policy

in piace which is reviewed wnd pwndtoe @0 2 oigelag rasis, New oredit cuaomen are onfy ascepaed afer they have beer

approvied by the credit gonirgl deparment Cxsh ie loaged with reputuBle linunusal mitinions that have hees pre=z; oroval

by 1he bdicd

Cmgh fow and Lyguidity visk

Liys iy o°el: i the risk that e Company muy nox be able 1o meet 13 Erancial obfigaions as they fall dug, The Compmay
rrsumes fhae there are suletznt Joveh uf corioed Mmcllics pad sish toenwre that the Compauny 15, 6l 3il Ve, able g mes
W5, fimancial eemmitments, Ligmding risk is rranaged by daly and wedly momituing of farecast end actupl &ah Saws. The
Compaiy iy Gaanced wih apogopeate Jengslem and short-lena Snacce 10 asich e liquidity reqe: remends af e busdie:s,

RYCTHIN 17201 REPORTING

Tz Ditcetors 73y e acted in 3 W1V 1haechey ronsidered, in good fiith, would be st Bkely 10 peoiece the supceis of Cearpany
fow the benedits of its imerubers as & whols, a0d & doing 3o had regwrd (ameags othes mianere) ta e nabters hded w soction
I i) wd ) when perfocining their doties anad sommeenn < fallows:

8) the Direcocs ate sahsfi=! skal the cwrra:l Suyiscss ativily 15 i the long serm Interes: of Lhe Compuny and ils Stardnlder ]

k) =h= Diesatrs votidevs dat g employess are one o the key stskchotdes ad eonlinue b it dn trioring and suppenting
ol the erolapees i Lae ndersianding el a well infrmed wed wauied workiooee iv evaasial fer the Coonpany’s angeing
LICCoRE,

&) the Directors bawe adequese’y foaered the busines: Telatioushiz with the sappliers, customers and sthery,

dl e Dirccfon, we salished ard have sropesly fesponded o (e needs of the seemmuanity an) concems regaoding the
envrummsetil, duc io the operxina of the company;

¢) thr Company's businas is prusiding IT 2ad ether relaed services, and the Dorcctis s wee salishied that the Campany have
matntiined § repuAlsion o Righ stardards of tusingys comduel, incdiding s dealing werk s Sastomecrs, cmpluyzes anc e
regulatocs, md

1 Company has 2dogualcly and fiely kept its uhareholdees fully infaemed and provided quarterdy financial staterioncs and
progreds o dve Comipany' s busimess,”

DEVELOPYIENT AND PERFORMANCE AND FOSITION AT THE END UF TRE YEAR

The (lpmnany secoeded peet™ afla tax of GBE | S55.247 (IVT2-00 - GHE 1,643, 152) and lomover of GBPY 39,763,401
[FY22.8% . GBF 2 067,110
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L (Mindiae UK Limiied
Reyistered Fumber [ 17817%58)

Rapart af the Pirecives
for e year eaded 31 March 2074

Tre drreciens prosant thels repon wirh Ine Jinarsis! Maloneits of the company: fer the year mdal 3 B Lurch 2024,

PRINCIFAL ACTIVITY ; e .

‘Ite Compar.y, 3 mwivate linsied company liilsd by shares, incorperdled 2nd Lomicled Ly u-.:; frined Luu4m|, i magaged
inta peoviding IT sarvives. uiod 3dag eppii zation develupacnl, Liplernenimion, systen inbe e o0, appl ication mauntenande,
eling and support srvices. The company is whely owrted subsidiany of LTIMindtroe Limiled, 0 compary incorpoested in
Tindim

HRENTLTS AND DIYIDENIS )
Ma ividends it be dictriteeed Fr Gie vear sided 31 March 2004 Hewlls fae dhe pomr seof wid 8 page no. 9

RFSEAHLN AND DEVELOPMENT . .

b 1 mpidy changme glubal landseane where diaugion, is the new nammal, tha <ipasy is <veraging 12eARakTy 10 creale
vz rakle |,;|-f.|'||3¢ ned only for fleed Fwr more impcﬂqr.l!y. fur i ali =it While lht{‘l:ﬂ'l'lplh}' Pﬁ\lh{ﬂl-“‘ﬁfu emperiige
in divcuse deanias i has W% Invessad consciously truris huilding expervise (n exponmbal tecdtrwlegies

FULURE DEVELOPMENTS . . ‘ .
Te t'ampany plans fo cadine (o rlantlessly focus 55 sCategy woich is abwia hislping our chienls naviyaie o diglal fubcre.
It comtiziues te Baild solid Fuadamentals, drive growth momeniun: ac4 ¢ foree parmerships tohelp clions cacover

DIRECTORS . A
GLdmy Chotumyveds grd Soives Raahas held office duriag dic whole of ch e peraxd fever Lion to lhe Sle of Lhig cepeet.

FINVANCIAL INSTRUMENTS oo .
fes conedany's policy niol 1o errer mio trding of e specalally = wdtw e J: Fespea af firaccial mberenl. Relér ke ateauning,

pe= e dor Firther dewnls on (inancdi. Dislanes.

IS AT KD EMPLOVEES ; , ;
The compaty ' pitic) 13 to recrun Juaklad woiker for dvese vadangias Tt they are uble o LIL ."t.!1 ACCESSAry Assistince welk
eliad Wraiting Sourses it piven, anee coplayed. o cameer plan s eoviliopod wo a8 to Sbire kable oppectunifivs Itu sach
izabl &l sereon. Amvanpamimis ure rade. wheren or possible fur retanicg cpleyocs who becnme disabled, 1o enabe Len 1o
perfarm work identifive 35 apprupciale 1o thelr apailudes and whilico,

GOUNG CONCERS % : i
In awtemeirp Use guing coneem nssonplion for the Compry, we have periesined 3 decailed Trvew of Coanpay's Jraected
wch fiows ies pesiod of 12 moaths frodn ehe dete of appeavel Ll tbese tinatcial atemerls.

The analyxis w0 il wded @ eview of Company's finisial posit.on and perflrnnance arnd spuiflc wnni:lcr:l'i!r,:ﬁ whHS given
1a the ‘vherent dishs acs0c iated wirh Crenpmiys busizeas model We bave, 38 the Uime of opproving the fnancial satemenss,
2 reasonasle expecration thal dne Comaary has edoquaie resources lo conlinue o opecalnd, Immm_ﬁf e f?rwmb!!
Spire and 12 meet reawnably wiry aredtable Lquiciy sequiccsants. Thus. we conneder that it (= appropride i Centyanss
finmneial satements are prepared on the paiog conver Lesis,

CHYLENINOLSE GAS AND ENFRGY L .
The ancopaery dacsh'l have b resart e groenhvuyy gus e insions 2ok energy wsage for lhes peiad wr b l}ns i W&fd (2.8
se* thresncld of 0900 Xilowails. We xonsider tie Knpast o e myizonment or. o 1lltr-1u-d!=y opetatioan .'I.E‘K' A s ¢
e i ramized, rurtiar dsclusw o ool how We (ercnste 8 Sonparole ciltune bused on exhical valies und bebueviom: 33 includec
2 the aooiad responshbaling secten it hilpeSwwy, Windtr ee.com
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STATEMENT OF DIRFCTORS' RESPUNSIRNLITIES
The Eireciny e ternswitic fot preparing the Sirxegic Hepon, the Repon of the Dizectes ard the finwmwial staterents in
aweardance witly appfi:.ablr law and regalniiors.

Compuny law requincs Cie diregieds to prepas duacial asicmems for caly finanee! yesr  idenvnat l2w the dirssiors have
slested 3y prepare the e anvial 11 coueals i accandmee with U2 -adepted inlemationa) seo mieing standunls. Under congany
Ly thé dingenisns maest Aot anpeuve the tinancial saiemns unless they ore sadinficd Whiat Lt @ve n true and tuir wiew of the

<tave oF 3BFnins ot e company aund G <Rz profit o loss of fhe snmpuny Far chai penod . I peeraming these financisl saicmens,
the dircetons ars eequread tox

~elvct suilasde speourding palicies aad then 1pply thent comentently.

- ke judpsiverts and acoauining estimalocthal are reasmsble and prudent;

- sizsc that fns Finanadl staismens comply with te Intematical Financil Stoemen Reponing Sandands {(IFRSL
suliject lo any nateial dapamres divoud and mvpleinied in the Gromcial ssermenls;
grepare he fivencial sha.cioants ¢n Mhe going cancern brux wiless it inamproprasic 1 praxun: that the wargany Wil
oortimue in asiness.

The Jirariors ave reponsible bor kecping A3:quale prvubaing eavarts that ace sufficiont (o chow and exglain the company™s
L sacrions aid Jisclose woth casorabe mCuracy 3 Y time Uie Gnanciad position of Ihe sungany 3! enalde them o
coriure that Uhe Anancial sinemencs carply with (e Cecnpanies Acl 2006, They act also regdomsible foc satepuwdiag the
1s5els 0f the Commpuny ad neoce foe leking crasonakle Aeps S (e preneion ud defechian ab fraw) aard other igpalwives.

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSIRE OF INFRRMATION TO AUDITORS

Sy Sar s the Grestort are avare, thers 2 0o relovat sudn information (et defned by Scciicn ALE wfths Campanic: At 20040
F which the cea-pans's 35disurs we wrasare, w c2ch directin hias taken 21l Muzsieps 1hat he ougal 1a have i e o Jirecioe
.o arabe T ke homeelf awars of any eelevant 2ucit infursatica and 1o establizh that e curpang’s auditors nee awarcal
bl imiwimadicm. .

ALDITORS

The sucitors, PG Assesiaes (LUNDON] 20, witl be propesed (e re-appointmenl 31 the forthooming Aanisl Cicreval
Mecling.

QN BR1ALF OF TIE BOARD:
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LTIMindirey UK Limited
© g h | 281 75545

Repart of [sdepeodeat Awdiions to the membery of LU indiree TH Liouted

Cipiniom

Wl: hoawe sudized the Broncid vutemenis oF LTUMindeee UK Lipiced e "Comoucry’; Do the your ended 31 Mach 2024
wiies somprive the Satenet of Profl of Lose, the Seatepient of Peafil o [oes and Other Congochent:ve [neame, tha
Sutemen! of Foumgeal Position, the Stzienent of Caanpes in Egelly, te Sratenicnt of Cash Flows, Notes L the Firaacad
Stateraets, (woloding A summary uf signilicuat woeounting polizies. The financial reportirg Bamewark that kas beco applied
wi fhewr przparstion is applicable I aud UR-aopied Inwemationa’ Accoenting S-anizals.

In ot oaknen. Lhe Ananeial Sélamens,
ive a v ang laie view ¢f Iae sale of the Corgany’s affairs as at 31 Masch 2024 and o 15 prof foc the period the: scded,
Aave bacn proserly prepaced e s2cordancz with Uk afonied [tamsuonal sccouniing Stud£ds: an
mave beon peepured i sueuedamcc swilll the Tecarervnts of the Lompames Acl 2006,

Hagls Tor opinkon

We zsvadicied <wr audit S sosn danee with Inlemaional $anrody an Aucditing (LK) 1154s {UK); ond arpli<able lsw. Cur
revponyibilizies wader those sandards are fartaer descibed fr Qi Aslinors' tesponsi bilitkes e ahe audil of the financall
siaienants 2ecrion of v vepret. We we independert of the Company in aocondance with the cikical recusermanis the: Me
sefevand L3 car audil of the foaial s:ceencs in the UK, incluging the FRC's Edial Siandwd, and we have falfiled sur
olmer ethical Tespansibilics m necordance warh these roquirenents. W bel.eve thas the adit evidence we have ablawed is
suflicient and anpeeorate e prosade a Lasis (o our opanion

Conclusions relaiiog v goog cooeern

The drecroce have prescedd the Baancal sixemend on e gomp ooa3r Byns 25 divecier 2acs nall Lisend Lo liguidate thes
Compary ac In oo | % eperaticns, a2 as director nas vorghded izl the Company’s finarcial pasiion means that this i=
rewlingi Dwrmctr hag also conciuded i There are me cuteried woertainties that tould kave cast significant doubt oves i
anliry 10 CORCINUE BS & Eoing soncern for wl bz o year fon the dase of appronsl of the financul surenet's ("The geing
CORGETR perins ™}

In cur evelualicn 30 the da eotors’ conniutions we sorsidered sur kauselmdge of Company and is induary, Companics camren®
ard preanled ¢a55 flans, inaerenl misis 12 the Compuny's busioms o] and mlyiadl ‘.'!f:r.- e wishs irighe offest dhes
Comonsy's lmancal reurees & 2bulif 10 continue opailsdd over the PRANp "oncem peTioc.

Cnir conclusaon baser on his work: ) _ :
- W corside that the dusciuns’ e of gong 400 26T 33513 of pecolatiag L the preparation of the finurcial stytemen is
ApEr Ml z

We lonve net oSind fied. &nd concue wth dircclors” msuososest! hat Tese s nol, 3 nﬂa'ilt] wneenairty refaled o evenis or
conditiva s ‘hat, individual ly or colioctively. osay cza signdi cant docbocn the Company’s wbility to vontinue 5 a goutg concena
far thie pasing sczicem evicd.

Oer respacssbilizies and e nsponsibiliries of Girecton s with respecs <o gaung coocem wedneeibed in the Felevant saesion oF
il repon

inwigr, 46 We c2ol peedicl L futwre evenm’s or cundluons and as subsequen: pamtx may rosull i outoomics 1l e
inans sbant with judgonyants that wire rezserable stthe Linie they ware mede, “ae ubove conclusiuig ¢ No1 3 guarantas thas
the Commpry wit. cond nue im cpesahdn

Oiber informa o

The direcies are respedsible for $3¢ othes infarmation ., Ths ethe wftamnation comesises the i3 foremansn in e Stategy Repore
sare) thg Bleport af “he Lhsector, ber drec nat inctude e Geanzial satoments and our Bepoet of the Acditers thereon,

Our ogimun oo Oie Gruwceisl statements does not cover the otber inflwmaion and, ¢x2epr eo the extenc olierwivs soplisally
slated if CUT FEPOTL, W €3 nol expreas any foom of assummes conclusicn therees.
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LTIMindree Uk Linges
Ecgisleo: Mumlbue (12817256 ]

Report of Independant Auvdiiors (o the members of LTIV sdiree UK Limried [ecotioned. =

Orlyer infarmatiun (Conlioued. ]

Liv ooty wat o sudie of die firmr 2ial caemane, i responcibality s to rewt the vthier fufanoeion aad, in dodsg so,
ot gider whethat the ofher infoemation. is materally musasiaont with the Snantial statemns of our knowied 2e obuaines in
U'e madit or atherwise appears to be materially missiated, Jf we G40 SUSh Maleial wwonsisteraies or apparent material
sl Craents, We afe cequiad 10 CEldrmise Whether s ghved rise o b marcrial misstalement in the finansial stemenis
themssives 12 hased o the el we heve parsemed, we conclude that thire s & muberial misHataiam of s oihor
infarmalion, we ase required to repord ek fud, We llave nohong e report s Dis reRal &,

Cipinioas vo ol ber matiers prescribed by 1he Comproles Act 2006
1 owr ogonion, hazed oo che work ond smoden <o e cowrse ol the wedit:
- the irdarmainn given in the Sowiepic Report mwl Report of the Duactos far O1e foancial year for which the francsl
slatearasts are prepered 15 comsident with e fvancial Facsmenis, and
- Jae Seracgie Kopari and Reporl of the JXresiory havee heen prepared in accord crce with applcable lege! requzemente.

Maliers o whiech we are vequired [o report by caceplidn )
Ir t2.2 Liske oF tha imawiedes and undersianding o1 the Company and dbs urviroannsit obtzined in tre opirse of the audic, we
Fave et nbaticd malenal sisstatenasia in e Reporl of the Directors sk SHalegic Repon.

W bave noshing 10 report in respest of the keliowing muticry whas the Companies Act 2006 regaires us to repart i /%0 Y,
iy 2er g

. :.du.'qﬂ-: azernling rovecds heve mot Léer: sept, oF resians adequate For cur 26t hove nat hean sucesved from kranches no
vindled by us; uv

- he fanancial slazements Weno in agresmen with the sociuntiog rocurds e rotures, ¢

- eeslain iiszloswres ol direcion’ newwendion speci Ged oy |89 are noy inade; of

- WE ave 0o reveived 217 the infinmates drnd explananions e requine (oe ope asdir; or

Hgpondlhilivies of Srecoprs -
As caplained raere Fally in the Staterent of Direciars' Responsiba'itias see ot an page four, Uhe dirccien: are respansible G
the giopaationn of e linancicl statenenls 3ad 10 Being af:hied (har they pive & oue and fair viow. and for such Tuemel
ocotrol as e dizectors dememing asveviary tn vnuble the preparatin of Eraneial sdatoments the! are Beo Lo materal
misstLermaenr, whesher due (o drasd or e

In prepacing the firgne.al Kalenents, the @reciors are responsibie for sssessing the Cocpeny’s shility 1o cornie as 4 going
soncerm, disclonag s spplicatle, makers related 1o paing eoncem and usoiy the poeny corcam basds of accounting unles
ihe direcrer il i neende (o iquidule the Compumy o 16 Seas Operal:00s, oF has na retliaic aManedive il to do s

Aunditors’ responsibililies fnr rhe sudi of ibe finaocial atemente

Chur o relives urr b oblain 1 Go0nabie asstrance Bhoul whetker the finans.al staements 78 A whols are free fom materil
wisslatoncent, whether dize o bread or frar, 3d todie & Bepare of the Auditers 2 inzledes vor opinaa.  Regsogbie
ansuramee is 2 Digh level 9T asuranye, bt i it & gerwiter tha! en audil tandeded i accordance wilh J8As (UK) wil slwaye
gleret] % mzlerial rowlstemaen] when o oot Mlissateciats san atse Som Baud or evde rel ste cancidered maceral i,
wil vidiasly or i e wgorawrsie, thay could trasenaly be expectes intuence the auinumic docsivi of wsers Wxen i e
bacis of these financal staverneoss.

Lhe exlent o whizh o procedures ars capeble of detecting Lregularies, locluding fraud is dosailed below: Hinvever, Lic
Primary rspensibilily fvr the preversion wd defection off Fand rescs with those charped with yovernacee of Gie Camipay.

Our approach was a5 fodlows,

- Waahinaal § penatai underaanding of the legal pnd regulatory Gamew orks that weopglicable 10 the Comgany and obcaned
w penzral e alending wl fvow e conipany 35 complying with those Wamew teks by raking enguiries of man sgorent uvd
st rosponsitds for legol and complasne macrers nf tha Uompary.

- Tor toth dires anc oche Lows wed regulabions, vur procodencs mvelsed. cradag enquiny of the ditetors of *re Dompany
far their awaresess of zay wonceniplence of Laws of regulanians, Lngudring abeut she pot vies thert havs bom sahilideed te
preverl non-contyliatee with ang and reguiaions by e fficers anc employses

Page 7



L MIncimee UK Linvined
Aeilered Nyinber £12817556)

Report of lndependent Anditry in ibe memhern LTTMindirec UK Limited (cootiourd... )

Auditors' redposdibelltics Tor the awdil of 1be Hoamcin] Lattotdld {{Ch0UNNEE. )

- The Company is enpaged = praviding IT mid celuted servivex A such the Senier Stattony Auditne l.‘ﬁ.'l..ll.lﬁ'.":ﬂl ?.h:
experience and Laporise of the cyugrrienl o do ensure that the leam had the appropritie competziioe and capabalilics,
which bicluded e use of speciathss where appropriace.

- Uter arocedures included en guiries with the nimsegeman eoaceroing any aenal of pesential Fidigotion nr claam inspectior
of re.evant lepsl coqrespanibance; review of board wninges; fesing the appropriavensss of enries in the pominal Jodger,
ircluding juanz. miing reviewing Yendrats aroutd the end of the reporting perfad: and the parfonnuie of vzl
procedures 1o [Amiify unexpacted reovements in sacownt helaecvs which may he indicative of frand.

Mo i stzawons of imalarial no-gos plianes were identified, blowever, the likelihaac of detectinp imegubariticy, including fraud.
i5 Limated by the irleesent Jifficuby in detectng izrepdarnes, the efeevivianass of (ac enlicy’s conlrels, wid Une miture, (ahulg
ard exten: o the auili: procedurcs porformed. Trspuland &3 Ul result ron faud might be inbiereni 1y maose difficuil to deeny
than cregabeites et renall foven arvod. As explained shove, there bs2n aofu iaabie ek thas materis. misdolemene may aM
e Jerocred, even Brougl: the audiy kas heen phianed (nd Jerfrmed i acourdwncs with 1548 (UK.

A furh = dawiptius of ow respoasisilines for 0t oudit o she firancinl salemenis i+ bcaled on dee Firnancial Reporting.
Fowrcils webcite a1 wyw fro.org k' sadiorsesy ansibilines 1his devzn peivn fomos part of vw Report ef the Audiloss,

L)se ol wur repon

This raport 15 made sa.ely to the Connpany’s usmzibers, a5 3 2ody, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of Cie Conspanies
Act 2006, Caur audit work has beer undertsken 20 dvat we might siase to the Crar.pany's mambess, ot e craners we are required
o ke “o Them i 3 Repor) ¢F1he ALdiions and fr no othier prpose, To the fillest eaieed perndneil 53 Lav, \We G2 not accept
o amswine sesg ssibi lily W snyune clnes Gan the Compary and the Company’s pensbers 85 A body, for aur st work, foe
thix ropor, o for dhe apuniens we Lave Jormied.

‘o

Ulpinither Saniney | Senics Sawrary Audiixn)

s 2ad o0 behalfof FHG Agsovistes {LONDON LYD
Chirered Cerinlivd Acveunianty wd Stulaiory Audinors
7T Heiyaesd Béad,

B naham

B g feandl

BZLOLG

Dwie: 18 Apnil, 2023
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I.TIMindiree: Uik [aweed
Regizimed Nujnbe [12817556)]

Sbalemmeny af J5ufit oo Loss

for Zic youe opdod 3, March 2074
CONTINUING OFPERATIONS
Ravenus

Croat ol sales

GROE5 FRORNT

fiLier nper g income

Admenisraive gxpensss

Cpiratiag profit before impairmen: pllowipce
Rl bnpuizrend clawsino: on ratk rveweahle and contradt e

DFERATING FROFIT
Finam e vl 5=

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAN 5

Inroeme A

FROFIT FOR THE PERM»

Pagi=%

Mte reses form pant of dbiese hrancial sleiaiiie

31,0324
56,265,462
[=R313.537L)
A A%R20M
6,015,042

Lo, 748,740

2,707,396
33572

2750769
{312,797

2058000
(+81,755)

1,935,300

30323
£1,067,319
(41,304 091
9,673,228
1,373,747
135 BCTy

2,453,208
129.4029)

2,414,178
(181,755

7,147 554
(437,201 =

Lbaldhk



LTTMindiee UK Limived,
Regisrervd Number (| JELF538)

Seaterrgnr of Prof T or 1095 and Qther Ggaiprensnsive Incong
fig_the vear eealect 1] March 2034

SROFIY FOR IEE PILRIOD
CTHER COMPELIENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL COMPREIENSIVE INCOME FUIR THE PERIOD

Pagz 10

The notes form part of these finanuiad slsienedts

1040324
E
14553457

LSS



I.{.:Iq i: "EII‘I‘ . i
Riisiered Nomber {128 17556

$|umu:1:1_;:r Eun euicial !'ljx['tlr:l‘l
for ahe yaar eaded 31 Ma 0y 20240

ASSFRTS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
iight of Lae Agsers

butergable arscis

Property, plar and squipmenL
Defempad tax asaciy

{URMENT ASSETS
| rede any viher reeei vables
Cash and sash equivdlents

TOTAL ALRFTE

EQUITY SHARE.ACLDBERS' BYUryY
Alled Lp ahare cipieal

Bocta il cansings:

TOTAL EOLTTY

LIARILITLES

NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lenze Liahalitiex
[refemed Tas Luabrl:lien

CLUMBENT LTARIITIES
Peorrowings

“Trade anel other oayables
oot lighililins

Lesus Jaubililes

Corrend Do iakilises (MNet?

TOTAl 12401, ITRS

TUTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES

"

ol

B
15

=

18
b

20

01

4,311,922
95,027

E

I, 245,559
bt

e AL

<L DEL NG

1,000
4982171

2ALLTIR
128,13

1.547,628
11,867,629
97.85¢
191,682
146,759
|4 351,577

19 098,408
LKL ATE

3A3E

1,422,735
B.G6
Yosi42

— |2
FRELEE IS

1,150,720

1,630,429

L1066
b2 L6
4R,
241,60
354 45m
¥.551,%25

16,212 24k
13,240,112

The finareial suaiemens were appegyved by the Board of Dircctoes wel sthociscd foc issue an 18 Apcil 2024 mnd were sign »i

e Lo hebwl (U byys
ob

Tr2 notes feam part of these Arnancial garements




L1 iedree LE Lirmieed
Ruggsersd Nincber [12817550)

Sweternmbol Clamkes (v Bquily |
for fhe yiar erded 3] AMareh 2004

Halasce nt 1 April 2027

Chuoges in cguity
T otal comprchonsiye IDoERE

Balamce 8 31 Maorch 223
Chaoges impquity
lawuz of dewre capival

Timal zorprchanaive ircreme

Ralatce 831 Marceh 1024

Called up Share

eNpia.
[
1, HID

Page L2

The nuwiey foom part of LUsese fiwancis] si@ereni=

Betaines
Laming
E
1,561,641

LA45,1%3

KRR

1955347

428217

Tetol Equity

3
128 680

W ERLE

3,027, %5

1,955,300

49830




LI lingtres L | imiled
Regjsiered Numbey (12817554

Sraigeect 31 Cash Mo,
fir b yevr endigd 11 Rdaesy 024

Nel Cash geperated Trun fustd IR} aprralioes |

Cash Nows from iovesting sclivitics
Paediese o Vgible Saod agsers

Ineouteve Troei vad o0 new hesse - Foght of per asels
Net cish fram / (med i) investing nefivities

ash ows Ivom Roxaciag e britie

Lease 1iakilisy Pranci pal Repayment
Lnserest Pad on Jease Fabiliie
[nicist expantes Faic

Nt cash from ! {used o) Beanciog petiviticy

Ueerense in eash and cash equivalonis

Cash and tash equivalencs at begloning ol yvar
*ayh sod cush squivalesis mi end of yeur

BE k3

Cush 40d cush cquirohents 21 20d of Vel comprines

Ok ar bask
Eank Cnerdrzfa

Fuye=13

The noees furm pan o theae firgnelal statemani<

31039
Codd

2 L
24,370
{16800

(177,64%)
(256,242)
{56,45%)

JEVIRS 1)

693,535k
(L0785 23m
1L, 770 ASEN

1T
(1,947,674}

310325
(B0E LOL

(11127

QLY

(221,53L)
{17256
{i,235)

(405223

(1,176,359
49,876
EENCRNS

33,941
(L1 A0



LT Mimderes UK Limied
Regizieerd Nomber (G150

2piesig the Siguoppent of Eask Elinws
fioe ihe year endes 11 Mareh 2004

LRECOMCILTATION OF PROETT BEFORE IRCOME TAX TO L ASH 50324
GENERATENR FROM ; (USED IN) OPERATIONS

]
Prafil belirg | IKOME Lax 2438002
Drepre.ation on hmsed asset 336700
Depresiation w Propny, Plan* wni Fyuipmenl 194,362
Pop-cziation Inbagable assels R 6d
fricreyi ot chligation wnder loasd 56,20
Irterett Capeoses 56, L64
Met, Trr painuent allowance ve rade recei vable and conlrucs asses (33.3M)
Foreign entiange (Camaplosses 439,159
Dpcratipg € ash faw befery movemeats in working cxpinal LTISS43
Moverments in working caplial
creased Liorease) o Bade amd o receavables i® 1077
{ Devroae i Tnaeuse il Lacs and cihet pasabi s 247, 5008
| Decrease)/incraase in gociract i lies 40,620
I mx pid -
Nt Cash genersted frum / {used o) opyratioes (35231)

2 CASH AND CASH FOUTVALENTS

31027

£

P
231,056
174,683
L2
1I7ET
9,058
129.0%%
(18,356}

2Be6ald

{5, 150,991
1054

(SR

(605,101

The Bmoants ddused oo the Slelement of Cash Howe in st of cash wnd cash oquivaimis are in respasd of thew

Slalerrant of Faraieial Bysliion cnrniols

Perind esded 31 ¥arch 20028

21033

§ 3

£:a-h and cash sguivaems reh0
Bunk cvecdrafts (1,547,628
LLT 70 45%)

Year coded 1) Mareh 21025 ANk P
i

Dash mid cash equivaterds b 45
Fanit werdrails (L1111 56h)
(L0652

Pagze 14

Tnenues orm pan of theas [eangal staIchienls

L4235

{3

35,943

{11 LLAGRN
(1076525

1.4.22
£
10474

49 47



L TMadrge UK §amited
Mey:rred Muriber 12517556}

Nolgg go (ke Fingacial Swlemmule
‘oc she yoar ¢pdac 31 Margh 2021

i, STATUTORY INFUSRLATION

Lrvindues UK Limilcd 50 privale eompsry, Nicited Lyt shares, reyastered 1 Mngfoud aiv] wales, Th:e cepistorcd runber is
| 3317556 and the rayizersd adib s is & Pevis Marks, London, Engtand. F4OITATBA, The primapal scuvives of the Company
1 poondie 1T sewvjes, includiag apriicivn devdlopmieni, impeenialion, systems nlegau. applicaricn Tpionee,
ceming and s appary services.

1, ACCOUNTING MOLICIES

Bl of prepasaton

Lhe Company linuscial sarements buve boer. prepeod and sppreved by e dirscwrs in sccoddanct with UK Adepted
Liernaional Acosunting Skandards. Ihe accaseting pe.icies seb calt below Lave, notes odiemwine stated been app.isd
sersighemely s all yeaea preszried in these (inarcinl matcmesli

The Bwanoiul dalen.sms wne peosenied i merling wiich is the Buncrhenal currendy oF the acemgaly aral ruended tn dne poxes!
ErHx:

Jdgernents made by We cireclurs, in e aplicatice oF tess voculnting podiacs thal havs sigailicant effes) on the Sreoeial
sntements wad o5 mates with « agnifican: ridk of myat=rial adusinren: ir Crznex year acs dictusead blaw under “acoantig
pefhnbes end o genien s

Adapliut of new sud revised staodards
The fo'luadnyg Lvertiveal fitancial ropuring sterdodi (WRSE) and interpeein lirns weor s tsaaed ad effiodtioe 10 e

pariads eomriLering on o afler DL April 202

1FRS 17 lnaw ance Coamach aid Anendnenis 1 [FRS 1 TDiscdosure of Avcownad Polivies {Anendments 10 LAY | o IFRS
Praciice Stateraent 2t

Detinina. of Areuanting Fatinites (Amendinenis 10 FAS §)
Peterrad Ta related 1 Asvels and Linkslicies asising from a Single Transaction (Amendments 10 LS 17)

bnternations | Tax Rofers — Pillar Tau Modcl Rules {Aunacdment 1o LAS 12) — spphesties of the exoaplive bé disclasare
of 1an Fact

Merwewer 3Nl gl wde or amerdments 1o somdirds that Rave biun issped by the TASIE and were effecive by 1 April 22}
were ot app.icable ot Material i the Compmay.

New Stundands snd SERIMETLs issued bug pot yel ippled

T1:¢ Comnpany d03 ok gonsider il Boy siuenda ds of irlorpesialiand irsuns will have « sigrrificant napast o e sampiuy's
haemesinl slisMEnts

IFRS §1 Gecers. Requzements tar Disc.opare of St fiabilicy-reisted Fnancisl Lafermasion

[ERS 51 Climae-relaied Disclosures

Clagsatication of Laabilisies os Cument or Nan-Caean ( amendinents io 1AS 1

Less Laabitin o 8 Sale amid Leasebach (Ascerdnonts W IFRS 16)

et 1 ianilities with, Coverwns { Amendinaitis te LAS 1)

Bugplier Faaise Arasgements ¢ Ameniments o LAS Tand [FRS 75

The directoes of th Conpany usitivipale ihat L apalieation ol ull new anc xmendments i LFRSs witl nave no Fraterizl inp:
on 1z Leguany Rnandal sateren:s in the freseesbls Bugure.

sontinued ..
Page |5



LTIMiaderee UK Limilad
Reziwerad humher |V 2EL 75361

Heaess 10 rlie Finanoial Statervents - sonfinesd
[ frg yea enced 31 Murch 2004

2. ACCOUNTING PQLICTES - conlinmed

{Lning CORtern

U assessinyg Hhe poing cncern Bsssmplion for the Dompary, the cirscions have performed 2 deiailsd review of company's
peojucted cesl: Mows for 2enod ef af leas 12 months froen e dare of appronad of these fiaanid, stedzments. The analysis alw
inclided & peview 07 Conpany's Ansazial pusitiva and performance almy with specific corsitssone given 1o the inhererd
ricks astaclased wilk eompany's o sess aecdel. The directecs bave, ol the lime of 3pproving the fmenciy, sieferitn’s, 2
réaernasl s expaclalion Uil Jee Culnprny A2 aCeRuie TaRML RS W cONTRLSE in operat.omal caiaten ot for the forssseable Axure
and 10 e reasemably Ay predictable liguicity requertients Thus ic s conutaned cppropricte thin Csnpans's financul
spteitents ane prepared o the pcing sumeem basis

Fieven e recogpition

Revorue 's reccgrised upor. tumstee of contrel of promisad pendunts or sarvities 1 CusteILers. Kevenue is rmvcisie =4 Based on
ihe consideraion apecified In & coneasl with a custemes, and 15 reduced for valie diseants, rebates amd olior sami i
2 lgimnce

Re érps from conraewy pred an Pane and insuerial hasis i< recapmised wlwm senvices are rendeved and the refated (0 2
nured

Revencs relzied 1o fined price mevenaris and supauel services commacts shall be reccgnizad on a prorets bass over the
period tor whica somises ars er.dared /il tecies defined

Revence from servicss performed oo Gned-paice besis which are geneeaily fime ouiad, shatl be recognized over the fifr of the
prutect based on percenlage conpleton method for ihe Jdefiked Perfaemance Obfigation wilh coamaet ool deteraniniag the
degree of epemptetion, Whin wodal ot eslimales cxoced reveiue LI arzpgemehl, L1e entimated lemes we 1830anised in the
slalemen: of protil and loss i the period ia which suck losses begome pruisils esed o e cunfent CORDBCY estimeles.
Revers from <3le of limanes / hardwars, where “he cusomes oolzins 8 =g 10 0se” the Licenses - hardware s roosgised il
ike peinin time when e relutmd Lotase | hardware fa made available o the casomer. Rovonae from ficenses - hardwane
where the sistcme obisint & "igh: 1o seaxs" (s recagneed over the aveess po=od. Where night °h sonsideration L
unconditiona? poet pagrage o7 cime is classfied 98 3 financizl asset hawever, fie Mxed price developmean conlitels, where
wilsione i3 not due 23 per wGEAEE (R 25 40 date of roponing, the name kv dastificd as non-finarcul asset. Uneamesd &
deferre? vevenue’ (uoalract G ahilities) eepressnt Btlling in xoess of pevente secognised Meferrod conicect £03ts d7€ casiy 19
Fur il & conctractwivi £9 are rroogmized as ssechs aid avortized oner B Lo of e cortmet.

Cash and onsh rouivalents

Cah srd vesh mquivalems comprise cmh helences. Bunh overdrnfis than are sepayablc on deiaml and form an infegral part of
the Compery » cash nanagerment we inclaled s 8 comporens of cash wn cush squivalents tir e papose on.y of Ine cash
Sl s1atdrren.

Intmngible axsets Bnd Amortisstion
Ohes arangible 2356ty that are avuin el by the Companty are Raied af oot hise micumulazed srasization and lowe accwnulaled

impainment losses. The atiznetad usetil] Sved are as bollows:

{rwnpoler sor ware Lp o % wears
Laelleriial properiy \pta 5 yeurs
Busiree dlivme = relatunship L v & vears
CUBLDMIET VimL 4s Lz o 5 vears
Vendor relaziondhipt Lir 1a & wears
Lyadename Up 1u @i years
Tezhmolegy Up w & years
Xom cdmpeic agreament Up 10 § vearx
Page 14
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LT ar dree LK Lomirzd
Bapifered b orber (25 2556)

hyome® oo Hhe Finomgig) Sustementy - continiesd
(or Lrevod civezet 31 Magch 2034

1. ACCOUNTING POLICTES - conloued

Properry, plant and eguipment aod Depriciativim

Fropery, plant anc oyuipient are saated ot com esy ascunulaiod doprssiation wid sssumplated .mpaitment [asses

Where pasts of an Liery of propery. plant and sgupn =t keve diferent usel ives. they arc dccnunied fer s seurele fene

vl propere, plant and sonipment Deprociation ja chiugod 1@ the income datement g a -sight-lui bsis ever 118 satimaced
usefis, tives of erch part lun dtem uf property, plam a0d equipment. Thy esbimauicd wiefu? [yves 1 35 ot lowy!

Comguters and reonthd sqmpmienl 12 yunrs

Hprtdig & 1Y mares -3 years

Lewschiokd nprovencent Sheare of Lire of leawe ur usedul [ of underiying syt
Ofice Egipmen 32 years

Fipe nrint instrem enis

Clage{lcatban of Ans acisl iovi ruoteo s ssned by Ihe company
[3llowing the sdepuon of LAS 32, financinl watramenis el 5y Use Company ase Uezied 24 equity only fo he extent Chas

they memt dir ollawpng T o condilions:

it i ey inciuce nc cantraotual valisations ypea the compay 10 deliver cadh or vther flransial a3:2ds of 1 <uchange Financial
anielz oo fiscsiad Lobilites with Ancaee pary under condilions that we potenziaily unfivourable 1o the wvnpuny; od

Ih where the westrunca will o fiay be 48084 1N Ihe <OMEanYs aun equity instrumaats, it s eiker 8 no-derivative ol
incheses A0 -onlizaticn jo celiver & vatiarlz number of tho company' wal &Ly inSTumems o i 2 devivative ol will be
woed by the company’s ochanging a fised smount of cash o oirer finarcisl psssls for s fined mumber of St onn equity
inmar.eucris

T 1% eier] that thiz defnizion lxnal me, he poceeds of issue ore ¢ agificd asa Grandial liability, Where e (0 ArmnonL
35 e nssifed 1cem b legul fiwin of the cEnlpays viwn shares, the amounls proscited i (hese Enacfinl gatemerss for called

ap thaze capifal and shise premiluh 3cegrunt exclude 3moants in reltive 1o Uuese shares.

Fiaaneial #3525 and Anaassl iamliies sre racopaived va the secmmen of financisl Tocinen when the Company Becores o

Dty 1o the daamasiaal proedsions of the instruments,

Fioancsl wssets and Liaancial Liahilsias are inizally measered us fair va.ue. Teansectlon casts that e diradtly attribun abie 1ow
the acguisicion or ivse of faacel assels and Arancic. abili:e4 (ather than financial asszis wnrd fioowial Liabilities ac Bir
valir theough poBt or has) ace edésd 10 or deducsed Bem e Tuir value of the finandial arses or financa, Kuhilittes, s
approprizie, e dnival recogaition. Transaclinn wmle dircelly atl-ibutabee 1o the zoqaistlon of Anenrin as5els of fnwnve,
sisadyi I &5, € Caur vl ke Biroisgh raffic oo Lims ace rovugnised imenedin®ely ik profit or loes.

Pagz17

comtinued.. .



Rygisterad Nognber (12810554}

NoAoy g e Fianrist Sngrpests - coatinued
fpr Ui yeaL m.lh'-i] i BAwran 205G

7. ACOOUNIING POIICIES - cuatipyed

Figuoclal masels

Dely irssrun:onts the; oeet e folliwing conditions acc 5:bssuElY messured & aoriised LO5T0

. ghe foaneial aaset is hekd withn a bysitess aedel whsa wigective is 10 hold Cnancisl ae.as in srde- 1o woliess vont sy
exuh Mows; wed

- the contrseieal ienng OLHE fexmcind xasel 2IVE Cive 0 wpuct fed Caie 10 st floves <9at ar¢ sofely [ apirmenis o praaipel und
- arest on die einipai v crtstanding.

1icla ipseumants shat :aeet 1he [Alowing scadicont are submequently imgeeured 31 far volig thrsugh tther compreheasive
incoere (FYTOCL.

. he Snarksial mael is held within & busineys thoded whist abjective is achieved by poth cullectiog eontactuzl cash faws and
scllng e sinancial macts: and

e rrvis syl e of the fnancinl ssit givs 13se o apecified Lures b st Fiows that sre sclely puyhisets of peincapal ard
impered o) 2 PP’ Lourd srabstanding,

By defaull, ull other finacial assets arc subsequently meastireet 25 fair vane drongh profinar loss (P TEL).
Desgete herefive going. the Corrsy Ty Muac the flloning ureveeale deehionidesignution al dndviat revogstition cf a
Anancial ase:

- the Chmpary may imevaupbly elect o pendns cubmaquen chindes i i value of a5 <quily fpvesuzenl h olher
comprehimsive tcome it cerem crltenaare e 3l

. Lie. ompaNy may irrevecaloy destriane 2 del?t yrvashrent hat ety e praetised com or FVIOCL cauterin 24 measaed 2
{43 PL il Ssing ws elimindles 0f signi Frclly reducca 3n arsuNTing r ANk,

Amtrtised ot wad #Mec|ive interest melhod
The eeetive inerest mehad is w ietaod of caieiligung the smrcwzeq cost of 2 debt instewnst and of all =ty inleresl

oves pver The relovarl period.

For Brageiad insTwmonis ciba than mrelvasedd oo orilg nated wedisshopaired financipl wicels, e eRictive witerest 1o is W2
rale tnal cxRtly discolnts cdumaed fawre casdy tecenpls {irchuding 3l tccs and Tointy pail e \eceived that ferm: an intogzal
part of [he citeztive \erinl (6E, ansienion costs and other areriams ur Liseounts) exctoding wrperted rredil Losses, through
e exmicted |ife of he debil fd-anentt, ar, Where saprepiule, 3 shoriec pemict. to 1he PO carrying waount of e deb!
imsiramerd o initiel cecognitua. oo parthased oc ceiginated credil- ipadeed dnnoial asset, gedils adymed difecurs
ipterest rare is caloulyted by disznanling e eshinened fare cnh tws, meludhing expocied orediz lwses e arcrreed
aael afthe duh instrdnenl o0 imical cecngunlion.

116 amertized cod of A fimaiial asscl ig the ameual at which tie Brancl psse i« anensisod at Ll s ecoynitior. manus UL
prinzizal sepayinents, glue e ewtulbne amorlizalion wing Gre alehie jnrerest method of Ay differcrcr beiween hat
saital ameet 8n e malurily uoount, adjusbed IoF Y s Allowance. On (e ather haad, the 8108 -afysng Gk o A
Bnangiul asser i Une amewtizded 6061 of & i sia] assed 2etone 2 usung for &y Do all vance, betered Incone Ls recunized
wiizng e effoclive jmoreal emclhod £37 Bk stricnoiis s sbwcguently 3k g petxed et aavd gt FVTOCI Yax financial
pstrum enty Jlser it pumdsied o€ prigwaced aredt-impaired £nmwcial pusets, LTt oot is ealoulzied by apgy g e
Thecivee interesl rute to (e Ot saying uneew of fiasneiul asse, cxzem for finenaal asvets thot have sulsecuenly
hecone Jreaiv-impatrel

Fux Sl 296¢15 Sat have subregquen’sy Becoae coak - imamE, e inaree IS eacepnizad oy applrtng Ge effecive
ingered 1 ote a1 asrtized cost ol il-e Aaancial 2 e I, i leiguiin resuat.ng puriods, the croditdak on the crédic-impaired
fimameial instrumerl irproves that the Tinsazial asset is no longes credil- impaired, interedl LRComE s roocgnived by applying.
e wiioctive intercal 138 (0 Ui 2o, caflying M of i Francia: 2450l
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4 ACCUUNTING MOLVCIES — coniloved

on-Tloamciul 294l
The cavying amuounts of the Cemspany’y nn-fuaniio. msts, seler thuen detiored b asoets, ard roviewnd ol cuch  reporting

dane th detprrae whetlser thar is oy indizatior. af napacrment, |4 any wel, nicalion exius, Unn the ssset’s recaversble
suncen iy extimaced,

Toe:ecyvera’=le amaunt of w asset of cash-gensTalbE .min i the gredter f i vialue In wse Godats fain wp! ue less co%3s to sell
§n asseesiy value in cse. the msinased fulirg catn fows o dhonnied o tieir prese] yalue Lsing A pre-tes discousit Tale
that poflacts clTErt cnark M ASSEAIARS of the ime value of meaicy and the risks specific 1o e amat. For W purpest al
ionzainamil ceding, assls Bt cannot be tested individually ase grouped soeelinsr oo ‘he srallesl goup of pssows bt
generanes @sh o Cows Yoy 2nnmneeg ose dat ore lae pely jndepenuen of the cath inflowe of othe: Dssems oF Fracps of ussels
(due "vash- generating ™

An ennainnait Loss i secognised L5 SATyNE anounl o pn assed of s O eaeceds its Siimeied focvirable wlcut
Ioupairment losses are recognined [ prolil or fuss. Empdirgraant Nosséd peuIssed in regpecd of COLUSs = allocaled frdd @
reduce this CarTy.ig amdant ol vy goodwill §localed o s wodis, amid then 10 reduce the CATYINE AMCINL ot the ey awcls

im Ui wikt (proap of Lailsh e 2 prn Tald beas e,

An impemnen boos (s revorsad i dhere lias been o dlanze in dye estimates wad (@ desermine the recuresahle amyur: An
impaamRant st sevesal akly L3 the axtens thel the awe:'s AT ¥ing analn’ dlises ne exoved £1e carying amon thal wreld
biewe bian deler 1uneg, nes of depeecialion o arworti calin, 378 impainmen] ‘uss had been pecogaisad.

Toratiod
Tut o the prolis or Tosy Jor the yeis comyirigss durrend and defir-ve tas. Tax 3% recogpised in the statement of prolil wad foes
#1d cther pompreheasive incame eveepl o [t #xium that b relsles v slofis cecognived droetly IR equily, i whicd caco it 3

reorginited i eyuaty,

Carrent 1ae L e expocted 1% payatie or roceivahle on 16 talie e o I08S for e 3 eac, Ushry Lk (078 CrCled oF
wbataniivets enacted or the bslande gnoet das, and any JSJUSET.EN 10 A% apyable in rEpedt ol presiness. years. Cisyent Les
sre Liased 6 thi resutts showt) in the financsal stalameriy erd oré cakulgied accurding 16 tocul ths miles, sing G Tates enpcimd
o subeguntially enamed by e sttt af finenlsia] panitzon e

Ielicred 133
Nefe: ped tax 1a povided on Cenperary d Perences baweuen e carmpL il Aol oof meec's wnd Niakil ties for fmancisl reposting

parpeyes aoc the wiinamis woed fiar vaution pranases, A defered ik pset bsgecopmised only w he axionl taa il i probabis
whs futse @ posins will Be avgiable agaiast which Oie tempuriry diflerence can Le ylilisesd, The diroctaes rgha an moessmeut
of fwre profits pased on hlvericel experiae N4 various Shes forecasying JodEemans wnd assuniplions. Where it s L
desivad probable the fowre pratiis wil’ e avavuboe, e deforred 13 Baact is ned recagaisad 1@ this extent. The sanryng
arwdsnt e deferred 1ax 3ncds i3 revizwed 3 the end of ol repeaing perioll and redueed 19 thie extct that it 4s 2 lonuer
prohable it subficient laxaabe mobits witl he svablable to allew alt we part uf e psvm 16 2e cenowersd,

ThCerred tax is cueolsted ur te fax feies that are expectcd o oppy 0 e parind when f.¢ ‘iaBilily v setiod or 118 35581
peliced hemed om the L vates (wrd tax fuws )t have besn enadted of substeminely ensciec by the end ol the repafting
prid

Dgter o tax pssers and Lphbilnies are afoet which (aene is ¥ legally enforceatile right Lo st oil'cumrenl tax A5ecls UFainse CLEren
tox siakalibies and when they reze LD in =cere ges levied By the wulie aeatitn arhoriay anid the company istends 1 ==tile H
currisih A 35t W [izhi tizes O B REL kgusds,

Cyprel ang défesre? X ae revogni ol 25 an EXperac & inceee i profit o loss, exvept when e, relnce wo kerms aredited o

Jebitey guithde Drolit of loss (cither i clhet oemprelmsive DGMC 0T darectly in equety), i ¥ mich case the fax 18 alse
reougised oulsids peofil of boss [cilier i her CuMpeehcnsiveg SncLave of direutly in equily regpectiveiyh.
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES - coatlnued

Foreigo rermencies

Tr asactians i foreign cumenties we Cwishiied w0 tre Campuy’s Faichiona: ouTeney a the freign exchunge raie ruling 3
she date of fhe munmative Moesasy 5525 and linki ek deaominated in lone:gn cueTenciss Al the bdanve slieet date we
ceranslaled b the feticrial cuvency at the fiecizn coubunge rue ruling of thes dute. Forcig): achange Sferences prisiog on
ras.ation Bre Tesegnlvad i the sraternant of profit and loss. Noa monutiy aessts and liabil.lids than a=e measured in Jerms of
historical cae! 19 B frcn urrency wre trwnldced using the exchanye rate «f the dare of'the iravacten, Nol-Mandtary ASSHs
and |abtie denaiinatod in forsign 2urrensies that ere =imiel 0 air valoe aor retranslzeed 1o the fandisnsl swrasy ot
foreipn cxitiange tawss ruling ul the dxen the fur valus was determiacd.

Noa=derivative fimsacial dapirwmenid )
Nee desingiin ¢ linaneal mesanants somsrise Tade ad other paseienbles, cush a0d cash equivalerls, leans a0d borrewingt

w.d rrade and odher paseles

Fiouore cuds

Yuler et expenise and similer diacges are cxpensed 10 the profil aad loss saternint <0 the pevical in wleich ey are incused,
sxcrgd to lhe extest that they are capilal:ssd us being atmboratde oo the Bzcuisitier, conyuecion of progucaan of un a5
which nevesa:ily ukes o subatantial pericd of tinie te 9 prepocd e s nlended usd or a3le, The imarea cuerposent of
finanst [case paymemts is recogoised ut the profit and !os sintancol usiig the eMecive maresl melhed,

Pruwisiony
Provisions ae reangrised wont, the comvpany ks 6 present alliuztesn (l2gal of constrartive] av a cesull ol a pass event, o is
peabeb.g thal the cunpacy will be respaleed 15 setde the pbligeion, £0d  ceadisable estimate cia be mace o7 Lke armoan of the

oblgatia:.

The vl reoogrised 85 & provicion is e best estimzie of the conidontion Tequiaed 13 320l the presan obligaion an the
end o2 the reporing perecd, teking drie gecount tbe risk e wnd uncctaintics sLNtwnging the chligation, Wadve 3 prordieida s
maaiured uzing the vash Nows estimared (o sentle the proan ubligelion. s carrving sckitil! i Bhe presnt value of thixe cash
flivs, When some 37 3l 5! the ouon wn e bevefits coquired 10 setile s pruvisiut. s expeclsd ta ha recoverud Geae o Ciad pay,
the roceivablé is meapmised bs wn 2usel i3l ig virmaly certain toel seizeliarsecient will he roocives and the amyunt of the
reveivarle wa bo measaied reiably

Chussifico o of exceptionul iteos ;
hadgemen! ix reguirce fiz elassifying iteeme e exssplicral, Maragement hava comuidesed temis 1o b exceprionyl il thicy ase

mreniul wd oot <T i natare

Fiowocisl Liabilitics agd Kquity Baslrumsols )
Finmecial Tiabilines aod cquity mstrumvents issusd By (e compnny sre chassi fed acosoding 1o the sulstaice ol the cnntrociual
wrangenerts oxiered a0 § he definitians of » fiac.al |inbility . ar ecuiry instnument.

Equily im'romenis . . o e
At mgiiey mstrnmeLl s wey conizact har evidencey a ces.dual interdst bn the aszess of the suopany after dedudting adl uf i liabinties
kquicy instunesits # ¢ reoorded 31 the prococds seceived. nes of dicest i 1nue Soat.

Derecogaition of fioxocial Labilitics

The ¢ ommny desecopnizes finansial laziliies wiem. ued ol uhen, te Company's ol igations are discharged, suwelled or they
explis,
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3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES - copdimued

Figmneial linbillde: subsaquenily measured ut amortized cost
Iivecia) ishiliice (et wre nol 1) v ingons consideralion of an a:qura 2 business combinatiim, 2) held-Tos-trading, o 31
Jesgonaled as 3t FYTPL, are subsequently sspcarnd =t amonised o using the effect.ve interes felaod,

The eRective intaresd ncbod & 4 roelbod of sdrculatog dhe mmartized coet of L Minaacial labitine ard of allocating iohresl
exoerse over the relcvant pevied. The eflecive iniared sulc i the sate that exaculy discourts cstimated future cuss plynents
{inshudong +f. fees und points paist ar racerved that et an interra] part of the effestivs ineerest rile, Wansation cosis noll
clver premitims Or ciseauns] fuoupl the expocted life ofthe financial ahilisy, o (wharc appropriats} a shemer paricd, 1o the
amproxed et of 8 Araneial Habildy.

Oifscidog acrangemenis
Finacadl Ases and financial liwkilities ave obiser and the net amoun: peeseniod Lo the sement of inaial pusition whe the

Lrracy has & legally enlarcesbie right ba el off the recogrived amoums; anr. orenzy exher tu actilo of @ net basis, of i
sealise he asser and sete the hiahility siasclianecdssy, A right 13 se1-o/F must be svailuble wday rather thar. heing coaticgend
or. 2 Faere evert 1nd ol be exercizable 5y ooy of ihe couniespariies, boch in the aornal syuses of basinex and in the cvena

oof Jelon'y, insetocsy ur arbaupy,
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5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ARD JUDGEVIENTS

The propuration of Bie finucial i formetion regures Bie Hirecturs v wiake judpemients, ectiriaes and assbmprioas dus aBes
(e applicacion of policies wnd repurted amuunts ol assrts i Jiskileties, tnoxnits ANd ST S The estitiates and 2saovimed
suympiens we based o hisoricel captrionce and varioss odher Taciurs thal B¢ belisvad to be relsanbie ey Br
cireghmanocs, Aot rdayls may diftir Brom Wikse eninpees.

T st ol Lndorlyin g astusiphics 208 revisw e on i ongming tasis. Ravialms 1o aeoaning cilmales 48 rocipn:sal
in g parted T whick e estirmaulé is rovised i he revisivr afTcts only thid pericad, or 10 e aerind o the eevision ad futwe
aesivds if G renich aftets bogh eurreni aad fulars periods,

(i) Critical judgemenii {n mpplying the smlily's noroREtog pediches
Menagemont |2 of the ct‘uicm 12t Urere i< ro opplieation of judpenont expected 10 huve 2 sipnifcant effoct ow Bhe BTGB
recapinsed 1 Rz Jnac I daloinanes.

(i) Key enurces of eolimation umserlainmy

Tbe axciinaves and widselying A piiens ue Tevicwad a0 a0 smguivg basix Revisions 10 accioanting eAiMBIES Qe Fecagnited
in the pariod in wrich Lie estimalc 1% Tevisad, if the sewisian ARt e ly thet penied, oF ir. the pecud e the pevisior wnd R
perivgs, Tl revvien afect= hott carrent and e peviod Uee bty gssuthpicn CoftemuLE e fert md sher key souraes
« Fegrimation yrwertaingy @t e balamece snec date, tha have 1 significans r'sk af canaing & material aljustipent be 0 carying

arraran s Ol prach a0 liwhilisies within the rexl financial yoif ¥ diseizead belowr

(i) [mcome tses

Sipmficant Judpo-eat ¢ sequired in ofterialng die provision for . se2tled rue Teccivables und gechactibil by G suth anunt
froen Lae incame deminyg the alisnsion uf e povislon (i incoas taxea. There ucé [nany RARCLLNS il calcubetions e
whh ch hve witiusaze e deverninatian b pnceriaiy uriag Mo vrdinary cusse wf buginess. The colipahy recugn iwci hakitites
Fre ancicnpaled ax aJdiv Lo huscd 2 extimates ul whether additiung’ fas wil. be due Woere the linal tax cilamid af
uie<e res s i Merpnt £ om Ci: amaunts g were imilindly reconded, sudl: difterence will kot the ineom.s L anel deferred
s Lax prowitieny in the yeor in which such detcnainatan s made.

{iv) Lise ot sigaificant |udpements in reveaus Tecrgoiling

‘e Conpany uses e mmug:di-:mmmim pethod i ocounting W s Fxal-raee sopuscts. Use slae mroatage ol
compleian sl requires g Compan: (& EitmueE &(Tortv o roats cipencicd 10 dale as 4 pripuion. of fhe el afarts or
~uss 13 be expolded, Rlfoms ¢ oS grpondan have DXem e 1 MsudRE JLogTess bowands vorepiciion s diaré i 4 direst
redalioninip aeagen mpie and productivily. Furiher, die Uomipany LiT% sigmicanrt [udgements while daaminmg e
srurisation gesen ta be allocated 19 (e Cormmnce enligutions Provisre for emimanad jonds, W any, 00 uneompleted conmets
e pescrded i e perrod i which wer logses hogoere prrvable hused 20 e ad cimuiras? st miates ol CUE TERSIUNE
dace,
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rez the war ended 1 Mirdh gﬂ'*;d

4, BREYENLE

Terpinor pnd sepmeat snalyis
3030

L
Loty wars conseltany servioes snd s alc of produsts 56, 765 441

Segment Analysis

] IR
]

ST M

Tas princeptl astivities of the oo pany @ proide IT secvl s, inclading application develogment, waplementaing, syaams=
Integration, application memienanse, levng ad scppor services ard the Thicl Operating Densior, Maker avewsnd be

business poifenpanae of tre Cocipany 81 5 whole, Accordiry.y, fhere oo foseponable segmens,

310124
£
Unitec Kongdom TR AS96Z8
Un:ise Siwes ol Americ  TGH R
vker 2616, 2¢4
5.755.46
Confract belancen
3002
i
Conraed Labiliviss- comun 97,865
Cealrdd assels A 341 R
Lets: - Impainmon: alfowar.cos om sunined 3setls —115.424)
et comirac imscly 210,309
S OTHER OQPERATING FNUIVIE-
31.03 24
£
Finarioe Intome i
Inzome Bom uaslaimed casiomer baloe 24,134
Oiher Bsoome
Becoveries Fam [isap aed Paronl Camparies L9588 600
GOLLOHE
6. ERMIPLOYERES AND GIRECTORS
| e
(
Sulaic-Cosi of Sales T A0, 28
Salerise - Admndtisile o4 fenes £, 150
Total Salery cost (inclading peouod) J0.833550
The oumber of earplayees. bacluding diveciues, for the your:
stanaermer.t and adninisretivn 33
Production and Lev it lj;
Supper!
il
Direciuvrs Rewoitevation
Lirectors' demigneranon {inc_uwding pension | 812587

ST R

H

30,637 R4
20,002,705
$16,792
S1,867,314

31522
L
18,139

L 50T 695
(35,5547
LAz

114012
C

4R850
15,160
198,57¢
155621
S0 40

TL032E
£
20.015,136
5896135
PROCFEAA

2
2%
0
25

142

Reriuns aion ol higisse paid Grectnr i 159,38 T{FY 22-23 GBP 925,274) - incleting soaiibution 1:: pension wiere.
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7 NET VINANCE (OSTS

Fuvance 0043
Yaterew capenses IFRS 14

%, PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
Thi prome balos s incmie tx 5 Staled A Snargn[Sred i)

Jareign #ehangt LT

MNer Lnpairmoil Allowancs of) sopaal 3o and T3de
roccivahies

Deprecation on paopeTly, plant wd BQUERT

aepeatizaion Gl jang e srscls

Dupresatod to Right ¢Tuse 23l

Lycresten leass lnabiamiss

SHlezst om bk wenka®

o, ALDITORT REMIINERA TIoN

{'cen payddle 1o the rrar eyt pudipes acd their associatee for
the audit of The comprury's finangipl Aakeieas

10, INCOMr TAS

153 Tiariliny 1o UK Garpoealon A acse far the ¢ Xiod.

Aaalveis of fax fapeoss
profit o ecdinary activizies tefoee Lax

Brofie on adimery aseiatics multiziied Ly the atandard rate of Corparsicon LK B
the LR ot 25%
Effecss of:
- Facess provision fir previcos yeat charged oilf I eunetil yra
- Seper deduction-Dgpretisten al‘cwed a5 pes Income 14X
_ Jevezsuh of deforred iax assets in resped nl previous year, X roquiTec
 Deferraa tax Eabitiecs perrausng (¢ previous yesr wovgnl snd B cormead odr
- Tas charge id fhe stateoment of profit v losy

Pagc 23

.05

58,465
256, 24L
»

10324

47,505
133,379

1 1, 307
B.lded
356, 360
298,242
ShALE
LAIIES

35 gnad
L
W

L0524

30524
L

2438062

L B

(4D%,655)
(74.923)
I
92913

10 530
B2y 009

L #4658
R.OHE
23e,5%
174,737
WasE

30.03.25
5

AL

31.03.2%

noril
£
214258

297954

(204171
70,465
2,057

493
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1L BIGH I OF USE ASSETS

Mhe Carnpany Fas tease contracs fr yiice preniess typicully ranging Gor 750 10 yean. Cach lcase pesTigns i¢ allocases
Betveeen “he pring pal payment of “ease Tabilides wnd inlyest £x pense on, the lease linbalitas. The intevest expense is charged

1o the wet=reat of profit and Lims scoount over tha leaze term Ty vsing tre eflzctive interes raw meibud. The fight of use
aets (s dopnecimed on 3 s iphts ke basis over the v afthe foase

Il N0y
i E
COST
Openiny X304 339,724
Addilsenz 296,057 1,902 534
A1 i1 March 2025 §369.008 2000
ATCTMULATED DEPRECIATION
Opering 899515 &7, 1%
(ramsies - 527,758
Depyecighon during the yrar 354,760 234,396
AT March 2024 1,250,280 $99.51%
SNET BOOK YalLLKE
A3) March 7024 4012913 L2938
ALD] Bl 2078 LANLIAS 272,365
Amouniy recurbksed in the Stsiemenl of profit amd 1048
303 M.01.15
i £
Flimboe cos® on idase liakslitize 236,203 172,737
Uepreciation on sight of vee of assers 356769 P D
11 INTANGIBLE ASSETE
1837 310322
£ E
COST
A1 Aprit 2023 aad 51 Warch 2005 L1212 LL21,276
AMORTISATION
AL Al 2025 1,112,606 103 ME
Arspwivilion for poriod R 664 B.okE
A bl Bisach 20324 1,121 .21 L1112 606
NET BOOK VALLKE
At ! Nurch 2024 - Akt
An 8 March 1023 RS 17351
g3 .
== wartced



LI[Mindwee LK Linverd
R yosed Wumbser £ 123173561

MNodes to.{9¢ Finongib| SHECOLEns - Joolinuse
fig g yepr ended 51 Mucch 3034

12, PROPERTY. FLANT AND EQLIPMENT

CIMET Leawebld Ofice Furnitura und  Compwier Total
loprovemeni  Equipmeni Fistyces Equipmenl
i £ £ L £
AL | Apeil W23 139,402 22,393 327,044 GUS,ZME 1,244,657
Additivg - 20,083 g iea <0577 a7 28
At 41 Marca 2024 290,007 £ 713304 L6005 500040
DEFRECLATION
Ax ] April 2025 LI £422 155,184 450009 BG5S
Chorge for er ad 473 5043 17628 Sl §52 M0
A1) Maroh 2024 K6, 521 12485 PR LR 540.88] 100k
FFT BOOK VALUE
AL3t Maren 2024 Al aaw ssM 0 9S24 MSYT
At 31 Mz M2 pre2l LAzl LLEEY 1SS,LED KLLWES S
14, THADNFE ANDOTHER RECEIVARILES
LA S8 103,23
£ E
Curene
Trade receivableg 8657396 G, 95024
|5 bmpasenenl aliovances un Vade recsivohle {78395} 110,085
so#t ‘l'rade racsivebles a8 001 503435
A i oned by prim urdeniakings T80 3RS ey L
Ordy receivabivy 238,817 408,945
JrepavTrenis 381979 272611
Comimac omels 2320510 1. 897,695
L s znpmioesit Llovwaioes on ooafrat cescls (12424) 58 35%)
N it AT J5561S 2,528,386 R
12245553 LL150,724
Agirg of srude receivabiles {which ar¢ included in rade and wher reaevables, based on waice dote and ae2 of sllowance of
chouke Ul detis, in as fidlows,
12504 E[ K g
£ i
boor Daie 4 943,261 o, (34,310
W e I days 2¥T1,285 1076618
31-60 da 505,245 187 545
61180 dayx 454, TR 655428
18 dluys and moce —[3.500) __76611
[oinl 3R R AP

The mavemert @ the slinwanee fiv rmimem in respect of trade receivables ane Gonireat 155615 Jaing (e PeTiod vas as

Fodloane:
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LTiMindires 13 Lirrizmd
Regintered Mumber ( 104175 56)

Weigs to1ac Financial Sivenvents - sogiaied 110324 3L.032E
for the year gdded 31 Merch 2004
4, TRADF AND OTHER RECEIVARLES {Comtigued...) | £
Opening basnce 145,647 16419
tmparment allowonue Tevopaisess L3137 r AP
Closing, Malance pIER-AL 145,847
15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENIS
10324 30223
4 £
Cash ut bank 132,110 24,348
1. CALYED P SHARE CAPITAL
Allores, =swed und Rully Class: Mominal ¥alce 30024 J1.0325
pa’ ¢ Svumber: £ [
1009 Alloted, 2alled up anc fully padl £1 1070 |00
17, RETALNED EARNINGS
Rersied Ezming Tt
4 i
ALDApsd 2020 3,024 84 1,026,463
vyl o the yedi 14955307 1955 306
413, March 2024 ERZS R b2 49821
I3, BUBRROWINCGS
EPO el | Jna2E
3 i
Cumeny
Buark {tverdrafl Liel 628 LiLdsE

‘I'ne Comnpairy has 2 sanctiotied oneriliafl fachlicy SFUSTY 10 v ltise ram bunk which curits inberest | 79 ner ainim cvea
ths Kulevan Bass foce for the coman gy of swch 3esa0m.

19, TRADE AND DTIER PAYABLEN

30324 31,0125
i 4

Corenrd:
Amoino owed 1o pocp underinking® 4293022 1 3LBGEH
Sacial secring, VAT mid odrer [axes 2127482 1,803,022
Qe payables 311073 4732 237
Creployoe related liabilines 2,248,751 B2
Aecrual eipenses 2 a1 LInd g4
LLB6T,639 PR 11

Page 2E




LTiMipdree L3 Lim:red

Repistetod Mumber (1 281 TSEE)
Mies 30 ghe Financinl Stgiemgnts - conliaued
Lo ghe vear ended 47 Marcl 2024
20, LE ASING
310524 5.03217
£ £
Ciurenl 200 HH2 416805
Facafi-0 AdPre- [ A 008,717 630922
Mgbuiny aralveis
W hin ane vear ol 682 EYERI 2
tine L2 five prars 2a60 152 L5%635C
e than Ave years 2,158,355 433512
Lo - Umearned interer. e (£33.900)
14910399 1,972032

1L FINANCLAL INSTRIPMENTS

Financial sk managemend

Seonot Management anc the Jissators have ovessll eesponsibility for the owarsiph of the Compoy®s rrd fl Lagenwe]
Framewnrk. Semicy mugemecll 20d diveciors review rd manape Tisk o A 3d koo basis when roguted dueigh spectfic
cons’Axation of rarsactions When ikmliticd, agreed setions are ke fa mingate these risks.

Crewil risk
(zrzdit rigk is tve rivk of Gusagial loss 1o ke Lempany iDa Lounki2party 1o 2 Frnizial stransent fils Lo Fee it concadtanl
obligalicn 38 ariset pancipal y froan the compainy's Teceivables.

The Campary has ro signifisan sorsentaicas of credit e The zads recvahion pslusx: i3 speead 2emees cifferent
custamers. The Compity Ras peiicies in 3uee 19 ek (a5 agresments 20e anae wilh usleimers with an sppropriale @ elit
hiszory The Campaoy soly sells to custondes that are credit-uarthy. The Company monitees the credit-worthiness of
coarenparsien aximg aublicly avelleble infarmatian. 4s w eesull, G Company's expracee |a band ddebils 35 ma dignificant.

The wokgany 16 a0 exposed b oredit visk wishig Gom other Soancal asstis. waich compnee of cash, The Conaaiyh
enappars to cradi rigk usise, fron: die delavl of the ennnterpecty willi u Foaxinuie @53vare equal (v e carmying vaue ef
Wi insmuments if 8 suuweryuTy 10 A ficancial inenement fasls ©o neet i oanimay e al sl igation,

Liygwinkity 1 dik
oqichiy risle io tke risk taat the Cempany will nol be adie to nveet its Nnancal cbit gation ¢ 2 Bizy fall due by ensiring thal
there i sulfic.ent cask o working capital faeilities 3o meel the Company’s cysh requirentants.

Tue msk bt measel Sy recew of forecon Lguidit cack muoth e dvlormiine wether there are sefficient caadit fevilities 0
mne forecast reguirsinesis. These contimue oo ikemaavicalc the sTanig ﬂjhiﬂl.‘ll‘iﬂ.g ebil iy of the buginets and jo Abdbicy 1a

cperale within 2isling sgreed faililies,

Mariel rizk
Vackel risk is the reak that champe, in die ke prices, such es frrenm —xchange raes and infore Sudcs wil. affect Uw

Company's incoms. | ke Company's expodute 1 masker Tisk predomningte-y 1 €131es 10 foreign cwrency tisk. Thr Compay
hias 2o berrowsngs OF Imesrments in intere! isaning NSUURCNIE (UILng i0 A0 inferad rule eisk,
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LT indree UK Lanmifzad
Repimered dumber [1 20175 %6]

Ngato the Financal Swieraite . coaibipped
%o she your eivded 2| Masch 04

21, FIVANCTIAL INSTRUD[ENTS {Centioued]

Horeigh cHreensy itk
The Lacupany <peraes intormatonably 2od i,

crets, mATEns, And profiic. The Corpany ransachs wih custxners 1 Buraunc US dallas.

The following takic shpws the saenl 1o whilch -he ¢ wwnpary
date ingwmercies viher than the Tueul cumency «f operaiion,

i idery, woeatls dus [rom goup under-aking:), rnde peyables (inCnRNG amiws

peceiued o paid in ek

horeEare, expased Lo e Ereign oachaige nak, which cotld impat reveniic,

has moRetary Maes and moncta: 3 linslhbe, ol the balanee shoel
Moncary 95564 and [Ebilities vefer (0 ek and tradé peosival e
s dpe from groop Oxioranogs) © b

R ANk | T2

Fiaacials  Fisancials Fiauscials Fimarcials
Aracls laabilites Aty Lzabalites
s doliar 2,421 673 - 2,923,432 297,541
Fuira 52,158 |87 TIXTY 8. 806
R . L4915 175,987
CMF kv T5,518
NOK 199,629 . 42,21

(xiers 126,606 -

Foreign srchungs cute senstoivity s malyels )
e bl below shews 19¢ Companys sensitivty 1 farspn exciiage rakes for its 1S dodlar ard Ewa, the mtas 2ETEACHS 14

which the custendryg bu'ances art denominged

1140324 34323

£ f

LG apgeee.atlon - tke US dobar 142267 263,538
2 1 dgeociation a ke UY dellas (242,267 (I3 55%)
10%% 3ppe ssindion indhe Evra 00,5073 18,97
1D Sua (T8 357)

19% deprezianwi Indhe Fara

A sueeheving § waakta:ng of sievling. as indcated, aazin® the LY dollas @ baros 1l each perioa svwabd higve inoressad
idecrenselprelained ramings by Uee ancend. vk above. This aialsit is based ua Jaraign oxchange rate varianess G e
Commny conside s W be reastaadly possible st ihe end ol the repartie.g period, TTe analycis assuines fhal el Ahet wariskley
TEFINan CONEEARS,

Capltal rigk wunsgrmoenl
The Company's shject ves whan managr' g capia are 10 safegrmnd s sbality
+atumms 10 iLs slarelotcers. Mhe Buoand policy is W reaim 3 srory capital buss 10 mAinLMn invesioe,
o e wiid 10 si:stain fiture graweh, The directots tepuskurly monitar the level ef capital in the company Lo cusare thal

cas; b phigved

10 SeBtingE @y 3 20ing ey dnd 10 opfimise
sredizar, il morks:
this

Fuir ymlue disclogures
The Taar volwa aFeacn plags of 3 nanvind assees ans lishi s approvimates sl camying wnowsts dus 10 8 short manwiny. The
opaichal xonchs 40 whish ehis anplies are

(1 ewh wrd cish squivalems xid

(i wade and olaer reveivalyes (olher than o epaymncebs and accrucd Masme)

Tre finsucial ‘sl lies coonpeiss of rwde and sther jwyables (othcr Gt amwiants tees for social securty.

[axesy

VAL and other
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Lo inindtres 10 Linised
Repastored Number (1231 7536)

Metes 12 he Finmcial Sureseonts » cortinged

Fuair velwe hlerorchy
Licaredal instranients camiod at foir vt shruid be measored wita referance tntae Edlowicg Tovels:
- Level Li quwed pacea Ui aviive inuchst foc fdeaiiad nssens or Takilities
wavel 2; inpets sther than qupded praves itncluded withn Lavel | thar are absaevabue tor the gssel or | igbiliny, cither direeiiy
(i, 43 pecocil o ndirecely (1.6, darived from pocesh ans
= lavel 1: inputs S Bhie st or lisbility Unal wee nat “sistdd oo olrsa vobde e b dita Dobservobde inpuls)

All finarcial insounenzs camed al Gis salve have been nicasured using 2 1esel 2 vahation melun.

The fair value of she financiz] swaty ond [Labiliti es wre equal W cemying wale,

JIULza oy
i £
Cash and aash equvalents 172,170 24,543
Tende ned other neccivnbles EION 10,535 31
Toinl Finamiisls ataets 16,714,187 10,570,261
Trae mid uther payatles 14,059,353 505,040
lease Tiskliviey 44003 872050
Bark svercradl 1,547,620 IR ELTS
Tofw Flesocisls Esblitivs 91784 B, 006,538
22 DFFERAND TAX
b Bl B il0312s
£ £
Deferred [ur msaely
Carey forassd loeses - 217906
Exported wadit loss BS5E
Dekerred tax Lisbulity
Anlerated tax depeeciaion <n FPE: 1 56, (6
Deferred tux assers / (InbiliGes) [128.114) 217 ME

13 Ui MTVMATE PARENT COMPANY
The conpany’s ulimedbe parent comgany add caanhedl BE pamy i Lagsien asd Tacdea Limted, meorpematad in [ndin and Jided

ve the Ivlian steck eacharge The commpany olfue sddrass s L& T Howsg, Balla d Escate, Mawnbal. India,
The cornprany's wromediel parent comprety s LTUIcdree Zanited {Teacaporated im India)

rage A1




LT e UK Timited
Exaisiered Faentl 2

Motes ip (Me Finaneisl Sienienee - oomiinoed
for thie year snded 3| Karch 2029

ad EELATER PARTY PRHCLOSLRES

SLod2d ila523
£ £
Relared parmy irmwsactions
arent and ila brgnches
“Elevenge 0327214 20,558, 204G
A Mher cpesaling neome 59T K |98, Vi
Cost ol sales 1840211 Wl ova
Drernend: chaoged - a26,014%
~Recorver ies of owerhzacs - 242835
Group Vindeciakings
sReveouee 2441315 1468 .33%
sCua olan'ey (1 447 318 AUk
-Dverhieacs charged 15354 451,565
-Megaveriee of overfeades 479, T4
Related party Balawets
-Amdund ced to Parert and its beanches 1581823 [, 169,930
= nd gweal by Perenl and its teanches 7,178,594 420,05%
~Aziman’ umed lev felow subsidincios A71,351 148,73
Ay, owed by tellow subsidinnies 351,701 2.096,000

25 POST BALANCE SHEYT EVENT

Toere are no siymificant evens pual the balence sheet date thal veguwre disclosure
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L Mmgdpes UK Limized

Eﬁgmﬂ Number (| 2817535
OETALFD STATEMENT OF FROFIT GR LAISS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 3| MARCH 1024 kR vy 2 N oza
£ £
HEVENLE
Gules L8, 70:5,+02 4 4057, 300
55,708 462 LA ] |
COST OF SALFS
Cthes diress oonls 23,670,243 21,378 908
B ploves suluiss & wagox po Nk N 20,015.13%
48,5] 3371 41,394,991
STHEK OPERATING INCOME-
Firance ficom: g 1830
smooine From ardairmed settomer bulzncs 25,132 15,104
faroneriex from Group Cueipanies 1,999,391 25%.2Nn
Tepnsfer michng pevenue bem pAent rompany Cipshamre &4 186,309 197,576
e 042 197378
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Fsiablishumeat coats
Emgiryse benedil Expinses 6. 199,448 S.R94,318
Ad miplyiralive expenied
Rerruitmait Expenses 213,181 850438
Advpryisig, Sabos Promohion amd sponATsip 61515 192,089
Travel and Ceoveyancs 1,500, 768 1,281 840
Inelrsno: 6,70 39,70
£ LA On [ ElERy. <) 37,450
Fiepars and Maointelds N7 166, M0
[mieroempany churget b 134 360,503
Ratey and Taxe! 2799 132555
Aiscelturisous |\xpense 10,335 £2.341
Favilees and Neo-bership boss 196,514 154,354
B Rinmenl expenses §7454 37N
Bank clarges 30857 .04
Porner ahd bue! 27,683 4,544
J#ize enpensey ib,319 21540
erbeyship s subsiplion 25825 07
Legal & Prodessional 12es 359,321 947,562
Aydizers' renuneerion 13,99% 1623w
Fercign cxchange lesses 557,315 )] fikie
ity eciainn wnd Lmertisalion 6. 0% AT
1LusTe 9993604
IMPALREMES | ALLOWANCE ON TRADE RECEIVANLE AND»
CONTERACT ASSEDS
Impainnent pllowar.se v b ade receivaber and contraul sisels 133,379 15907
FNANSLE COSTS
Finunce ¢oms £, 16k G OSE
‘riy ez expenscy [FRS 16 259,243 27T
212707 181.7%€

Trus page does act foroy part o 2 sty 10 ancial sl M nd
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Syncordis France S ARL
1 Terrasse Bellini

Tour initiale

S2800 Puteaux

France

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

The directors present their statement to the members together with the acdited financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 December 2023

In the opinion of the directors,

(2} The financial statements together with the notes thereto are drawn up s as 1o give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay
its debts a5 and when they fall dus.

Directors
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are as follows:

Guillaume Philippe Marie Desjongueares
Machiket Gopal Deshpande
Sudhir Chaturvedi

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

Meither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangament whose
object was to enable the directors of the Company to acguire benefits by means of the acquisition of sharas in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in shares or debentures

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the director kolding office at the end of the financial year
had any interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related corporations.

Share options
There were no options granted during the financial year to subscribe for unissued shares of the Company.

Mo shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercize of options to take up unissued shares of
the Company.

There were no unissued shares of the Company under option at the end of the financial year.

Independent auditor

The independent auditor, Cabinet RBA. has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment

On behalf of the directors:

—=

Guillaume Philippe Marie Desjongueres
Director
Dated April 12th, 2024





















Balance sheet Assets

SYNCORDIS FRANCE

Etats de synthase au 317122023

Brut

Amorissemants

Depréciations

Ml au

225

el au

M2z

ASSETS

UNCALLED SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL
Intangible Assets

Establishment fees

Research and Development fees
Concessions, patents and similar rights
Goodwill

Other Intangible Assets

Tangible Assets

Land

Buildings

Technical installations, plant and equipment
Other Tangible Assets

Construction work in progress/ddvance Paymenis
Financial Investments

Imvestment & related advancas & down payments
Cther Invesiments

Loans

Other Financial Assets

CAPITAL ASSETS

Inventory

Raw materials & Other supplies

Wark in prograss goods

Work in progress sendces

Intermediate & Finished goods
Commuoditiss

Accounts Receivable

Clients & relalad accounts

Suppliers

Parsonnel

State, Taxes on Income

State, Taxes on Turnover

Other accounts receivable
Miscellaneous

Advances & Down paymeants on Orders
Short terms investments

Cash

Prepaid expenses

CURRENT ASSETS

Deferred charge

Redemption premium on bonds
Translation adjusmtent - Assels
ACCRUALS

31 521

77 281

108 802

1526112
146 680
B 393

76 108

600 936

2 358 238

9 640

9 640

18 531

18 531

21882

T7 281

99 163

1507 581
146 689
8 383

T6 108

G600 936

2339707

0624

9624

1571036
138 085
5436

127 BA3

1102 251
8449
2945 539

TOTAL ASSETS

2 467 040

28171

2438 870

2955163

Page n*1
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Balance sheet Liabilities

SYNCORDIS FRANCE

Etats de synthase au 317122023

et au Met au
31112423 Jnzze
LIABILITES
Share Capital 15 000 15 000
Pramiums, share pramiums, ..
Revaluation adjustments
Legal resene 1500 1500
Statulory or contraciual reserves
Regulated resenes
Other resenes 116 712 116712
Balance to next account -616 793 -1 080 122
Annual Balance =453 209 463 329
Capital grants
Regulated provisions
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY <936 790 -483 581
Fewenue of securities issue
Avances conditionnées
Other Equities
Provisions for risks
Provisions for expanses
PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND EXPENSES
comerible bonded debts
Other bonded debls
Loans G753 T 041
Uncovered balance and accomodation
Loans and debts with credit institutions 6753 1041
Miscellaneous financial loans & debts 200 000 200 000
Miscellaneous financial loans & debls - Associates 401 110 1093 2848
Advances & Down payments recaived on current orders
Supplier debls & related accounts BOZ 515 562 228
Personnel 220 464 287 802
Social organisms 2728937 220453
State, Taxes on lncome
State, Taxas on Tumover 69 247 207 890
State, Guaranteed bonds
Aufres deffes fiscales et sociales 28 044 16 356
Fiscal & Social debts 500 680 727101
Debts on Capital assets & related accounts
Other Debis 282 311 25N
Deferred revenue 1202 280 852 575
DEBTS 3 375 660 3 438 Ta4
Transiation adjustmeant - Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2 438 870 2955 163
Page n'2
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Detailled Balance sheet Assets

SYNCORDIS FRANCE

Etats de synthase au 317122023

Amrorissemants =T Mt 2w
Brut
Dépréciations gk i Pl e el
ASSETS
Intangible Assets
Tangible Assets
- 218300 Matériel bureau & informatique 2022874 20 228,74 4 760,35
- 218400 Mobilier 11 292 69 11 282 609 11 2892 69
- 2816830 Amorimatbureau et informatique 622259 £ 222,59 -4 141,31
- 281840 Amortmobilier 341899 -3 416.99 -2 287 T2
Other Tangible Assets 31 521,43 9 639,58 21 881,85 962401
Financial Investments
- 274810 Prét Nialsen+Fartner Hamburg 75 000,00 75 000,00
- 274880 Intéréls courus sur prét N+P 228082 228082
Loans 77 28082 77 280,82
CAPITAL ASSETS 108 802,25 9 639,58 99 162,67 9 624,01
Inventory
Accounts Receivable
- 411000 Clients 1417 094,96 1417 094,56 143389548
- 416000 Clients douteux ou litigieux 22 236,34 22 236,34
- 418100 Clients - facturss a etablir BG THOTT 86 780,77 137 140,51
- 491000 Dépréciations comptes clients 18 531,00 -18 531,00
Clients & related accounts 1526 112,07 18 531,00 1507 581,07 1571035499
- 401000 Fournisseurs 146 68O 25 146 689,25 138 084 58
Suppliers 146 689,25 146 689,25 138 084,58
- 421000 Personnel - remunerations dues 131
- 437310 Mutuelle 675,80
- 438700 Charges sociales - produils 4 recay 83583,04 B 393,04 4 747 31
Personnel 8 393,04 8 393,04 543622
- 445300 Tva due autoliguidé hors cea 23 33291
- 445660 Tva déd./autres biens el sces 37 38519
- 445663 Tva déd intfracommunautaire 60 152,95
- 445620 Tva & régulariser 7610778 76 107,78
- 445830 Tva a regulariser actf 4 896,00
- 445860 Tva sur facturas non parvenuas 210555
State, Taxes on Turnover 76 107,78 76 107,78 127 BB2.60
Miscellaneous
-512140 CIC G600 935 .81 600 935,81 1102 250,68
Cash 600 935,81 600 935,81 1102 250,68
- 486000 Charges constatées davance 84869
Prepaid expenses 848,69
CURRENT ASSETS 2 358 237,95 18 531,00 233970695 2 945 538,76
ACCRUALS
TOTAL ASSETS 2 467 040,20 28170,58 2 438 B69,62 295516277
Page n"3
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Detailled Balance sheet Liabilities

SYNCORDIS FRANCE

Etats de synthase au 317122023

el au et au
223 Iz
LIABILITIES
- 101000 Capital individuel 15 000,00 15 000,00
Share Capital 15000.00 15 000,00
- 106100 Résere l&égale 1 600,00 1 500,00
Legal reserve 1 500,00 1 500,00
- 106800 Autres reserves 116 711.57 116 711,57
Other reserves 116 T11.57 116 711,57
- 119000 Report 4 nouveau débiteur -516 783,02 108012154
Balance to next account 616 793,02 -1 080 121,54
Annual Balance -453 208,78 463 328,52
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 936 790,23 -483 581 45
Other Equities
PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND EXPENSES
- 168840 [nt.courus sfemprunts & 753,40 104717
Loans 6 753,40 1041,17
Loans and debts with credit institutions 6 753,40 104947
- 168110 Emprunt Syncordis PSF 200 000,00 200 000,00
Miscellaneous financial loans & debts 200 000,00 200 000,00
- 455200 Compte courant Syncordis 5S4 300 000.00 1010 000,00
- 455800 Associas - intéréls courus 101 11040 B3 287,78
Miscellaneous financial loans & debts - Associates 401 110,40 1093 287,78
- 401000 Foumisseurs 587 396,08 548 594 54
- 408100 Fournisseurs - fact.non panenues 9511915 12 633,32
Supplier debts & related accounts 692 515,24 562 227 .B6
- 428200 Personnel - prov.pour CP & RTT 67 563,53 31 608,00
- 428300 Personnel - Prov.RTT & CP CET 86 459,00
- 428600 Personnel - autres charges & payer 158 900,00 169 735,00
Personnel 220 463,53 287 BO2,00
- 431000 Urssaf 114 223,00 62 438,00
- 437080 Cotisations ADESATT 401,58 384,85
- 437 200 Reiraile réunica 48 910,61 21 741,84
- 437300 Provoyance 7 360,69 5 631,87
- 438200 Charges soc, / prov, op et it 28 900,10 T4 207.00
- 438210 Charges soc. / prov. cp et it CET 39 166,00
- 438600 Charges sociales - charges a payer 7213500 76 883,00
Social organisms 272 930,98 2200 452,56
-445210 Tva coll aufoliguidée/ prast. ue 60 152,95
- 445510 Tva & decaisser 41 137,00 2 211,00
- 445665 Tva déductible auioliguidé hors cee 23 332,91
- 445720 Tva colleciée 8 20% 24 818,15 33 226,90
- 445840 Tva & régulariser passif 3 286,00 5771.00
- 445870 Tva sur faclures & etablir 719573
State, Taxes on Turnover 69 241,15 201 890,49
- 442700 Praélgvamant a la source 27 188,00 12 588.00
- 448611 CVAE & payer 3 886,00
- 448630 Formation continue 856,42 481,11
Page n'4
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Detailled Balance sheet Liabilities

SYNCORDIS FRANCE

Etats de synthase au 317122023

el A Ml au
2023 a2z
Autres dettes fiscales et sociales 28 044,42 16 956,11
Fiscal & Social debts 590 680.08 727 101,16
-411000 Clients 228 437 25
- 419800 Clients - rr & accorder 251100
- 467110 Caisse des dépdts et consignations 338737V
Other Debts 282 311,02 2 511,00
- 487000 Produits constatés d'avance 120228971 852 575,25
Deferred revenue 1202 289,71 852 575,25
DEBTS 337565985 3438 744,22
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2 438 BG9,62 295516277
Panen's
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SYNCORDIS FRANCE

INCOME STATEMENT

Etats de synthase au 317122023

du 010123

du D1/01/22

Sirvpda -
au 311223 o au 3112122 Yo o
12 rmoks 12 moks Variation en valeur
REVENUE
Sales of goods
Sold production 3656618 100,00 4 480 266 | 100,00 -003 648 -20.28
Stored production
Oparaling subsidies 8 333 0,23 2 BET 0,06 5667 21250
Other revenuea 7728 0.2z 1428 0,03 6297 44092
Total 3572677 100,45 4 464 361 10009 -891 684 -1997
Consumption of goods & raw materials
Purchases of goods
Stock variation {goods)
Raw materals purchases & othar suppli
Stock variation (raw materials)
Other purchases & extemal expanses 1041828 2929 1094 578 2454 -52 751 -4.82
Total 1041 826 29,29 1094 578 24,54 =52 751 -4.82
MARGIN ON GOODDS & RAW MATERIALS 2 530 B51 71,16 3369783| 7555 -838 533 -24.90
EXPENSES
Taxes and assimilated paymenls 42 207 1148 46 223 1.04 -4 016 -8.69
Salanes and Treaiments 1963 890 55,22 1928 986 43,25 35 004 1,81
Social expenses 921656| 2591 Q07 4221 2034 14 235 1.57
Depreciations and provisions 22 259 0,63 1332 0,03 20927 NS
Other expenses 10 335 0,28 14 10 321 NS
Total 2960 448 83,24 2883977| 64,66 76 470 2,65
OPERATING INCOME 429 597 -12,08 485806| 10,89 <915 403 | 188,43
Financial revanue 2281 0,06 2187 0,05 a4 4.28
Financial expenses 25 BO7¥ 0,73 23 166 052 2730 11,79
Financial result -23 616 -0,66 -20 979 -0.47 -2 637 12,57
Operations in commaon
Income -453213| -1274 464 B27| 1042 -918 040 | -197,50
Exceptional revenue 417 0,01 a7
Exceptional expenses 412 0,01 1498 0.03 1086 -7247
Exceptional Income 4 -1 498 -0,03 1502 100,28
Employvaes’ profit-s haring
Taxes on Income
NET INCOME 453209 12,74 463 329| 10,39 916 537 | 197 .82
Page n*1
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

SYNCORDIS FRANCE

Etats de synthase au 317122023

du 010123

olu 01/01122

Sirrpde :
au 3112123 % au 3112122 % %
12 moks 12 ok Variation an valeur
REVENUE
- 706000 Prestations de sarvices 1493 30428| 4199 15689 35366) 3563 -96 049,38 <6.04
- 706001 Prestations taxables 20% 206331374 5801 206331374
- 706100 Prestations de services CHAMBI 711 296,00 15,85 =711 296,00 -100,00
- TOG200 Prestations SYNCORDIS LUX 130 028,59 292 -130 028,59 -100.00
- TOB220 Syncordis PSF 57 124 55 1.28 -57 124,55 -100.00
- 706300 Prestations de servces export 176351328 3954 -1 763 513,28 100,00
- TOB400 Prestations de serdees intracomr 208 950,00 4,68 -208 950,00 -100,00
Sold production 3556 618,02| 100,00 4 460 266,08 100.00 -903 648,06 | -20.26
- 740000 Subventions d'exploitation 8 333,36 0,23 2 666 64 0.06 566672 21250
Operating subsidies B8 333,36 0,23 2 666,64 0,06 566672 212,50
- 758000 Produits divers gestion courante TT2566 0.22 142824 0,03 629742 44092
Other revenue T 72566 0,22 142824 0,03 629742 44092
Total 357267704 10045 4 464 36096 100,09 -89168392( -1997
Consum ption of goods & raw materials
- 604000 Prestations Syncordis Luxembour 27 819,45 0,78 276710 0,06 2505235 905,36
- 604002 Prestations Syncordis PSF 94500 0,03 4 45370 0,10 -3 508,70 -78.78
- 604010 Prestations et éludes 237 664,10 6,68 318 850,00 7156 -8118590) -2Z546
- 604011 Prestations LTI 3284220 0.9z T4 270 46 1,67 41428 26| -55.78
- 606400 Achats fournitures de bureau 1144 87 0,03 =1 144 97| -100,00
- 611000 Ss-fraitance établissement pales 11 806,57 0,26 -11 806,57 -100,00
- 511100 Ss-traitance Head Office Syn.Lux 55 724 68 1,57 17 314,62 0,39 JB41008( 22184
- 611300 Manag/Back office Syncordis Lux, 214 819,89 6,04 208 144 40 4,67 677559 3.26
- 611301 Manag/Back office Syncordis PSF 115 938,70 3,26 T3 461,68 1,65 4247802 5782
- 811302 Manag/Back office N + P Hambouw 35 875,18 1.01 7391901 1.66 -38 04383 -5147
- 611303 Manag/Back office N + P Zurich 121206 0,03 -1 21206 -100,00
- 611304 Manag/Back office N+P Singapore 16 419,44 0.46 1342863 0,30 299081 2227
- 613200 Locations immaobiliéres 213 000,00 599 213 000,00 4,78
- 513530 Abonnement OBMS 400,00 .01 400,00
- 818700 Frais de formation 150,00 -150,00] -100,00
- 622200 Commissions et courtages sur ac 263033 0,06 -2 630,33 -100,00
- 622600 Honoraires 1637722 046 25 850,00 0,58 D472 78| -3665
- 622610 Honoraires Juridique 4 115,00 012 3 830,00 0,09 285,00 744
- 622620 Honoraires GAC 9 844 00 0.28 9375,00 0,21 469 00 5,00
- 822700 Frais d'acles et contentieux 468 44 0.01 -468 44 [ 100,00
- 623400 Cadeauxa la clientéle 389,00 0,01 -389,00| -100.,00
- 625510 Trans ports 2157287 0,61 T 22342 0,16 1434945 198,65
- 6255630 Hotels 7 T6EB 85 0.2z 7 256,21 0,16 510,54 7,04
- 625531 Perdiems 16 792,19 047 6 445 00 0,14 10 347,19| 180,55
- 825700 Frais de réceptions 204527 0,08 4 3280 0,10 228264 -52,73
- 626000 Frais postaux 12,63 -12,63| -100.00
- 626100 Frais de téldcommunication 1077412 0,30 1114552 0,25 -37140 -3,33
- 626210 Frais mobiles suppléementaires 19,99 -19.94) -100,00
- 627800 Sendces bancaires 988,18 0,03 1 680,11 3,04 59193 -41.18
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

SYNCORDIS FRANCE

Etats de synthase au 317122023

du 010123

du D1/01/22

Sirrpde :
au 3112123 % au 3112122 % %

12 rmoks 12 moks Variation en valeur
Other purchases & external expenses 104182644 29,29 1094 57786 24,54 5275142 4,82
Total 104182644 29.29 1094 577,86 24,54 -52 751,42 -4,82
MARGIN ON GOODS & RAW MATERIALS 253085060( 71,16 3369 T783,10| 75,55 -838 932,50 -2490

EXPENSES

- 631100 Taxe d'apprentizsage 13 65202 0.38 1307301 0.29 579,01 443
- 633300 Formation continue 2093297 0,58 19 734 89 044 119808 6,07
- 635100 Cotisation fonciére des entr, 868,00 0,02 803,00 0,02 65,00 8.09
=635110 Cvae 6 754 00 0,19 12 412 00 0,28 -565800| -4558
- 635800 Autres droils 200,00 -200,00) -100.00
Taxes and assimilated payments 42 206,99 1,19 46 222 90 1,04 -4 015,91 -8,69
- 641100 Salaires bruts 176137342 4952 166562383 37.34 9574959 575
- 641280 Provision cp et rit 61 563,53 1,73 31 608,00 0,71 2095553 9477
- 641285 Prov.CP & RTT sur CET 86 459,00 1,94 -B86 459,00 -100,00
- 641290 Annul. provision GP & RTT -118 067,00 -3.32 -116 776,92 -2 62 -1 290,08 1,10
- B41300 Primes et gratifications 23883549 6,72 217 754,17 4 88 2108132 968
- 641310 Bonus fidélite - seconde parlie 36 330,00 0,88 -39 330,00 -100,00
- 541380 Provision pour primes 158 900,00 447 160 600,00 360 -1 700,00 -1.,06
- 641390 Annul.provision primes n-1 =160 600,00 -4 .52 <163 100,00 -3.66 2500,00 1.53
- 641400 Indemnités el avantages divers 16 59919 047 Taas14 07 911106 12167

- 8414230 Indemnités rupture convenfionnell & 38h 74 0,15 5 385,74
Salaries and Treatments 1 963 990,37 55,22 1928 986,22 43,25 35004,15 1.81
- 545100 Cotisations a l'urssaf G40 615,88 18,01 61372376 13,76 2689210 438
- 645200 Cofisations de préwoyance 2108810 0.59 20 29807 0,46 781,03 3.890
- 545210 Mutuelle 40 638,15 1,14 39 466 72 0,88 117143 2497
- 6845300 Cofisations da retraite 209 426,34 5,88 100 741 B3 448 8684 51 4,85
- 645710 Prov.charges | CP & RTT 2090010 0,84 14 207,00 0,32 1569310( 110486
- B45715 Prov.charges / CP & RTT sur CET 39 166,00 0.88 -39 166,00 | -100.00
- 645719 Annul. prov.eh fop & it -53 373,00 -1.50 -62 157 91 -1.47 -1 215,09 233
- 845720 Provision charges sur primes F213600 203 6 883,00 1.72 -4 748,00 -5,18
- 645729 Annul. prov.charges/primes n-1 76 883,00 -2,16 -TE& 229,00 -1,75 1.346,00 1,72
- 645739 Annul provcharges | jours cadres -1 802 .85 -0.04 1802.89( 100,00
- 545800 Cofisations autres organism. soc 401 58 0,01 384 85 0,01 16,73 435
- 847500 Madecine du travall et pharmac, 2 860,00 0,08 261652 0,06 243,48 9.3
- 847700 Tickets restaurants 31 611,30 .89 29 52369 0,66 21087 81 7,07
- 648100 Autres charges de personmeal 3 235,00 0,09 3 600,00 0,08 -36500) 1014
Social expenses 92165643 2591 907 421,64 | 20,34 14 234,79 1,57
- 681120 Dot amortimmo.corporelles 372700 0,10 1332 46 0.03 239553 179,78

- 8681740 Dot. prov. dépréc. créances clis 18 531,00 0.562 18 531,00
Depreciations and provisions 22 258,99 0,63 133246 0,03 20 926,53 NS
- 658000 Charges div. gestion couranies 10 335,02 0,29 14,25 10 320,77 MNE
Other expenses 10 335,02 0,29 14,25 10 320,77 NS
Total 2960 447 80| 83,24 28B3IOT7AT| G466 76 470,33 2,65
OPERATING INCOME -429 59720 -12,08 485 805,63 10,89 -915 402,83 -188.43
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

SYNCORDIS FRANCE

Etats de synthase au 317122023

du 010123

du D1/01/22

Sirvpda -
au I112123 % au 31222 o &

12 moks 12 moke Variation en valeur

- 762400 Revenus des préts 228082 0,06 228062
- TEE000 Gains de change 2 187,30 0,05 -2 187,30 -100,00
Financial revenue 228082 0,06 2 187,30 0,05 93,52 4,28
- 681100 Intéréts des emprunts et deties 571225 016 104117 0,02 467108 44864
- 681500 Intéréls comples courants assoch 17 822,60 0,50 20 200,00 .45 23rran) 1177
- BE 1600 Intéréts bancaires 2 361,81 0.07 187927 0.04 482 54 25 68
- GBE000 Pertes de change 45 88 -45 88| -100,00
Financial expenses 25 B96,66 0,73 23 166,32 0,52 273034 11,79
Financial result -23615.84| -0,66 20979,02| 047 263682 1257
Income -453 213,04 -12.74 464 826,61 10,42 <918 038,65 | -197.50

- 775200 Pdis cessions immao, corporelles 416 67 0,01 416,67

Exceptional revenue 416,67 0,01 416,67
- B7 1800 Autres charges except. de gestion 1498 09 0.03 -1498,09 ) -100,00

- 675200 Valeur nefle comptable immo corg 412 41 0.m 412,41
Exceptional expenses 412,41 0.01 1 498,09 0.03 -1 085,68 | -TZ2A47
Exceptional Income 4,26 =1 498,09 -0,03 150235( 100,28
NET INCOME -453 208,78 -12.74 463 328,52 1039 =816 537,30 | -197.82
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LTIMindtree S.A.
5. Rue des Primeurs
L - 2361 Strassen

R.C.S. Luxembourg : B 105,331

COMPTES ANNUELS AU 31 DECEMBRE 2023















Mo RC: B105331

Matricule: 20042227351

LTIMindtree SA EUR
ASSETS as at 31M12/2023
ASSETS 31/12/2023 31122022
Subscribed capital unpaid 0.00 0.00
I  Subszcribed capital nof called
Il Subszcribed capital called but unpaid
Formation expenses
Fixed assets 2 520 941.36 0.00
| Intangible asseis 1444 648.31 0.00
1  Cosis of development
2 Concessions, patents. licences, trade marks and similar rights and assets. if they werd 444 648.31 0.00
a} acquired for valuable congideration and need nof be shown under C.1L3 1116255 0.00
b} created by the underiaking itself 1433 485.76 0.00
3 Goodwill, to the extent that it was acquired for valuable consideration
4 Paymenis on account and intangible assets under development
Il Tangible asszets 228 100.69 0.00
1 Land and buildings 0.00 0.00
2 Plant and machinery
3 Other fixtures and fitfings, tools and eguipment 228 100.69 0.00
4 Paymenis on account and tangible assets in the course of construction
Il Financial asssiz 8458 192.36 0.00
1 Shares in affiliated underiakings 50192598 0.00
2 Loans io affiliaied underiakings
3 Parlicipating interests
4 Loans o undertakings with which the underiaking is linked by virtue of parficipating inle
5 Investments heid as fixed asseis
& Other loanz 345 26638 0.00
Current assets 32 121 222.96 0.00
| Stocks 0.00 0.00
1 Raw materizls and censumables
2 Work in progress
3 Finighed goods and goods for resale
4 Paymenis on account
Il Debtors 30 417 641.47 0.00
1 Trade debtors
a} becoming due and payable within one year 4107 436.24 0.00
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
2 Amounts owed by affiliated underiakings
a} becoming due and payable within one year 25 830 633.09 0.00
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
3 Amounts owed by underakings with which the underiaking is linked by virtue of participati
a} becoming due and payable within one year
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
4 Other debtors
a} becoming due and payable within one year 470 557 .14 0.00
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
l Investments 0.00 0.00
1 Shares in affiliated underiakings
2 Own shares
3 Other investments
IV Cash at bank and in hand 1703 58149 0.00
Prepayments 457 68047 0.00
TOTAL ASSETS 35 099 844.49 0.00




LTIMindtree SA

Detail for ASSETS

EUR

ASSETS

31/12/2023

3112/2022

Cili2ia)

Fixed aszaiz
Intangible assets
Concessions, patents, licences. frade marks and similar rights and ass

acouired for valuable consideration and need not be shown under C. 13 11 162.65 0.00
212 53 354.00 0.00
212 -42 82182 0.00
2121 = a00.00 0.00
2121 Diep Prove - Infangiile Asset - Bresness Rights -179.83 000
Cili2ih) created by the undertaking itzelf 14335 485.76 0.00
2 250018 - Imerrally Deveioped Saftsane 3231 74957 000
280018 - Dep Prow - Inbamal Developed Software -1 788 263.91 000
Ci3 Tangible azseis
Other fodures and fitfings. tools and eguipment 238 100.69 0.00
223400000 250007 - Oifice equipments BT 125.69 0.00
223400008 7 - Diep Prow - Office eguipment -0 E18.04 000
223401000 37 305.00 0.00
2 -26 744 25 0.00
2 105 BE2.08 0.00
2 ¢ - Laglope -43 452.03 000
BG3 50958 0.00
Coimg -T58 B21.23 0.00
22 547.00 0.00
Mokl 274271 0.00
15185.25 0.00
¢ - Server -2 152.85 000
CilM Financial assets
Shares in affiliated undertakings 501 925.98 0.00
231001000 30 - Imvestrnent in LTiMindtres Limited LY 120838 0.00
231002000 400 00300 0.00
231003000 G000 100 523.60 0.00
231004000 60033 3.00 0.00
CAIE Oiher loans 346 266.38 0.00
225210000 50000 - Dep 346 268.38 0.00
Dulli1/a Current asseis
Dettors
Trade debtors
pecoming due and payable within one year 4 107 436.24 0.00
401100000 Cusiomers 2418 788.32 0.00
401 300000 Doubtful or dispuled cestomers -71 40008 000
401400000 1481 368710 0.00
401410000 50.24 0.00
411113000 53187 0.00
441130000 260134.55 0.00
DVll2ia Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings
becoming due and payable within one year 25 580 638.09 0.00
411111000 540001 - Recoiabi from holding comparny 109 203.71 000
411112000 540011 - Recovabbe from LT Group Fefow Subsid 12 G40 132.28 0.00
411114000 370144 - Lopn o related parbes - Syncordis Advances Limited o 545841.78 000

Imprime le 03.06.24 14:49:41



LTIMindtree SA

Detail for ASSETS

EUR

ASSETS

31/12/2023

3112/2022

411
411
411
411
411
411
411

115000
116000
117000
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183000

183004
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firem PSF SA

s - LTIMindiree Thaitand Lid

1 30 urnsy

401 110:82
037 538.78
1501 786.22
450 248.53
7B 356.20
27450
23 370.00
-17 381.25

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Dvlli4ia

Oiher debtors
becoming due and payable within one year

421420000
421580000

429 567,14

0.00

Buniopal business tai

370674 - Other miscellaneous recowables

420 5E5.5%

1.55

0.00
0.00

Cash at bank and in hand

1703 531.49

0.00

513101000 BCEE LU24 0019 2355 2608 5000 (ELR) pog 510,72 0.00
513102000 BCEE LL23 0019 5855 38208000 (AP} 4 180.87 0.00
513103000 BCEE LLAE D019 5855 5398 3000 (LS TE0 B30T 0.00
513104000 ISBL LLZS 37401070 14B1 5130 (GBR A0.27 0.00
E/ Prepaymenis

457 680.17 0.00
481000000 T mancal years 457 530.18 0.00
484000000 Transitory or suspetss acoounls - Assels 0.0t 0.00

Imprime le

03.06.24 14:49:41



Mo RC: B105331

Matricule: 20042227351

LTIMindtree SA EUR
CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES as at 31122023
CAPITAL RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Capital and reserves 4 538 528.75 0.00
| Subscribed capital 55 392.00 0.00
Il Share premium account 1652 59173 0.00
I Revalualion reserve
IV Reserves 436 314.20 0.00
1 Legal reserve 553920 0.00
2 Reserve for own shares
3 Reserves provided for by the arlicles of azsociafion
4 Other reserves, including the fair value reserve
a} other available rezerves 0.00 0.00
b} other non availzble rezerves 430 775.00 0.00
V' Profit or loss brought forward 2 D54 30506 0.00
VI Profit or loss for the financial year 33992278 0.00
VIl Inferim dividends
VIllCapital invesiment subsidies
Provisions 2 331898.48 0.00
1 Provisions for pensions and similar obligations
2 Provisions for taxation B85 24500 0.00
i Other provisions 2 266 653.48 0.00
Creditors 26 963 578.40 0.00
1 Debenture loans
a} Convertible loans
i} becoming due and payable within one year
ii} becoming due and payable afler more than one year
b} Mon comvertible loans
i} becoming due and payable within one year
ii} becoming due and payable afler more than one year
2 Amounts owed to credit insfitutions
a} becoming due and payable within one year
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year 14 909 795.00 0.00
i Paymenis received on account of orders in so far as they are not shown separately as deduc
a} becoming due and payable within one year
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
4 Trade creditors
a} becoming due and payable within one year 749 316.31 0.00
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
5 Bills of exchange payable
a} becoming due and payable within one year
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
& Amounis owed to affiliated undertakings
a} becoming due and payable within one year & 507 690.32 0.00
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
7 Amounts owed to undertakings with which the undertaking is linked by virlue of parlicipati
a} becoming due and payable within one year
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
& Other credifors
a} Tax authorities 1185 729.37 0.00
b} Social security autherities 522 418.81 0.00
c} Other credifors
i becoming due and payable within one year 998 128.50 0.00
ii becoming due and payable afler more than one year
Deferred income 1 265 838.66 o.00
TOTAL CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 35099 844.49 0.00




LTIMindtree SA " EUR
Detail for CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES
CAPITAL RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Al Capital and reserves
Subecribed capital 55 392.00 0.00
101000000 Substribod capits 55 302.00 0.00
Al Share premium account 1652 501.73 0.00
111000000 Share presmium 1 652 581.73 0.00
AV Reserves
Legal reserve 5 539,20 0.00
131000000 Legal reseeve 5 530.20 0.00
AMI4b Ciher reserves. including the fair value resernve
other non available rezerves 430 775,00 0.00
138210000 Resmrve for nel weallh tax INWT 430 775.00 000
AN Profit or loss brought fonward 2 054 308.08 0.00
141200000 Fesults broughl Torweard {ns=igned) 2 054 308.08 000
AN Profit or loss for the financial year 339 933,76 0.00
142000000 Fesall for the finandal e 33082278 000
Bir2 Provisions
Provisions for taxation 65 245.00 0.00
122000000 Provisors for l=aation 85 245.00 000
Bif3 Ciher provisions 2 J66 653,458 0.00
B2 110000 510 653.23 0.00
B2 120000 rrpkis. 1 756 100.25 0.00
Cli2io) Crediiors
Amounts owed to credit institulions
pecoming due and gagab{e after more than one year 14 999 795,00 0.00
124201000 180031 - HEEC LUDS 3740 1010 1487 5030 14 DOB 554.71 0.00
184210200 180038 - HEEC LUD9-3T40 1010 1487 8030 - Exchonge diffenemos 1230.2% 000
Ciidra) Trade creditors
pecoming due and payable within one year 749 816.31 0.00
441110000 750 53062 0.00
441111000 1505900 Vendor Conitrol AT - Exch i -T54.31 000
Ciigra) Amounts owed to affiliated underiakings
pecoming due and gagab{e within one year 5 507 690.32 0.00
451111000 150002 - Payabie b LTIM Subsidiz 5400 D43.20 0.00
451112000 145023 0.00
451113000 £14.85 0.00
451114000 2382 0.00
451115000 -22.50 0.00
451124000 11 279.00 0.00
451125000 3 D05 5@5.38 0.00
Cligia) Oiher creditors

T:z-: authorifies 1185 729.3?

0.00

Imprime le 03.06.24 14:49:42



LTIMindtree SA EUR
Detail for CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

—_—_—— e

481211000 85 20812 000
481221000 56 DR2.50 000
481221020 Ti PSF A -18 D04.75 000
481240000 nes 118 458.30 000
481412000 VAT payabilo B43 09317 000
4814121¢0 I705TE - VAT lmpld ench &l -23.87 0.00
CAi8/) Social zecurity authorities 533 413.81 0.00
482100000 Social Socwily affice (CC85) A2 41231 0.00
Citsicy Other creditors

pecoming due and gagab]e within one year 998 128.50 0.00
4T1410000 Payrall Cleanng Account 05 D48.27 000
471811000 B 38538 000
471812000 18 B69.00 000
471813000 535 53487 000
471814000 {ated party 388 408.37 000
471815000 -18 59063 000
471818000 sruices - Exch d 778530 000
471817000 70128 - T -12 498 .85 000

v Deferred income
1 265 838.06 0.00
482000000 al years) 1 265 B38.598 000

Imprime le 03.06.24 144942



Mo RC: B105331

Matricule: 20042227351

LTIMindtree SA

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

EUR

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

[5 T I -

10

1

12
13
14

18
17
18

31/12/2023

3112/2022

Het tumover
Variation in stocks of finished goods and in work in progress
Work performed by the underiaking for ils own purposes and capitalised
Other operating income
Raw materials and consumables and other extemnal expenzes
a} Raw materizls and censumables
b} Other external expenses
Siaff cosis
a} Wages and salaries
b} Social security cosls
i} relating 1o pensions
ii} ofher social security cosis
£} Other staff costs
Value adjustments
a} inrespect of formation expenses and of tangible and inlangible fixed assets
b} inrespect of current assefz
Other operaling expenses
Income from participating interests
a} derived from affiliated undertakings
b} ofher income from participating inferests
Income from olher investments and leans forming part of the fixed assels
a} derived from affiliated undertakings
b} other income not included under a)
Other interest receivable and smilar income
a} derived from affiliated undertakings
b} other interest and similar income
Share of profit or loss of undertakings accounted for under the equity method

30 108 897750

45 11521

-9 815 006.97

-18 258 77295

-745 132.83

-581 042.45

458 851.66
-20 54721

Value adjstments in respect of financial assels and of investmenis held a=s cument assels

Interest payable and similar expenses
a} concermning affiliaied underakings
b} ofher interest and similar expenses

5 Tax on profit or loss

Profit or loss after taxafion
Other taxes not shown under items 1 to 16
Profit or loss for the financial year

-93 779.53
-613 469.05
-141 300.62

33992276

33992276

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00



LTIMindtree SA

Detail for PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

EUR

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

31/12/2023

3112/2022

i Met lumnover 30 108 977.50 0.00
03300000 900052 - Exporl Revetue - Produc 57 500.00 0.00
03300180 900053 - Exporl Revetue - Services 18 435 83081 0.00

F03300200 G353 - Expor Revenes - Sandces - LTIMindtree Lid (LK) 132 07802 000
3300360 900053 - Exporl Revetue - Services - LTIMindires PSF SA B 178 852,89 0.00
TOA300440 900053 - Exporl Revetue - Services - LTIMindires France SARL 29 315.70 0.00
3300500 900053 - Exporl Revetue - Sery Mielsen+Pasiner AS {Switzerland) 2 550 58900 0.00
73300800 900053 - Exporl Revetue - Sery -457 82438 0.00
TO33007¢0 900053 - Exporl Revetue - Sery Produits & reporbar -150 534.20 0.00
73300800 E50057 - Managemeny/Back Office costs Nislsend Pariner (AL 10 36111 0.00
73300800 B50057 - O ManagemenltBack Office MislZen4 Pariner Uriernehmensherals 208 004 04 000
T3301000 G50057 - O ManagermenliBack Office MislZen&Partner (DE) 57 B62.09 000
T3 130 G50057 - O ManagermenliBack Office MiskZen4 Pariner Pie Lid Singapore 148 79013 000
TO33200 B500157 - O ManasgermenlBack Office MislemkPartner {Banpgiok] 518082 000
TO3301360 650057 - O ManagermenliBack Office LTIMndirer France SARL 230 §51.84 000
7033014460 BE005T - O LTS -153.83 0.00
TO330500 650057 - O ManagermenliBack Office LTIMmdEnes Lid LK 218 432 .34 000
T03301800 650057 - O ManagermenliBack Office LTIMmndines PEF SA 473 158.37 000
TO330T700 650070 - GEA OVH - Rend and other cost lo LTIMndes PEF S8 215 B03:48 0.00
TO3301EG0 B50079 - O ManasgermenliBack Office: MislZen&Partner (DE) -13 051.87 000
F03301900 BEEH0 - O6E chag 1o Parlsub-cost of equipment 370 584.88 000
03302000 G50080 - OH ManagermeniBack Office MiskZen&Partner (AL} 3148353 000
TO3302160 G50080 - O ManagemenlBack Office Nis=en&Pariner Untemehmersberate 18 B06.07 000
T033022¢0 650080 - O ManagermenliBack Office MiskZen&Partner (DE) B D52.04 000
703302360 G500080 - O ManasgemenltBack Office Nis=en&Pariner Pie Lid Singopore 56 455.48 000
T033024¢0 G50080 - O ManasgermenlBack Office Misl<emkPartner {Bangiok) §53.82 000
73302500 650080 - O ManagemenliBack Office LTIMndirer France SARL 3888271 000
703302800 650080 - O ManagermenliBack Office LTIMmndines PEF SA 43 205.43 000
T033027¢0 G50080 - O ManagermenliBack Office LTIMmndEnes Lid LK 50 6049.69 000
703302850 900057 Cash Discownt -20.83 0.00
14 Other operating income 46 115.21 0.00
T4RE0300D Aulres produils d'exploiation dvers - LTIMndree PEF SA4 2274321 0.00
T4BE0400D Aulres produils d'exploiation dvers - LTIMndree PEF SA4 23 370.00 0.00
15} Raw materials and consumables and other exiernal expenses
Other external expenses -9 815 00697 0.00
B11120000 G0000E - Rerr - & rue des Primesrs L2361 Liseemboung 518 755.38 0.00
11230180 500048 - Onisie Car Leave Experises - Car Leasing -T3 BEO.81 000
B112302¢0 e Pt ar Hire Chorges - Car Leasing 272132 000
11300000 B30012 - CAM charges - & Roe des Pimeurs L2381 Luxembourg =137 TE0.41 000
B12100130 5400040 - Purchase of Trading Soods 488 T715.00 000
B121002¢0 S40005 - Subronkracting - Lessen & Towrbo nfatech Limited [ India) -2 048 42092 000
B121003¢0 S40005 - Subronkracting - Lessen & Towrbo entifies - provision -51471.48 000
B121004¢0 S40008 - Subconkacting - Nistssn+Pariner Ple Germany 500175 000
B12100500 S40008 - Subconkracting - MistssnsPariner Ple Lid | Switzerdand) -B06 209.05 000
B12100840 S40008 - Subronkracting - MisisansPariner Pie Lid {Singapome] -144 598 .83 000
G121007¢0 540008 ance SARL -346 931.68 0.00
F12100850 S40008 - Subcanks 3 - LTIMindtnes: PSF 3A -T2 27384 0.00
B12100800 S40008 - Subronbracting - LTImmndines UK -1 D58 362.70 000
G12101000 540006 - Subroniacting - Onsite -1 557 268.42 0.00
12101130 540006 - Subroniracting - Onsite - Fachires non panenues -182 308.75 0.00
G12140010 BE00X3E - GEA OVH - ManagemenlBack Office casts - LTIMiidiree PSF SA -547 52231 0.00
G12140020 G5003E - GRA OVH « ManagermenbBack OHfice - Hiefsen4Partner GmbH (Hamb -156 B51.69 000

Imprime le
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LTIMindtree SA

Detail for PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

EUR

PROFITAND LOSS ACCOUNT

31/12/2023

3112/2022

G12140040 G5003E - GEA OVH -« MansgemenbBack THfice - Niefsen & Partner (ALL -7 362.83 000
G12140050 B5003E S8A O'H - ManagementBark Office - MislssnsPariner DE -4 212:41 000
G12140080 GE003E - GRA OVH - MansgemenbBack OHfice - Hiefsen & Partner (Banghkok 61938 000
G12140070 650041 - Prinfing & Stationery - Coal Condne -8428.77 000
12972000 500005 - Comtribution to PF - General Subcondracting LT {lindia} T 48002 000
12210010 BI0B02 - Compuler Mainienance -315.10 000
12210020 BI0304 - Repairs & Maindesance - Cthes -4 02573 000
G12280010 630310 - Cleaning & Sweening Ches -1 84387 000
813330000 G50000 - Bank charges -BEg.28 000
B13330160 650004 - Ociroi & Custom Duty 23021 0.00
G13380000 £50044 - Bank Charges - Others -5 B27.41 0.00
G13420010 B50000 - Autit fees -28 333.37 0.00
G13420020 EGB0000 - Ratés & Taxes Others [ees -4 BO3.TE 0.00
B134200:30 670000 - Accourting and awdi fess -347 151.588 000
G13420040 E70003 - Legal fees -5 515.00 0.00
G13B800150 E20000 - Recruitment Expenses -17 867.58 0.00
G138002¢0 E20001 - Consulling Fees - Recruilmenl -24 92843 0.00
G13820000 G50013 - Viza Fees -20 53418 0.00
G14300000 E40002 - Insurance Oihers -12 782.03 0.00
815110000 570005 - Press adveriising -7 B15.05 000
G15140000 570004 - Gifts to cuslomears -22 13741 0.00
B15160000 650008 - Dionabons -7 350.00 0.00
B15170000 570008 - Bponsorship -110000.00 0.00
B15180000 570002 - Other purcharse= of advertising serwces -3 800.00 000
B15212160 S50000 - Food E Lodging - Holet Bilx - Concus -3 460.52 000
B15212110 a50001 - Food E Lodging - Allowance -68.38 000
B15212120 S50003 - Travel Faneign - Biliable -104 263.09 000
815212130 S50004 - Traveil Fomeign - Nan Bilable =216 807 17 000
F15212140 S80005 - Corveyance -11 578.28 0.00
B15212150 550007 - Conveyance - Rado Cabs -3 558.55 0.00
B15212160 850030 - Food & Lodging - Holet Bils - Cost Cerier -37 432.02 000
B15212170 550035 - Viza Fees - Cost Center -1 B25.00 0.00
B15212180 500038 - Expenses - Traved - Per Diemn Allowance withoul Youcher -18 B53.00 0.00
15230000 BEIIRT - Other Expenses Onsite - WEBS - Trovel and represeriintion expan -348. 40 000
G15240000 5580015 - Recepbons and enievianmerd cosis 27781 0.00
B15310000 610008 - Couner Expenses - Cost Cenfre -3 B3g.g2 0.00
B15320000 610008 - Tolephone Chamges - Cost Centre -27 BT8.57 0.00
B15321000 610003 - Imernal chorpes -3 00854 000
B15322000 610000 - Moble Expenss - Concur -2209 000
F15328002 S80002 - Bub=cripbon -4 105,18 0.00
G15328003 650048 - Bub=cripbon - Concur -728.00 0.00
G18510000 S50026 - Oifice supplies -20 577.38 0.00
18510010 B53110 - Bundry Exper=es - Concur -8 B60.58 000
18510020 G50017 - Rounding off Exponse -20.38 000
G18T10000 580028 - Meémbership Fes Others -3 B60:68 0.00
G187 20000 650012 - Meémbership Fee Sales Office -14 35985 0.00
1efa) Siaff cosis

WWages and szlaries 18 258 T73.95 0.00
g21110010 510000 - Foreign Living Allow - Billahle -12 68§ 58019 0.00
G21110020 510001 - Payrall Tax - Eflabis -1 577 837.85 0.00
821110030 510013 - Serace Chames chorpe by Subsidiary -B62.50 0.00
G21110040 510015 | - Bilahie 121 23712 0.00
821110050 §10017 - Food Woucher Expanze -204 50438 000
G21110080 510028 - Variable Pay Onsile - Bilable -1 218 B30.TH 0.00

Imprime le

03.06.24 14:49:43



LTIMindtree SA

Detail for PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

EUR

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

31/12/2023

3112/2022

821110070 SH000 - Foreign Alow - Non Bifable
821110080 SX001 - Payroll Taxes - Non Bifable
821110080 SH00A - |Lmsen Encrshirent - Man Bikable
21110130 SHIIE - Vanable Pay Orsite - Non Bilable
821118110 S500 - Foreign Living Allow - Suppart
821110120 S3501 - Payroll Taxes - Suppard
821110130 S20500 himend - Suppornk
821110140 S30538 - Vanable Pay Onsile - Suppard
821110150 530000 - Employes Wellzre - Concar
21110160 530002 g & Tuition Elx

211070 B30005 - On moioyes Welfame - Conou
21110180 S30008 - 0 + Trovrung & Tishon Experses
821110180 S3000F - Employes Wellzre - Cost Centre
8211102¢0 530008 - On=dr Employes Welfane - Cost Centro

-11731101.73
-146175.24
-30.208.57
-574 277.55
-130 66820
-20 781.20
-5 520.47
-10°B00.00
-21018.28
-33pz22
-21 34434
-442918.38
-2 020.03
-3 535.80

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

ITia)

Value adjustments

in respect of formation £xpenses and oftangil}le and in!a@ible fied

50260 SE0011 - Diep Mok

832101000 BE0J18 - Dep Internal Copéal=alion
832201000 BE0314 - Amoriation - Intangible Assed - Bismess Righis
833340000 SE0310 - Dep 0¥ce equip
833340130 S80012 - Dep
833360000 BE0007 - Dep Laplops
B333601E BE0007 - D
333
333

0440 BE0J1T - Dep Sofware=

745 133.83

0.00

-500061.29
-179.53

-13 346,41
-4 B1531
-34 261.54
-7 56857
557911

-8 32027

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

i

Ciher nﬂeratiﬂ EXpENsES

581 042.45

0.00

G41300000 S50005 - 0
41310000

G48E810000
G4BE20000

I
I
I
I

are: Pur Annual Licence-AMC

-42.45

-403 53862
57 D38.52
-15 272.88

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

if11fa)

Ciher interest receivable and smilar income

detived from affiliated underiakings

755411000 10028 - Inl
755412000
755413000
755414000
755415000

755416000

455 581.66

0.00

il Ipan - LTIMidzree Lid (LK)

382 4B9.03
2700734
17 60810
26 31587

113424
0248.58

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

111

other interest and similar income
— —

-20 647.21

0.00

TREZ200000 Q0301 - Foesign curency exchange gair

THE2 10000 90002 - Exch. Diff on Receia

THE 220000 910003 - Exch Diff On Payables

THE2 30000 910004 - Exch Dl an Payables - Revalsstion
THE2 40000 910005 - Exch Diff - Bank revalzation

ThE 250000 a1
758260000 atp

i DGff Che

ci Diff - Others Revahztion

4541283

8 082.55
43807 .64
-102183.15
5T 54454
55 284.58
-16 30920

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Ir4ia)

Interest payable and similar expenses
concerning afiliated underiakings

93 779.53

0.00

GE5410010 E50021 - Inl. Paid to athers - LTiMindires PSF SA

-03 779.53

0.00

14/

other interest and similar gxpanses

618 469.05

0.00

Imprime le 03.06.24 144943



LTIMindtree SA ; EUR
Detail for PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
PROFITAND LOSS ACCOUNT 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
BER2 20000 850001 - Banking inferest on financng operations 518 469.05 000
s Tax on profit or loss -141 300.63 0.00
871100000 -85 20312 0.00
BT2100000 -56 00250 0.00
16 Profit or logs after taxation 339 933,76 0.00
i1& Profit or loss for the financial year 339 933,76 0.00
142000000 Pzl for the fimancial yes 33082278 000

Imprime le 03.06.24 14:49:43
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LTIMindtree PSF 5.A.
5. Rue des Primeurs
L - 2361 Strassen

R.C.S. Luxembourg : B 217.963

COMPTES ANNUELS AU 31 DECEMBRE 2023















Mo RC: B217963

Matricule: 2017 2209 247

LTIMindtree PSF S.A. EUR
ASSETS as at 31M12/2023
ASSETS 31/12/2023 31122022
A Subszcnbed capital unpaid 0.00 0.00
I Subszcribed capital nof called
Il Subscribed capital called but unpaid
B Formation expenses
C Fixed assets 249 168.20 0.00
| Intangible asseis 576.25 0.00
1 Caosis of development
2 Concessions, patents. licences, frade marks and similar righfs and assets. if they wers 576.25 0.00
a} acquired for valuable congideration and need nof be shown under C.1L3 57625 0.00
b} created by the underiaking itself
3 Goodwill, to the extent that it was acquired for valuable considerafion
4 Paymenis on account and intangible assets under development
Il Tangible asszets 243 591.95 0.00
1 Land and buildings 0.00 0.00
2 Plant and machinery
3 Other fixtures and fitfings, tools and eguipment 248 59195 0.00
4 Paymenis on account and tangible aszets in the course of construction
Il Financial asssiz 0.00 0.00
1 Shares in affiliated underiakings
2 Loans io affiliaied underiakings
3 Parlicipating interests
4 Loans o undertakings with which the underiaking is linked by virtue of parficipating inle
5 Investments held as fixed asseis
& Other loanz
D Current assets 17 758.531.43 0.00
| Stocks 0.00 0.00
1 Raw malerials and consumables
2 Work in progress
3 Finizhed goods and goods for resale
4 Paymenis on account
Il Debtors 14 275 476.00 0.00
1 Trade debtors
a} becoming due and payable within one year 3 496 T20.05 0.00
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year To 468 37 0.00
2 Amounts owed by affiliated underiakings
a} becoming due and payable within one year 10 693 082 .58 0.00
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
3 Amounts owed by underiakings with which the underiaking is linked by virtue of participati
a} becoming due and payable within one year
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
4  Other debtors
a} becoming due and payable within one year 2 205.00 0.00
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year 0.00 0.00
l Investments 0.00 0.00
1 Shares in affiliated underiakings
2 Own shares
3 Other investments
IV Cash at bank and in hand 348305543 0.00
E Prepayments 34 24481 0.00
TOTAL ASSETS 13 041 944.44 0.00



LTIMindtree PSF S.A. EUR
Detail for ASSETS
ASSETS 31/12/2023 31122022
CiliZia) Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Concessions, patents, licences. frade marks and similar rights and assets, if they were
acouired for valuable consideration and need not be shown under C. 13 576.25 0.00
212130000 ZE004T - Softwares 394751 0.00
212130009 268047 - Dep Prow - Saftwame -3371.26 0.00
Ci3 Tangible azsseis
Other fodures and fitfings. tools and eguipment 248 531.95 0.00
..2340'[”:”]‘] 250042 - Furnitures & Fiatunes 6 92980 0.00
223400009 250012 - Dep Prow - Fumniures -6 92980 0.00
223500000 250004 - Compuiera 188 B08.41 0.00
223500004 250009 - Dep Prow - Compulers 184 05522 0.00
223501000 50041 - Mabiles 6 232.00 0.00
223501009 250011 - Dep Prow - Mobies -1 596.06 0.00
223510000 ZE0015 - Servet 245 17280 0.00
2235100049 250015 - Dep Prow - sorier -6 65995 0.00
Dilli1ia) Current assefs
Detors
Trade debtors
pecoming due and gagabie within one year 3496 720.05 0.00
401100000 40000 - Trade 1538 04396 0.00
401400000 wrs - Unbslled sales 1908 676.09 0.00
D1l 1) pecoming due and pavable after more than one vear 75 468,37 0.00
441230000 Suppliers with o debit balance T8 46537 0.00
Dilli2ia) Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings
becoming due and payable within one year 10 698 083.58 0.00
411111000 300YT - Rmceiy ram LT Sroop Fellow Submid 4 762 904 54 0.00
411120000 1t 3 005 595 36 0.00
411121000 206 753.42 0.00
411122000 2421 05136 0.00
411123000 eo 54 244 59687 0.00
411125000 56 38053 0.00
Dillidia) Oiher debtors
pecoming due and payable within one year 2 205.00 0.00
421110000 ITO10 - Advances lo emplayees 2 205.00 0.00
Div Cash at bank and in hand 3483 055,43 0.00
513100100 BI04 347463432 0.00
513100300 IETOEL 42111 0.00
E/ Prepaymenis
34 244.81 0.00
431000000 IT0502 - Defered charge=s {on one o more icancial peers) 34 24481 0.00




Mo RC: B217963

Matricule: 2017 2209 247

LTIMindtree PSF S.A.

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES as at 311212023

EUR

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

——————— —  — —

A

31/12/2023

3112/2022

Capital and reserves

I Subszcribed capital

Il Share premium account
I Revalualion reserve

IV Reserves

2
3
4

Legal reserve

Reserve for own shares

Rezerves provided for by the articles of azsocialion
Other reserves, including the fair value reserve

a} other available rezerves

b} other non availzble rezerves

V' Profit or loss brought forward

VI Profit or loss for the financial year
VIl Inferim dividends

VIllCapital invesiment subsidies
Provisi

1
2
3

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations
Provisions for taxation
Other provisions

Creditors

Debenture loans
a} Convertible loans

i} becoming due and payable within one year

ii} becoming due and payable afler more than one year
b} Mon comvertible loans

i} becoming due and payable within one year

ii} becoming due and payable afler more than one year
Amounts owed to credit insfitutions
a} becoming due and payable within one year
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year

3915475.58
400 000.00

131 250.00
40 00000

91 250.00
31948130
264 74419

B8T 484.76

GET 43478
10 475 827.55

65.57

Paymenis received on account of orders in so far as they are not shown separately as deduc

a} becoming due and payable within one year

b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
Trade creditors

a} becoming due and payable within one year

b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
Eillz of exchange payable

a} becoming due and payable within one year

b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
Amounis owed to affiliated undertakings

a} becoming due and payable within one year

b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year

967 (90.07

6 936 558.85

Amounts owed to undertakings with which the undertaking is linked by virtue of pariicipafi

a} becoming due and payable within one year
b} becoming due and payable affer more than one year
Other credifors
a} Tax authorities
b} Social security autherities
c} Other credifors
i becoming due and payable within one year
ii becoming due and payable afler more than one year

D Deferred income

TOTAL CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

1500 215.08
1585 530.69

886 36720

2 963 156.55

15 041 944.44

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00



LTIMindtree PSF S.A. ; EUR
Detail for CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES
CAPITAL RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Al Capital and reserves
Subecribed capital 400 H00.00 0.00
101000000 Share Capilal 400 MDD 00 0.00
AV Reserves
Legal reserve 40 000,00 0.00
131000000 100191 Legal Reserve 40 DD, 00 0.00
AMI4b) Ciher reserves. including the fair value resernve
other non available reserves 91 250.00 0.00
135210000 180042 Prosizion for theoime Tax () 91 250,00 0.00
AN Profit or loss brought fonward 3119 481.39 0.00
141200000 Re=ults hrooghl forwand { nssigned) 311948139 0.00
AN Profit or loss for the financial year 264 74419 0.00
142000000 Re=ull for the Tmancial yeor 264 74419 0.00
Bif3 Provisions
Ciher provisions 68T 484.76 0.00
185110000 g P 97 353166 0.00
155120000 an lor Emoloyes benefils 590 103.10 0.00
Cii2ra) Crediiors
Amounts owed to credit institulions
pecoming due and pavable within one year 65,57 0.00
194101000 6054 - BCEE CAC LUBS D019 5855 5353 4000 (GBP) 6557 0.00
Ciidla) Trade creditors
pecoming due and payable within one year 967 090.07 0.00
441120000 150500 - Sunpliers - in ot yet received 987 079.10 0.00
441130000 150880 - Vendor Cangial A 1 D 10.97 0.00
Ciigra) Amounts owed to affiliated underiakings
pecoming due and payable within one year 6 936 558,85 0.00
451111000 150002 - Pryable o LTIM Subsidary 6 890 45506 0.00
451112000 -11.42 0.00
451183000 46 11521 0.00
Ciigia) Ciher creditors
Tax guthorities 1500 215.08 0.00
461211023 1102 057.98 0.00
461231000 18 250,00 0.00
461240000 " 42 56973 0.00
461412000 337 33737 0.00
CAig) Social security authorities 1856 530.69 0.00
462100000 170035 - Linbiibes for Social Secuiity (OS5 185 530.69 0.00
Cligicyi Oiher creditors
pecoming due and payable within one year 586 367.29 0.00
471410000 150502 - Siafl - Salaries dus 2573832 0.00




LTIMindtree PSF S.A.
Detail for CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

EUR

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

y 31/12/2023

3112/2022

471812000 IFNIE - Travel Advance Cortrdt Actoun -1439.41
471813000 150108 Pr 276 &85.84
471814000 150112 Pr taterd parly 383 24138
471815000 150508 - Travel advance contral alc. local - Advances o employees against trove 1998.16

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

D Deferred income
2 963 156.56

0.00

482000000 170230 - Advancod Revenue - Deferred inoome 2963 15655

0.00




Mo RC: B217963

Matricule: 2017 2209 247

LTIMindtree PSF S.A.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

EUR

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

(2 I R

31/12/2023

3112/2022

Het tumover
Variation in stocks of finished goods and in work in progress
Work performed by the underiaking for ils own purposes and capitalised
Other operating income
Raw materials and consumables and other extemnal expenzes
a} Raw materizls and censumables
b} Other external expenses
Siaff cosis
a} Wages and salaries
b} Social security cosls
i} relating 1o pensions
ii} ofher social security cosis
£} Other staff costs
Value adjustments
a} inrespect of formation expenses and of tangible and inlangible fixed asset
b} inrespect of current assefz
Other operaling expenses
Income from participating interests
a} derived from affiliated undertakings
b} ofher income from participating inferests

10 Income from other investments and loans forming part of the fixed assels

a} derived from affiliated undertakings
b} ofher income not included under a)

11 Other interest receivable and smilar income

a} derived from affiliated undertakings
b} ofher interest and similar income

12 Share of profit or losz of undertakings accounted for undar the equity method
13 Value adjustments in respect of financial assels and of investmenis held as current assels
14 Interest payable and similar expenses

a} concermning affiliaied underakings
b} ofher interest and similar expenses

15 Tax on profit or loss

16 Profit or loss afler taxation

17 Other taxes nof shown under items 1 to 16
18 Profit or loss for the financial year

19222 95735

-12 853 855.99

-5 789 T35.07

-18 97822

-423 187.10

144 85059
04263

0.00
0.00
252 93419
-18 250,00
264 74419

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00



LTIMindtree PSF S.A. EUR
Detail for PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
i Met lumnover 19 333 957.35 0.00
TO3300000 BONDES - Exparl Revenue - Sarvices 19119 857737 0.00
TO3300001 BOODE2 - Experl Revenue - Prodoc! 21 641.00 0.00
703300110 ES005T - 0 Charged To Grouwn Companies WSS - LTIMindires Fronoe 115939.70 0.00
703301000 BOROSS Services o LTIMindiree SA 1526 601.28 0.00
703302000 EO0OEE Trade doblors - sales mvoice occnsals -399 126.60 0.00
703303000 BODOES Resumpbon on differed sales micome -2 119 221.61 0.00
703303100 ES005T - 10 Charged To Gouw Companies WES - LTIMindires UK 142 695.02 0.00
703304110 ES005T - 10 Charged To Gouw Companies WSS - Niclsen & Pariner (DE) 28 954 96 0.00
703304300 ES005T - 10/H Charged To Goun Companies WES - LTIMindires S o547 59231 0.00
T03305100 ES005T - 10 Charged To Gouw Companies WSS - Niclsen & Pariner (ALY Bo1544 0.00
703306100 EOOOST - O Charged To Goun Companies W8S - Miclsan & Parines Ple Lid - Singed 48 78975 0.00
703307100 ESL05T - 0 Charged To Grouwn Companies WSS - Niclsen & Pariner Urternohmenst0 50673 0.00
TO3309110 ES005T - 10 Charged To Gouw Companies WES - Niclsen & Pariner (Bangiok) 4 455 95 0.00
15k} Raw materials and consumables and other exiernal expenses
Other external expenses -12 853 355,99 0.00
511120000 ESCOT4 - Overheads charged by Fent & eslablichm -215 503,45 0.00
612100000 B0 - ‘General suboonirscinp inot moluded n the: production of goods and ser -26 074.46 0.00
512100100 40005 - Subcormirackng Expense - Offshore - LTI Limiled {India} -123 234 60 0.00
512100110 40006 - Subeonirackng - Onsile - SOGET -237 503.50 0.00
512100120 40008 - Subeontrackng DD Salaticna =37 &00.00 0.00
512100140 40008 - Subeontrackng Hiefsen 4+ Partner Germarny -15 064.56 0.00
512100150 40006 - Subconirackng - O Hiefsen 4+ Partner Swilcerland -6 593.12 0.00
512100160 40006 - Subeonirackng - Onsile - LTIMndres France 36 38630 0.00
512100170 40006 - Subconirackng - O LTIMndres SA -11 248 92381 0.00
512100130 40006 - Subconirackng - O LTIMndres UK -a4 308383 0.00
612101001 E90079-- 10 chang By Group Com- Cosl of equipme - LTIMindgres SA -43 205 .45 0.00
612101002 ES0079-- 10 chang By Group Coime Cosl of equipme - Nieken & Parner (DE] -5 42296 0.00
612141009 EOO0TL - GAA OH Charged By Groun Coenpaises - LTIMindbres 24 -478 15937 0.00
612191009 Eo003L - GAA OiH Changed By Group Companies - Nioisen & Pariner [OE) -G8 546.12 0.00
612230000 B5o0029 - Orsils cor Fine chages 8570 0.00
613330000 ES0044 - Bank charges - oifers <2 20075 0.00
613330100 ES000 - Bank chorges - Cuislome~ -169.87 0.00
613330200 ESO00E - Ociray & Custom Duly =325 0.00
513420000 ETD000 - Professional Fees -115 53548 0.00
813422000 BSO000 - Audil fees -33 220.35 0.00
513810000 E20007 - Cohsuling Fees - Recruitmerd -3 000,00 0.00
513511000 E20000 - Recruilmenl exaenses 25 560,00 0.00
513320000 ETDOLS - Visa charpes - Professional fees -3 48500 0.00
515212000 ES0004 - Travel Foreign - Non Bilable -56 34394 0.00
615212100 ES000E - Travel Foreign - Bilable -4 78139 0.00
515212300 BS80S - Coteeyance -Sed 80 0.00
515212400 ES00LT - Cotweyance- Radio Cabs -132.68 0.00
615212500 BBO0Y3 - Visa Fees -587724 0.00
615240000 EO00I0 - Food & Lodging - Hotel Bl - Cost Can -7 29268 0.00
515240010 590040 - Food &1 odging - Hotel Bélls - Concur 58500 0.00
515320002 EAROL2 - Maobile Expenss 230.85 0.00
6153200046 E18006E - Telephone Charpes - Cost Contm 2T 83274 0.00
515320007 ESE0Y0 - Sundry Expenses - Concur 27320 0.00
615328002 ES0002 - Subserplion -29594.14 0.00
618510000 BO002E - Ofos Expenszes othewrs -5 54935 0.00
B18710000 BO002E - Merbership fes gthars =34 99995 0.00
B 18720000 ES00Y2 - Membership Fes Sales Office 1112500 0.00



LTIMindtree PSF S.A. EUR
Detail for PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
if6fa) Siaff cosls
Wages and salaries -5 789 736,07 0.00
621110010 510040 - Ba=in vanges -3 210 30000 0.00
621110011 B10001 - Puryrol Tax - Billabie -451 32785 0.00
621110012 E18015 - Leave Encashment- Sillabie -3936.85 0.00
621110013 E1801T - Food Voucher Expense 113 264.78 0.00
621110014 E10028 - Borus ProvisiondMed) -254 651.88 0.00
621110015 -1213 08797 0.00
621110016 -161 971.60 0.00
21110017 -13 36456 0.00
621110019 =277 37992 0.00
621110020 Tr -357.00 0.00
621110021 O -312532 0.00
621110023 E -9 24348 0.00
621110024 BA0000 - Pis -9 416.60 0.00
21110025 SI003E - Per femathr -2 612,08 0.00
6211100246 SO004E - Ons -G8 514.86 0.00
G21110027 520004 56328 0.00
621110028 S30000 - Em 2 256.00 0.00
H7ia) Value adjustments
in rezpect of formation expenzes and of tangible and intangibls fixed assets -18 978.22 0.00
633300009 BEEOLG - Dep - Compulers -17 418.96 0.00
633300011 BEE0YT - Dep - Mobiies -1572.95 0.00
633300017 BEEINT - Dep - Soltwares 13.73 0.00
i Other operating expenses 433 187.10 0.00
641300005 S50005 - Ol Saltwire Pur Annual Licence-AMC - LTEH Sweder -&7 500.00 0.00
641300005 50006 O OTHE -128 740.78 0.00
641300013 B40013 - s -1534 645686 0.00
645140000 0021 -374.00 0.00
645141000 BEEOL0 -75323 0.00
648500300 Other sundry aperaling changes: - LTIMndinee: SA -46 11521 0.00
45510000 023 000 - Excess o k -5 63022 0.00
648520000 ES002L - Ofos Expenses = L7200 0.00
f1fa) Ciher interest receivable and smilar income
defived from affiliated undertakings 144 850.59 0.00
755412000 SAR02SE - Ind Recd on inler-c it - LTIMindiree 34 92 26253 0.00
735414000 G10025 - Ind R n o 570138 0.00
755415000 EAR02S - Ind Recd e - NP Singapore 45 006.15 0.00
755418000 S10028 - Int Rect on inlerc 13380.53 0.00
11/} other interest and similar income 242,63 0.00
T5B200000 406724 0.00
758210000 -2.01 0.00
758230000 -1 253684 0.00
756240000 -122.47 0.00
756250000 -695.83 0.00
756260000 -1 01266 0.00

16 Profit or loss after taxation 282 99419 0.00




LTIMindtree PSF S.A. EUR
Detail for PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

PROFITAND LOSS ACCOUNT 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

7 Other taxes not shown under ilems 110 16 18 250.00 0.00

651100000 N&T - curenl fmancal year =15 250,00 0.00

i1& Profit or lo=s for the financial vear 264 74419 0.00

142000000 Re=ull for the Tmancial yeor 264 744,19 0.00




